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Financial Highlights B & E

(prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% B9 < 1 7 #f & £ All 47 22)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Expressed in RMB millions MARBBELHE ZET=F —TTNF CZTTRF ZETRF ZEEBLE
Year Ended 31 December BE+t-A=1t-HLEFE
Revenues EEE 14,470 21,386 27,454 37,634 42,521
Other operating income Hit g% he 50 85 245 424 605
Operating expenses EEYH (14,454) (20,239) (27,685) (41,050) (43,087)
Operating profit/(loss) R,/ (B8) 67 1,232 14 (2,991) 38,537
Finance income/(cost), net BB/ () - F8 (775) (641) (578) (757) 141
Profit/(loss) before income tax BB ATAE (BB) (741) 586 (577) (3,616) 268
Profit/(loss) for the year AAREEREA
attributable to equity EEEE
holders of the Company wFl/ (B18) (1,097) 321 (467) (3,313) 269
Earning/(loss) per share ARRERREA
attributable to EiEER
equity holders of &2/ (B8
the Company (RMB)® (ARET)® (0.23) 0.07 (0.10) (0.68) 0.06
At 31 December RT=A=t—-8H
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHEZEEY 1,583 2,114 1,864 1,987 1,655
Net current liabilities FRBAR (9,982) (12,491) (25,572) (24,616) (26,074)
Non-current assets FRBEE 33,039 36,812 52,882 52,152 58,227
Long term borrowings, REER
including current portion BERYHH (11,223) (10,736) (12,659) (14,932) (14,675)
Obligations under finance leases, EIEHEHE -
including current portion BEREHBH (7,101) (8,662) (10,588) (11,949) (16,452)
Total share capital and reserves % &<
ki 6,175 6,481 6,096 2,815 3,028
M The calculation of earning/(loss) per share is based on the O FEEF, (B8 RREBEEFENRE

consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders and

4,866,950,000 shares in issue.
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Summary of Accounting and Business Data Bt HIZEE£KBERE

(prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations) (1% /7 2% A B £t 71 B & 51 22 All 45 #2)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

E-EZLEF-A=T—HL
FENE

RMB million

AREBETT
Net Profit e AINE 586
Income from Main Operations F & XA 4,871
Income from Other Operations H th 5 75 A1) H 1,003
Income from Investments & W 155
Net Income outside Business &N FRE 648

MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA & FINANCIAL INDICATORS

FTEEHBENMBIER

(Expressed in RMB Million) AREBE&ET)
2006 2007
ZETRE —E2%tLE
Restated
(gE71)
(Note 1)
(B &E1)
1. Revenue from Main Operations = & 2 U A 28,210.19 43,528.56
2. Net (Loss)/Profit F (&) FE (2,991.57) 586.46
3. Total Assets MEE 59,889.86 67,141.71
4. Shareholders’ Equity IRRE 3,073.47 3,568.01
5. (Loss)/Earnings per Share FR (B18) W=
(RMB) (AR¥TT) (0.61) 0.12
Notes: E o
1. The major accounting data and financial indicators in 2006 are adjusted 1. ZEERFEFEGTEBNHBER

and represented pursuant to the same accounting policies adopted in
2007.

2. Calculation of major financial indicators:

Earnings/(loss) per share = net profit/(loss) = total number of ordinary
shares at the end of the year

Net assets per share = shareholders’ equity at the end of the year—
total number of ordinary shares at the end of the year
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Selected Airline Operating Data T E&EHIBERE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2007 2006 Change
8z BHE
—E2ELHF —ERTREF
+t=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H SHEE
Capacity Ewmen
ATK (available tonne-kilometers) &] F3WE 22 & (ATK)
(millions) (BE) 12,085.88 11,065.57 9.22%
- Domestic routes — B A fin 4% 5,383.41 4,901.45 9.83%
- International routes — B MR 5,971.74 5,313.14 12.40%
- Hong Kong routes — BB M E MR 730.73 850.98 -14.13%
ASK (available seat-kilometers) A A3 FE % £ (ASK)
(millions) (BE) 77,717.23 70,468.28 10.29%
- Domestic routes — Bl A fin 4% 46,166.30 42,687.36 8.15%
- International routes — B MR 26,476.13 22,226.69 19.12%
- Hong Kong routes — BB M E MR 5,074.80 5,554.22 -8.63%
AFTK (available freight tonne- Al A EHEE 2 2 (AFTK)
kilometers) (millions) (BE) 5,091.33 4,723.43 7.79%
- Domestic routes — Bl A i 4% 1,228.42 1,059.58 15.93%
- International routes — B MR 3,588.91 3,312.74 8.34%
- Hong Kong routes — BB M E MR 274.00 351.10 -21.96%
Hours flown (thousands) AT/ (F) 756.00 678.28 11.46%
Traffic EnE
RTK (revenue tonne-kilometers) U ABE A B (RTK)
(millions) (B8) 7,713.92 6,930.97 11.30%
- Domestic routes — B A i 4% 3,777.51 3,369.67 12.10%
- International routes — B B i 4% 3,524.95 3,106.23 13.48%
- Hong Kong routes -~ EMR 411.46 455.07 -9.58%
RPK (revenue passenger- EiE AR E(RPK)
kilometers) (millions) (=) 57,182.56 50,271.88 13.75%
- Domestic routes — B A i A% 35,491.96 31,272.41 13.49%
- International routes — B B i 4% 18,385.95 15,478.45 18.78%
- Hong Kong routes — &6 R M & 3,304.65 3,521.02 -6.15%
RFTK (revenue freight tonne- B B E N1 B (RFTK)
kilometers) (millions) (&) 2,614.07 2,444.01 6.96%
- Domestic routes — B A AR 608.66 574.70 5.91%
- International routes — B B i 4% 1,887.85 1,728.01 9.25%
- Hong Kong routes — B EMR 117.56 141.30 -16.80%
Number of passengers carried HERE AR
(thousands) (F) 39,161.36 35,039.74 11.76%
- Domestic routes — B A i 4% 31,158.09 27,744.49 12.30%
- International routes — B B i 4% 5,671.61 4,807.75 17.97%
- Hong Kong routes — &6 R i R 2,331.66 2,487.51 -6.27%

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007



Selected Airline Operating Data T EZEHEHE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2007 2006 Change
S BHE
—EELE —EERE
+=B=+-8B +=—A=+—H BEIEE
Weight of cargo and mail carried EEH&ES (D)
(kg) (millions) =F- 940.12 893.22 5.25%
- Domestic routes — B A AR 464.42 438.55 5.90%
- International routes — BB 4 395.89 358.98 10.28%
- Hong Kong routes —BAME M 79.82 95.70 -16.59%
Load Factor HE=X
Overall load factor (%) mAEEEE (%) 63.83 62.64 1.19
- Domestic routes — B A AR 70.17 68.75 1.42
- International routes — BB 4R 59.03 58.46 0.57
- Hong Kong routes — BB RN 56.31 53.48 2.83
Passenger load factor (%) BREE (%) 73.58 71.34 2.24
- Domestic routes — B AT AR 76.88 73.26 3.62
- International routes — BB 4 69.44 69.64 -0.20
- Hong Kong routes -~ BB EMR 65.12 63.39 1.73
Freight load factor (%) EBHEE (%) 51.34 51.74 -0.40
- Domestic routes — B A AR 49.55 54.24 -4.69
- International routes — BB AR 52.60 52.16 0.44
- Hong Kong routes —HE M EMR 42.91 40.24 2.67
Break-even load factor (%) BETEHEEE (%) 67.74 71.15 -3.14
Yield and Costs Uy 2% == B AN 4t 5T
Revenue tonne-kilometers yield W AMEA E W
(RMB) (AR%) 5.27 5.20 1.35%
- Domestic routes — B A AR 5.91 5.77 2.43%
- International routes — BB 4 4.44 4.31 3.02%
- Hong Kong routes —BAME MR 6.49 7.12 -8.85%
Passenger-kilometers yield REALNBWE
(RMB) (AR%) 0.61 0.61 -
- Domestic routes — B A AR 0.61 0.61 =
- International routes — BB 4R 0.61 0.58 5.17%
- Hong Kong routes —BAME MR 0.65 0.71 -8.45%
Freight tonne-kilometers yield EBmERE =
(RMB) (AR%) 2.10 2.30 -8.70%
- Domestic routes — B A AR 0.98 0.87 12.64%
- International routes — BB 4R 2.31 2.54 -9.06%
- Hong Kong routes —BBME M 4.49 5.24 -14.31%
Available tonne-kilometers MR B EAKA
unit cost (RMB) (AE%) 3.57 3.70 -3.51%
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Chairman’s Statement EERKEE

Li Fenghua, Chairman

FTEE IFE

Dear shareholders,

I am pleased to present the report on the operating results of
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2007. On behalf of all the staff of the Group, I would
like to extend my sincere thanks to the shareholders for their
support of the Group.

In 2007, the world economy continued its growth momentum in the
first half year, but suffered a setback due to the impact of the US
subprime mortgage crisis in the second half. As the exchange rate of
the US dollar against the Renminbi was persistently weak and the
Group had a substantial amount of liabilities denominated in US
dollars, the results of the Group continued to benefit from a strong
Renminbi. However, the price of international crude oil and aviation
fuel soared to a new high, which brought about a significant increase
in costs for the international air transportation industry. As a result,
the results of the Group have been affected.

The PRC’s economy maintained a rapid pace of growth, resulting in
continued rapid growth in demand for air transport. However, the
transport capacity in the whole industry increased significantly with
more new competitors entering the market, resulting in increasingly
intense competition in the air transportation market in the PRC.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007
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In 2007, according to statistics on the number of flights take-off
and landing, the Group’s flights accounted for 36.97% and 29.36%
of all flights at Honggiao Airport and Pudong Airport, respectively.
The daily average utilisation rate reached 9.8 hours, representing an
increase of 0.4 hours compared to the same period in 2006.

In terms of passenger traffic, the Group introduced a number of new
routes in 2007 including “Shanghai-Maldives-Johannesburg, Honggiao-
Haneda, Beijing-Dalian-Okayama, Shanghai-Seoul-Bangkok, Honggiao-
Gimpo”, thus further improving the Group’s international route
network. During the year, the transit business continued to develop
and the number of passengers using the transit service exceeded
800,000 persons. The “5 75 & B 17" (“Eastern Miles”) frequent flyers
programme expanded further, and the number of members of the
frequent flyers programme has now exceeded 3,820,000. The Group
has accelerated the development of e-business to speed up the process
of issuing electronic passenger tickets. The Group now operates
international electronic ticketing in 36 cities around the world and
the operation of the 95808 call centre has commenced in 20 cities
throughout China.

In terms of freight transport, the Group enhanced its centralised
freight transport management system and further improved its freight
management standards and its freight logistics network by using a
new freight information system.

In terms of services, the Group launched a series of promotional
activities in 2007, namely “Experience the Air Culture of China Eastern
Airlines”, which enhanced our service brand and strengthened our
corporate image. According to the statistics of the Civil Aviation
Administration of China, the on-time rate achieved by the Group has
been higher than the average rate of the industry players in the
PRC, and the Group was awarded the “FAFPmEEL § 18"
(“Excellence Award for Customers’ Satisfaction”) for winning the
“Customer Satisfaction Award” from the Civil Aviation Administration
of China’s “Ik & & R fin” (“Passengers’ Rating of Civil Aviation Award”)
activity for three consecutive years.

Chairman’s Statement EER{EHE
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OUTLOOK FOR 2008

The Group would like to caution readers of this report that the
operations of the Group as an air transport enterprise which also
performs public service functions are linked closely to political and
economic conditions, both internationally and locally. As such, the
operation of the Group and of the whole sector is, to a substantial
extent, subject to the risks associated with geopolitics and the
occurance of unexpected events. The 2007 annual report of the
Group contains certain forward-looking statements, such as those on
the economies of Asia, including the PRC, and the aviation market.
Such forward-looking statements are subject to many uncertainties
and risks.

The Group envisages that the global economy will face considerable
uncertainties in 2008 due to turbulence in the financial markets.
But the rapid economic growth in the PRC continues, and at the
same time, given continuing efforts to build Shanghai as an aviation
hub and the opening of 2008 Beijing Olympic Games, demand in the
domestic air transportation market is expected to grow steadily. The
Group will seize the opportunity and make timely adjustments to its
capacity, thereby increasing both its air transport volumes and
revenues. The Group plans to continue to expand its scale in 2008
and to adjust and optimize its route network, thereby increasing its
competitiveness and its ability to create more attractive products
and services to meet the needs of the market. The Group will introduce
eight A320 aircraft, five A321 aircraft, one A330-200 aircraft, three
A330-300 aircraft, one B737-700 aircraft, one B737-800 aircraft,
which will be delivered to the Group and commissioned into service
this year. However, the planned delivery schedule for two B787
aircraft has been deferred due to delays imposed by the manufacturer
and a new delivery date has not yet been determined. It is believed
that the Group will benefit from increasing demand for air transport
in the region.

In view of the operating environment and the Group’s current position,
the Group will focus on the following aspects in 2008:

1. The Group will strengthen safety supervision and build up a
system of safety management, so as to ensure safety production
to progress in a steady and orderly way.

2.  The Group will innovate servicing ideas, improve the service-
providing system, extend “Experience the Air Culture of China
Eastern Airlines” and enhance the brand image of the Company.
The Group will continue to keep its flights on-time. While striving
for a higher on-time rate, the Group will also strengthen and
improve irregular flight service. The Group will enhance the
standard of its service in upper class cabins and focus on
providing personalized services. The Group will do its utmost to
meet the transportation needs related to the Beijing Olympic
Games.

Chairman’s Statement EER{EHE
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Chairman’s Statement EERHEE

In terms of marketing, the Group will develop a long-term plan
for its route network, further optimize the structure of the
route network, and arrange flights in a scientific and reasonable
way, put more effort into developing the transit business,
coordinate with the construction of the Shanghai aviation hub,
increase the earnings level through the network and improve
the operating conditions of international flights, accelerate
electronic business to extend the function of selling electronic
tickets on the website and promote online self-service check-in.
The Group will actively promote the “95808” customer service
hotline in the destinations that it serves, further improve its
sales and service functions, improve its centralised freight
transport operations, comprehensively promote the freight
information system, and strengthen its combined transport and
trans-shipment services to increase revenues.

C MISEHTTE - RN AR AR K
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The Group will continue to manage strictly the overall budget, M- BEBRKEHEEEEIE  MEKA
strengthen cost control, increase cash flow efficiency, actively TH c IREESMERE - BIRH
extend financing channels, strengthen corporate risk TREEE - BT ERRER -
management, control financial risks and reduce operation risks. TH e EER - BRIELERER -

The Group will implement standardized management, develop T BITHREMEERE  BEEE - X

scientifically, inject more capital into training, accelerate the
cultivation of talent, continue to promote IT development and
promote energy-saving and emission-reducing strategies.

FIRA  IRAS BERE - 4
BHEEITIZR - R EHEESRRE

RE& AANBRRARBEFE ([EF

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, I
would like to express my gratitude to all of the shareholders.

&) MFEMRRRTRBEOHE

Li Fenghua, = X3

Chairman EER

Shanghai, the PRC RE

14 April 2008 —EENFHA+MA
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Review of Operations and Management's Discussion and Analysis #%EIBR ER BN RED T

Cao Jianxiong, President

B BEE

In 2007, the Group operated a total of 467 routes, of which 351
were domestic routes, 18 were Hong Kong routes, and 98 were
international routes (including 14 international cargo routes). The
Group operated approximately 6,275 scheduled flights per week,
serving a total of 138 domestic and foreign cities. In 2007, the
Group added a total of 20 aircraft to its fleet, including the purchase
of three EMB145 aircraft and the finance lease of two A319 aircraft,
two A320 aircraft, four A321 aircraft, one A330-200 aircraft, five
A330-300 aircraft, two B737-700 aircraft and one B747F freighter.
As at 31 December 2007, the Group operated a fleet of 223 aircraft,
including 197 passenger jets each with a seating capacity of over
100 seats and 11 jet freighters.
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Review of Operations and Management's Discussion and Analysis & EIER EEE#

The following table sets forth details of our operating fleet as of 31 TR TEHEZE_ZZLF+_A=1+—
December 2007: AARSEEERFAE R -

As of 31 December 2007
BE-_ZEZELtF+-A=+—HH#EHEA
Number of Aircraft Number of Total
Owned and under Aircraft under Number of
Model Finance Leases Operating Leases Aircraft

- %idl BERBMERE KEMER o

A340-600
A340-300
A330-300
A330-200
A300-600
A321
A320
A319
MD-90
B737-800
B737-700
B737-300
B767-300
EMB145
CRJ-200
A300F
B747F
MD-11F

Total PR
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Review of Operations and Management's Discussion and Analysis £ EIER &

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

The following discussion and analysis should be read together with our
audited financial statements and the accompanying notes prepared in
accordance with IFRS that are included elsewhere in this annual report.
The financial data presented in this section are derived from our
audited financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Revenues. Our revenues increased by 12.99% from RMB37,634 million
in 2006 to RMB42,521 million in 2007 (net of the applicable PRC
business tax). This increase was primarily due to an increase in our
capacity resulting from our acquisition of other aircraft and an
increase in our average daily aircraft utilization rate.

Traffic revenues increased by 12.70% from RMB36,065 million in
2006 to RMB40,651 million in 2007. Our average daily aircraft
utilization rate was 9.8 hours in 2007, representing an increase of
0.4 hours compared to the same period in 2006.

Passenger revenues, which accounted for 86.50% of our total traffic
revenues in 2007, increased by 15.52% from RMB30,440 million in
2006 to RMB35,165 million in 2007, primarily due to an increase in
the number of passengers carried.

Our domestic passenger revenues (excluding Hong Kong passenger
revenues), which accounted for 61.84% of our total passenger
revenues in 2007, increased by 14.84% from RMB18,947 million in
2006 to RMB21,747 million in 2007. This increase was primarily
driven by our domestic passenger transportation business. Compared
to 2006, our domestic passenger traffic increased (as measured in
revenue passenger-kilometers, or RPKs) by 13.49% in 2007. Our
domestic passenger load factor increased from 73.26% in 2006 to
76.88% in 2007. Our domestic passenger yield was RMB0.61 in 2007
per passenger-kilometer, which was the same as in 2006.

Hong Kong passenger revenues, which accounted for 6.09% of our
total passenger revenues in 2007, decreased by 11.04% from RMB2,498
million in 2006 to RMB2,143 million in 2007. Hong Kong passenger
traffic (as measured in RPKs) decreased by 6.15% in 2007, compared
to 2006. We decreased the passenger capacity on our Hong Kong
routes by 8.63% in 2007. Our Hong Kong passenger load factor
increased from 63.39% in 2006 to 65.12% in 2007. Our Hong Kong
passenger yield decreased from RMB0.68 in 2006 to RMB0.65 in 2007
per passenger-kilometer, reflecting decreases in air fares. International
passenger revenues, which accounted for 32.06% of our total
passenger revenues in 2007, increased by 24.11% from RMB8,995
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million in 2006 to RMB11,275 million in 2007. This increase was
primarily due to an increase in our international passenger traffic
resulting from increases in our capacity. An increase in our
international passenger yield also contributed to the increase of our
international passenger revenues. Our international passenger traffic
(as measured in RPKs) increased by 18.78% in 2007, compared to
2006. Our international passenger capacity increased by 19.12% in
2007 compared with 2006. Our international passenger load factor
decreased from 69.64% in 2006 to 69.44% in 2007. Our international
passenger yield increased from RMB0.58 in 2006 to RMB0.61 in 2007
per passenger-kilometer, reflecting increases in air fares.

We generate cargo and mail revenues from the transportation of
cargo and mail on our designated cargo aircraft as well as from the
carriage of cargo and mail on our passenger aircraft. Revenues from
cargo and mail operations, which accounted for 13.50% of our total
traffic revenues in 2007, decreased by 2.48% from RMB5,625 million
in 2006 to RMB5,486 million in 2007. Our cargo and mail traffic (as
measured in revenue freight tonne-kilometers, or RFTKs) increased
by 6.96% from 2,444 million RFTKs in 2006 to 2,614 million RFTKs in
2007. Our cargo and mail capacity (as measured in available freight
tonne-kilometers, or AFTKs) increased by 7.79% from 4,723 million
AFTKs in 2006 to 5,091 million AFTKs in 2007. Cargo yield decreased
from RMB2.30 in 2006 to RMB2.10 in 2007 per cargo tonne-kilometer
primarily due to fare decreases resulting from intensified market
competition.

Our other operating revenues are primarily generated from airport
ground services and ticket handling services. Airport ground services
include loading and unloading of cargo, aircraft cleaning and ground
transportation of cargo and passenger luggage for aircraft flying to
or from Honggiao Airport and Pudong International Airport. We are
currently the principal provider of airport ground services at both
Honggiao Airport and Pudong International Airport. Our other
operating revenues increased by 19.18% from RMB1,569 million in
2006 to RMB1,870 million in 2007 due to the increase in ticket
refund charges and the revenue generated from airport ground
services.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007
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Operating Expenses. Our total operating expenses increased by 4.96%
from RMB41,050 million in 2006 to RMB43,087 million in 2007
primarily due to our business expansion and a significant increase in
aviation fuel expenses resulting from increased fuel prices. Our total
operating expenses as a percentage of our revenues decreased from
109.11% in 2006 to 101.32% in 2007.

Aviation fuel expenses increased by 11.08% from RMB13,609 million
in 2006 to RMB15,117 million in 2007. This increase was primarily a
result of rising fuel prices, the increase in flying hours and mileage
and our business expansion in 2007. In 2007, we consumed a total
of 2.55 million tonnes of aviation fuel, representing an increase of
9.53% compared to 2006. Compared to 2006, the weighted average
fuel prices paid by the Group in 2007 rose to RMB5,879 per tonne,
representing an increase of approximately 1.71%. Aviation fuel
expense accounted for 35.08% of our total operating expenses in
2007, as compared to 33.27% in 2006.

Aircraft operating lease expenses decreased by 3.52% from RMB2,955
million in 2006 to RMB2,851 million in 2007. The decrease was
mainly due to the expiry of operating leases of certain aircraft in
2007 and appreciation of the Renminbi against the US dollar. The
number of the aircraft operated by us increased from 205 as of 31
December 2006 to 223 as of 31 December 2007. Depreciation and
amortization expenses increased by 4.67% from RMB4,597 million in
2006 to RMB4,812 million in 2007 primarily due to the expansion of
the scale of the Group’s operation and the introduction of additional
aircraft.

Other operating leases amounted to RMB293 million, representing an
increase of 5.83% which was attributable to the increase in the
number of leased premises resulting from the addition of overseas
offices.

Wages, salaries and benefits increased by 22.31% from RMB3,538
million in 2006 to RMB4,327 million in 2007, primarily due to the
increase in the number of our employees following the expansion of
our core business operations, the improvement of basic salaries and
the increase in flying hour payments resulting from the increase in
pilots” flying hours. The total number of our employees increased by
5.43% from 38,392 as of 31 December 31 2006 to 40,477 as of 31
December 2007.
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Take-off and landing charges, which accounted for 11.96% of our
total operating expenses in 2007, increased by 3.71% from RMB4,989
million in 2006 to RMB5,174 million in 2007 primarily due to the
expansion of our business and the increase in the number of our
flights, while partially offset by a decrease in the average take-off
and landing charges resulting from an increase in the number of
domestic flights. The number of our flights increased from
approximately 340,000 in 2006 to approximately 370,000 in 2007.

Aircraft maintenance expenses decreased by 9.63% from RMB2,647
million in 2006 to RMB2,392 million in 2007. This was principally
due to the timing of overhauls of aircraft under operating leases.

Food and beverage expenses increased by 4.04% from RMB1,188
million in 2006 to RMB1,236 million in 2007. This increase was
primarily due to a 11.76% increase in the number of passengers
carried from approximately 35.04 million in 2006 to approximately
39.16 million in 2007.

Office, administration and other expenses increased by 8.90% from
RMB3,621 million in 2006 to RMB3,943 million in 2007 primarily
attributable to the Group’s business expansion, an increase in overseas
crew expenses, an increase in settlement fees due to flight delays
resulting from the additional number of flights and an increase in
relevant expenses due to the increase in the number of retiring
staff.

Selling and marketing expenses were RMB1,805 million, representing
an increase of 4.00% over the same period of 2006. This was due to
the increase in agency business handling fees and distribution system
service fees as a result of increase in the number of passengers
carried as well as an increase in the price of overseas distribution
systems.

Ground services and other charges increased by 38.47% from RMB162
million in 2006 to RMB224 million in 2007 primarily due to the
expansion of our logistics business and the increase in the jet fuel
price.

Civil aviation infrastructure levies increased by 12.23% from RMB696
million in 2006 to RMB782 million in 2007.

The market price for certain aircraft and flight equipment classified
an non-current assets held for sale have been further decreased
during the year and hence impairment loss of RMB131 million was
recorded for the aircraft.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007
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Other Operating Income. The Group’s other operating income was
primarily generated from government subsidies and fair value gains
on financial instruments held by us. The net amount of our other
operating income increased from RMB424 million in 2006 to RMB605
million in 2007 primarily due to an increase in government subsidies
from RMB462 million in 2006 to RMB488 million in 2007. See Note 6
to our audited consolidated financial statements.

Finance Costs. The Group’s finance costs increased by 12.06% from
RMB1,766 million in 2006 to RMB1,979 million in 2007 primarily due
to interest expense of RMB732 million on finance lease obligations,
representing an increase of 23.68%, and the interest expense of
RMB1,629 million on loans from banks and other financial institutions,
representing an increase of 3.07% from that of 2006. However, the
above amounts were partly offset by the recognition of a net exchange
gain of RMB2,023 million arising on the retranslation of US dollar
denominated liabilities.

Net profit. As a result of the foregoing operating results, the net
profit attributable to shareholders was RMB269 million in 2007, as
compared to a net loss of RMB3,313 million in 2006.

Property, Plant and Equipment. The Group had approximately
RMB47,548 million of fixed assets as of 31 December 2007, including
aircraft, engines and flight equipment with a value of approximately
RMB43,036 million. Property, plant and equipment are initially
recognized at cost and are subsequently stated at revalued amount,
being their fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment is affected by market
conditions and global economic factors that are not within our control.

The determination of fair value requires significant judgment,
including judgment on valuations by our management and/or by
independent professional appraisers. Our Directors have reviewed the
carrying value of our property, plant and equipment as of 31 December
2007. An impairment loss of RMB131 million was recognised for
certain aircraft and related equipment reclassified to non-current
assets held for sale. Except for this amount, the value of other
assets are not materially different from their carrying amounts.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We typically finance our working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and both short and
longer term bank loans. As a result, our liquidity could be adversely
affected to the extent there is a significant decrease in demand for
our services or if there is any delay in obtaining bank loans. As of
31 December 2006 and 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB1,987 million and RMB1,655 million, respectively. In 2006 and
2007, our net cash inflows generated from operating activities were
RMB1,339 million and RMB2,695 million, respectively, while our net
cash outflows used in investment activities were RMB1,679 million
and RMB1,756 million, respectively. In the past two years, our primary
cash requirements for investment activities were related to our
acquisitions and upgrades of aircraft and flight equipment as well as
debt repayments.

In 2006 and 2007, advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft
were RMB7,669 million and RMB6,696 million, respectively, while
additions of aircraft and flight equipment were RMB4,561 million
and RMB3,737 million, respectively. We financed the additions to
our aircraft fleet and flight equipment primarily through lease
arrangements, bank loans and funds generated from operations. Funds
generated from disposal of older aircraft and flight equipment and
other fixed assets and equipment (including by way of exchange)
totaled RMB328 million and RMB71 million in 2006 and 2007,
respectively. Our net cash inflow generated from financing activities
was RMB26,979 million in 2007, primarily from the proceeds from
bank loans.

We generally operate with a working capital deficit. As of 31 December
2007, our current liabilities exceeded our current assets by RMB26,074
million. In comparison, our current liabilities exceeded our current
assets by RMB24,616 million as of 31 December 2006. The increase
in our current liabilities in 2007 was primarily due to the increase in
borrowings for payment of advances on aircraft and flight equipment,
other payables and accrued expenses, including accrued fuel cost,
accrued aircraft overhaul expenses and accrued salaries, wages and
benefits, and sales in advance of carriage. Short-term loans
outstanding totalled RMB13,176 million and RMB15,189 million as of
31 December 2006 and 2007, respectively. Long-term bank loans
outstanding totalled RMB14,932 million and RMB14,675 million as of
31 December 2006 and 2007, respectively. Long-term loans payable

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007
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within two years, from three to five years and beyond five years
were RMB9,232 million, RMB4,217 million and RMB1,226 million,
respectively, as of 31 December 2007, as compared to RMB5,894
million, RMB7,560 million and RMB1,478 million, respectively, as of
31 December 2006. Total lease obligations outstanding under our
finance leases as of 31 December 2006 and 2007 were RMB11,949
million and RMB16,452 million, respectively. Our lease obligations
payable within two years, from three to five years and beyond five
years were RMB4,112 million, RMB4,205 million and RMB8,134 million,
respectively, as of 31 December 2007, as compared to RMB4,842
million, RMB2,602 million and RMB4,506 million, respectively, as of
31 December 2006.

We have, and in the future may continue to have, substantial debts.
As of 31 December 2006 and 2007, our long-term debt to equity
ratio was 7.7 and 8.6, respectively. The interest expenses associated
with these debts might impair our future profitability. We expect
that cash from operations and bank borrowings will be sufficient to
meet our operating cash flow requirements, although events that
materially affect our operating results can also have a negative
impact on liquidity. We have entered into credit facility agreements
with certain Chinese banks to meet our future working capital needs.
We have arranged, and we believe that we will continue to be able
to arrange, short-term bank loans with domestic and foreign-funded
banks in China as necessary to meet our working capital requirements.
However, our ability to obtain financing may be affected by our
financial position and leverage and credit ratings, as well as by
prevailing economic conditions and the cost of financing generally.
If we are unable to obtain financing for a significant portion of our
capital requirements, our ability to acquire new aircraft and to expand
our operations may be adversely affected.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our aircraft orders as of 31 December 2007 included commitments to
acquire 39 aircraft to be delivered in 2008 and 2009. We expect our
capital expenditures for aircraft and related equipment, including
deposits, through 2010 to be in aggregate approximately RMB50,853
million, including RMB17,127 million in 2008 and RMB15,057 million
in 2009, in each case subject to contractually stipulated increases or
any increase relating to inflation. We generally finance our purchase
of aircraft through finance leases and bank loans secured by our
assets. As of 31 December 2007, the total value of our mortgaged
assets increased by 8.92%, from RMB9,110 million as of 31 December
2006 to RMB9,923 million as of 31 December 2007. Construction of
our facilities at the Pudong International Airport and the purchase
of maintenance equipment and other property and equipment will
continue to require additional capital expenditures in 2008. We plan
to finance our other capital commitments through a combination of
funds generated from operations, existing credit facilities, bank loans,
leasing arrangements and other external financing arrangements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective
of significant judgments and uncertainties and potentially result in
materially different results under different assumptions and
conditions.

Our audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS. Our principal accounting policies are set forth
in Note 2 to our audited consolidated financial statements. IFRS
requires that we adopt the accounting policies and make estimates
that our Directors believe are most appropriate in the circumstances
for the purposes of giving a true and fair view of our results and
financial position. However, different policies, estimates and
assumptions in critical areas could lead to materially different results.
The critical accounting policies adopted and estimates made in the
preparation of these financial statements are identified as follows:

Estimated impairment of goodwill - We test annually whether goodwill
has been impaired in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2(l) to our audited consolidated financial statements. The
recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (see Note 16 to our audited consolidated financial
statements). In 2007, after reviewing the business environment as
well as our objectives and past performance, management concluded
that there was no material impairment of goodwill.
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Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment - We have
made substantial investments in tangible long-lived assets. We
conduct impairment reviews of these assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.

Determining whether an asset is impaired requires significant
judgment, including our estimates of the future cash flows attributable
to the asset and the appropriate discount rate. If different judgments
or estimates had been utilized, material differences could have
resulted in the amount and timing of the impairment charge, if any.

As discussed in Note 2(m) to our audited consolidated financial
statements, property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at
cost and is subsequently stated at fair value, based on periodic
valuations less subsequent accumulated depreciation. If the
subsequent fair value differ materially from carrying amounts, the
carrying amounts will be adjusted to the fair value. Their recorded
value is impacted by management judgment, including valuations
performed by management and/or independent professional valuers,
estimates of useful lives, residual values and impairment charges. If
different judgments or estimates had been utilised, material
differences could have resulted in the amount of revaluation and
related depreciation charges.
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Revenue recognition - As discussed in Note 2(f), passenger, cargo
and mail revenues are recognized as traffic revenues when the
transportation services are provided. The value of unused passenger
tickets is included in current liabilities as sales in advance of carriage.
Unused tickets are recognized in traffic revenues based on current
estimates. Management periodically evaluates the balance of the
sales in advance of carriage account and records any adjustments,
which can be material, in the period the evaluation is completed.
These adjustments result from differences between the estimates of
certain revenue transactions, the timing of recognizing revenue for
any unused air tickets and the related sales price, and are impacted
by various factors, including a complex pricing structure and interline
agreements throughout the industry, which affect the timing of
revenue recognition.

Maintenance and overhaul costs - In respect of aircraft under
operating leases, the Group has the responsibility to fulfil certain
return conditions under relevant leases. Provision for the estimated
cost of these return condition checks in made on a straight line
basis over the term of the leases.

In respect of aircraft and engines owned by our Company or held
under finance leases, costs of overhaul are capitalized as a component
of property, plant and equipment and are depreciated over the
appropriate maintenance cycles. Upon completion of an overhaul,
any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous overhaul
is derecognised and charged to the income statement.
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Retirement benefits - We participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes organized by the municipal governments of
respective provinces. We also operate and maintain defined retirement
benefit plans which provides retirees with benefits including
transportation subsidies, social activity subsidies as well as other
welfare. As discussed in Note 2(w) to our audited consolidated
financial statements, the cost of providing the aforementioned
benefits in the defined retirement benefit plans is actuarially
determined and recognized over the employees’ service period by
utilizing various actuarial assumptions and using the projected unit
credit method. These assumptions include, without limitation, the
selection of discount rate, annual rate of increase of per capita
benefit payment and employee turnover rate. The discount rate is
based on management’s review of local high quality corporate bonds.
The annual rate of increase of benefit payment is based on the
general local economic conditions. The employee turnover rate is
based on historical trends in our Company. See Note 34 to our
audited consolidated financial statements for additional information
regarding the retirement benefit plans.

Deferred taxation - While deferred tax liabilities are provided in full
on all taxable temporary differences, deferred tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
In assessing the amount of deferred tax assets that need to be
recognized, we consider future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that our estimates
of projected future taxable income and benefits from available tax
strategies are changed, or changes in current tax regulations are
enacted that would impact the timing or extent of our ability to
utilize the tax benefits of net operating loss carried forward in the
future, adjustments to the recorded amount of net deferred tax
assets and taxation expense are made.

Current tax - We make provision for current tax based on the estimated
income tax liabilities. The estimated income tax liabilities are
primarily computed based on the tax filings as prepared by our
Company and based on management’s interpretation of relevant tax
rulings.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

We have debts denominated in U.S. dollars, Japanese yen or Euro in
addition to our debts denominated in Renminbi. We generate a
significant amount of foreign currency revenues, including U.S. dollars,
Japanese yen, Euro, Korean won, Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars,
Australian dollars, and Thai Baht, from ticket sales made in overseas
offices. Pursuant to current foreign exchange regulations in China,
we may retain our foreign currency earnings subject to the approval
of SAFE. We have also designated certain personnel to manage the
foreign currency risks through forward foreign exchange contracts.
We use interest rate swaps to reduce risks related to changes in
market interest rates. As of 31 December 2007, the notional amount
of the outstanding interest rate swap agreements was approximately
US$624 million, compared to US$631 million as of 31 December
2006. These interest rate swap agreements will expire between 2008
and 2016. In addition, we use currency forward contracts to reduce
risks related to changes in currency exchange rates in respect of
ticket sales and expenses denominated in foreign currencies. As of
31 December 2007, the notional amount of the outstanding currency
forward contracts was approximately US$33 million, which was the
same as of 31 December 2006.

Pursuant to IFRS, our monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are required to be translated into Renminbi at the
year end at exchange rates announced by the People’s Bank of China.
The net exchange gains or losses are recognized and reflected in the
income statement for the relevant year. Any fluctuation of the
exchange rates between Renminbi and foreign currencies may
materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations. Primarily due to an appreciation of Renminbi against
certain foreign currencies including the U.S. dollar, Japanese yen
and Euro following the measures introduced by the PRC government
in July 2005 to reform the Renminbi exchange rate regime, we
recognized a net exchange gain of RMB2,023 million in 2007,
compared to a net exchange gain of RMB888 million in 2006.

TAXATION

We are subject to income tax at the rate of 15%. Our effective tax
rate, however, may be higher than the rate of 15% because some of
our subsidiaries were incorporated in jurisdictions where the applicable
income tax rate is 33% rather than 15%. We had carried forward tax
losses of approximately RMB5,849 million and RMB5,380 million as
of 31 December 2006 and 2007, which can be used to set off against
future taxable income before 2008 and 2012, respectively.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the audited financial
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

GROUP ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

The Company is one of the three largest air carriers in the PRC based
on tonne-kilometres and number of passengers carried in 2007 and
is the primary air carrier serving Shanghai, the largest economic,
trading and financial centre of the PRC. The results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2007 and the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at that date, prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and PRC
Accounting Regulations, are set out in the financial statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 20
to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal
business is as follows:
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PRC Accounting

Regulations IFRS

PEARLANER B B

SR B 7% 8 5 % B

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

AR®ETFT AR®F T

Domestic H A 24,756,841 24,125,288
Hong Kong Special Administrative EBEFRITHIE

Region (“Hong Kong”) (8481 2,751,386 2,694,857

International 5 B 16,020,334 15,701,081

Total it 43,528,561 42,521,226

DIVIDENDS

As at 31 December 2007, according to the financial statements
prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations, the total
accumulated losses of the Company in the year 2007 amounted to
RMB-2,699 million. The Board of the Company does not recommend
payment of any dividend for the financial year ended 31 December
2007. The Company will not convert funds from the common reserve
to increase its share capital during this period.
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SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Share Reform Plan of the Company was approved in the relevant
shareholders” meeting of the holders of A shares of the Share Reform
Plan of the Company held on 18 December 2006, and the trading in
the A shares was resumed on 12 January 2007. After the completion
of the Share Reform, the change in the shareholding structure was
as follows:

BRALERE

RABEDERENREKE _TTRET
—AtN\RBRNKED BREARTS
HERREZEFHRE YN _TTLHF
—ATZHEABRTISERR S » BEST
FATR - NRABRBAGEREE RS

Approximate

Total number percentage of

of Shares shareholding (%)
#165 Be R
B% 10 4 58 Lt Bl (%)
1. A shares AR%

(a) Listed shares with trading (a) ARE &MY
moratorium i A 2,904,000,000 59.67

(b) Listed shares without trading (a) ERE &M
moratorium 88 AR 396,000,000 8.13
2. H shares HA% 1,566,950,000 32.20
3. Total number of shares % 48 58 4,866,950,000 100.00

For details of the Share Reform, please see the paragraph headed
“Share Reform” below.

SHARE REFORM

Pursuant to the “Guidelines for Promoting the Reform and Opening-
up and Sustained Development of the Capital Market” promulgated
by the State Council of the PRC and the provisions of relevant
regulations promulgated by China Securities Regulatory Commission
(“CSRC”), the Company published the “Indicative Announcement in
Relation to Share Reform” on 20 November 2006 and the shares of
the Company were suspended from trading for implementation of the
Share Reform; the “Announcement on the Share Reform Proposal
Plan” was published on 22 November 2006; the “Announcement on
the Revised Share Reform Plan” was published on 1 December 2006;
the “Revised Share Reform Plan approved by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission” was published on 13
December 2006. On 18 December 2006, the Company convened the
Relevant Shareholders’” Meeting of A Share Market in relation to the
Share Reform to approve the Revised Share Reform Plan of the
Company, and the “Announcement on the Results of the Relevant
Shareholders’ Meeting in Relation to Share Reform” was published on
the following day; the “Share Reform Proposal Approved by the
Ministry of Commerce” was published on 5 January 2007. On 9 January
2007, the Company published the “Announcement on Implementation
of Share Reform Plan”.
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Each holder of circulating A shares of the Company whose name
appeared on the register of members on 10 January 2007 was offered
3.2 shares as a consideration by China Eastern Air Holding Company
(“CEA Holding”) for every 10 circulating A shares held by it. The
original non-circulating shares held by CEA Holding were granted
the status of listing from 12 January 2007. However, there is currently
no real circulation of shares due to the trading moratorium.

Other than statutory undertakings, CEA Holding undertook that it
would not engage in the trading of the non-circulating shares held
by it within 36 months from the day of granting listing status of
non-circulating shares of the Company.

For details, please refer to the related announcements published by
the Company.

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2007, the total number of registered shareholders
of the Company was 168,466, of which 167,709 are holders of A
shares (including unlisted State-owned legal person shares and listed
A shares), and 757 are holders of H shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, each of the following persons, not
being a Director, chief executive, supervisor of the Company
(“Supervisor”) or member of the Company’s senior management, had,
as at 31 December 2007, an interest and/or short position in the
Company’s shares or underlying shares (as the case may be) which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SF0”), or was otherwise, as at 31 December
2007, interested in 5% or more of any class of the then issued share
capital of the Company, or was otherwise, as at 31 December 2007, a
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”)) of the Company:

Approximate
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Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage

percentage
shareholding in
the Company's

shareholding in
the Company’s

shareholding in
the Company's

Name of Nature of Number of total issued total issued total issued
shareholder shares held shares held share capital A shares H shares  Short position
ERfTA BRTAR E#THR
BRAHKRE AynRE AyNRE
BX%H RHEH FERY b Bl te Bl b Bl *R
CEA Holding A shares 2,904,000,000 59.67% 88% - -
RHEHE ARk
Singapore Airlines A shares 2,913,999,969 59.87% 88.3% = =
Limited (Note 1)
MIRMZERR (K1) AR
Temasek Holdings A shares 2,913,999,969 59.87% 88.3% - -
(Private) Limited
(Note 1)
(Kzt1) A%
CEA Holding (Note 2) H shares 2,984,850,000 61.33% - 190.49% =
REE (fi2) HAR
Singapore Airlines H shares 2,984,850,000 61.33% - 190.49% -
Limited (Note 2)
MMEMZERR (Bat2)  HER
Temasek Holdings H shares 2,984,850,000 61.33% - 190.49% -
(Private) Limited
(Note 2)
(Kizt2) HAiX
HKSCC Nominees H shares 1,544,484,799 31.73% - 98.57% -
Limited (Notes 3 to 8)
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Notes:

Based on the information available to the Directors as at 31 December 2007
(including such information as was available on the website of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange) and so far as they are aware and understand, as at 31
December 2007:

1.  Pursuant to section 317 and 318 of the SFO, by virtue of the
Shareholders Agreement entered into between CEA Holding, Singapore
Airlines Limited (“SIA”) and Lentor Investments Pte. Ltd. (“Temasek”),
(i) SIA and Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited are deemed to be
interested in the 2,904,000,000 A shares (representing approximately
88% of the then total issued A shares) held by CEA Holding in the
capacity of beneficial owner and (ii) SIA and Temasek Holdings (Private)
Limited are also deemed to be interested in the 9,999,969 A shares
(representing approximately 0.30% of the then total issued A shares)
deemed to be interested by Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited. Such
9,999,969 A shares were held by Temasek Fullerton Alpha Pte. Ltd. in
the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was 100% held by
Fullerton (Private) Limited, which in turn was ultimately 100% held by
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited.

2. Pursuant to sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, by virtue of the
Shareholders Agreement entered into between CEA Holding, SIA and
Temasek, each of CEA Holding, SIA and Temasek Holdings (Private)
Limited is deemed to be interested in all of the 2,984,850,000 H
shares of the Company being the total of (i) 1,100,418,000 H shares
deemed to be interested by CEA Holding, (ii) 1,235,005,263 H shares
deemed to be interested by SIA, and (iii) 649,426,737 H shares deemed
to be interested by Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited.

3. Among the 1,544,484,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited,
189,078,000 H shares (representing approximately 12.07% of the
Company’s then total issued H shares) were held by China National
Aviation Corporation (Group) Limited in the capacity of beneficial owner,
which in turn was ultimately 100% controlled by China National Aviation
Holding Company.

4.  Among the 1,544,484,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited,
78,652,000 H shares (representing approximately 5.02% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by Citadel Equity Fund Ltd. in
the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was 100% controlled by
Citadel Holdings Ltd., which in turn was ultimately 80.45% controlled
by Citadel Kensington Global Strategies Fund Limited.
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A RER9,999,9698%AR% ((h AR A R E
B B 341 TARR AR 2R 400.30%) P HE A S o
29,999,969 % AR% = FiTemasek Fullerton
Alpha Pte. Ltd. AE =B AN FDIFE o
Fullerton (Private) Limited# /5 Temasek
Fullerton Alpha Pte. Ltd. 100%#& % *
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited B! &% 4%
# AFullerton (Private) Limited 100%#E
2o

2. WBIBFEFEEEGOIEINTIERESSIE
EREMER - FIANATIHEZNR
Hipek - BMEE - FAMTemasek
Holdings (Private) Limited & B #7457 AR A
NEI2E2,984,850,000 A% H % AR A #E
@ BT SEAR (Y EMEEERA
PEEHEZ5H91,100,418,000/% HA% : (ii) FTHA
AR A AEZERY1,235,005,263AXHAY
(iii)Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited 4%
AR AETR 649,426,737 IXHAY. ©

3. HBEBPREH (REBA) BRARFEAE
#91,544,484,799FFHA%H + 189,078,000/%
HIE (AR AIERBE ZHITHRAEHLY
12.07%) B BN (EE) BRARIAE
HEEANFDEE - MPEREEE
ARRIRKEEREME (EB) BRA
A)100%HEz o

4 ABBTREH (KEAN)BRQARFE

91,544,484, 799X HAZH -+ 78,652,000/%H
B (EAR DB SR E BEITH IREED
5.02%) A Citadel Equity Fund Ltd.JAE 25 %
EARF DA - Citadel Holdings Ltd.7
#liCitadel Equity Fund Ltd. 100%#£2% M
Citadel Kensington Global Strategies Fund
Limited Bl 5 42 % £ Citadel Holdings Ltd.
80.45% 1w ©



Among the 1,544,484,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited,
78,652,000 H shares (representing approximately 5.02% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by Citadel Limited Partnership in
the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was ultimately 100%
controlled by Citadel Investment Group, LLC.

Among the 1,544,484,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited,
78,652,000 H shares (representing approximately 5.02% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by Citadel Investment Group
(Hong Kong) Limited in the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn
was ultimately 100% controlled by Citadel Investment Group, LLC.

Among the 1,544,484,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited,
Barclays PLC had, through controlled corporations, an interest in an
aggregate of 94,154,370 H shares of the Company (representing
approximately 6.01% of the Company’s then total issued H shares).
Barclays PLC was interested in the aforesaid 94,154,370 H shares of
the Company in the manner as follows:

(a) 348,970 H shares (representing approximately 0.02% of the
Company’s then total issued H shares) were held by Barclays Global
Investors Ltd in the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn
was 100% controlled by Barclays Global Investors UK Holdings
Limited, which in turn was 92.3% controlled by Barclays Bank
PLC, which in turn was ultimately 100% controlled by Barclays
PLC;

(b) 6,798,000 H shares (representing approximately 0.43% of the
Company’s then total issued H shares) were held by Barclays Global
Investors, N.A. in the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn
was 100% controlled by Barclays California Corporation, which in
turn was 100% controlled by Barclays Global Investors Finance
Limited, which in turn was 100% controlled by Barclays Global
Investors UK Holdings Limited, which in turn was 92.3% controlled
by Barclays Bank PLC, which in turn was ultimately 100% controlled
by Barclays PLC; and
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HEBPREE (REAN) BRAREE
f91,544,484,799fHA% A + 78,652,000/%H
B (AR REE B BEITH RABEL
5.02%) fCitadel Limited Partnership AE
HHEBANEMDRFA  MCitadel
Investment Group, LLCRI 5% 4% % 5 Citadel
Limited Partnership 100%/Ez °

HEBTFREE (REAN) BRAGEE
791,544,484, 799AXHARH + 78,652,000/%H
BUEARBERFEEITHRAEAKLD
5.02%) FCitadel Investment Group (Hong
Kong) Limited A BB AR FHIFH -
ifi Citadel Investment Group, LLCR S48
A (itadel Investment Group (Hong Kong)
Limited 100%# %5

HEBSTPREE (REA)BRAFES
#1,544,484,799/%HAX + Barclays PLCiE
BSPESAE B IF B AR F194,154,370
AEH AR (15 A B B B 3 THRR B 4
6.01%) ° Barclays PLCEBIA T A RIFAH
IR F94,154,370A% HA% :

(a) 348,970MKHAX AR RIBRE BT
HAR 4221 490.02%) E3Barclays Global
Investors LtdAEZ=EE A F 015
& - MmBarclays Global Investors UK
Holdings LimitedBl/#FHIBarclays
Global Investors Ltd 100%##25 M
Barclays Bank PLCEI#Z#Barclays
Global Investors UK Holdings Limited
92.3%E25 + MBarclays PLCEI S AR
ABarclays Bank PLC 100%## 25 :

(b) 6,798,000/%HAX (R~ A E R E 2
TTHIRABE4)0.43%) FBarclays
Global Investors, N.ALAE = A A
513%48 » MBarclays California
CorporationflJ#%#l|Barclays Global
Investors, N.A. 100%#z5 © M
Barclays Global Investors Finance
Limited BJ# #lBarclays California
Corporation 100%##£ %5 * MBarclays
Global Investors UK Holdings Limited
B#E#IBarclays Global Investors
Finance Limited 100%#2%5 + 1M
Barclays Bank PLCEI#Z#|Barclays
Global Investors UK Holdings Limited
92.3%##2% » MBarclays PLCAI& 42
#e#E B Barclays Bank PLC 100%##
= &

FERSHERGEBRAT —STLEFH
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(c) 87,007,400 H shares (representing approximately 5.55% of the (c) 87,007,400f8HAE Uh AR R A ERE
Company’s then total issued H shares) were held by Barclays Global EITHRR 4280 4)5.55%) FBarclays
Fund Advisors in the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn Global Fund Advisors LA BB A &
was 100% controlled by Barclays Global Investors, N.A., which in 2¥57%  MBarclays Global Investors,
turn was 100% controlled by Barclays California Corporation, which N.A.Bll#ZEHIBarclays Global Fund
in turn was 100% controlled by Barclays Global Investors Finance Advisors 100%7#& %  MBarclays
Limited, which in turn was 100% controlled by Barclays Global California Corporation AlJ#% #lBarclays
Investors UK Holdings Limited, which in turn was 92.3% controlled Global Investors, N.A. 100%## % * M
by Barclays Bank PLC, which in turn was ultimately 100% controlled Barclays Global Investors Finance
by Barclays PLC. Limited ¥ HIBarclays California

Corporation 100%# % * iMBarclays
Global Investors UK Holdings Limited
Bll#%2%#IBarclays Global Investors
Finance Limited 100%#%5 © M
Barclays Bank PLCEI#Z#IBarclays
Global Investors UK Holdings Limited
92.3%#E25 + MBarclays PLCRIIERAL
Barclays Bank PLC 100%# 5 °

8. Among the 1,544,484,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited, 8. HEBPREE (REA)BRARFA
78,553,400 H shares (representing approximately 5.01% of the Company’s #91,544,484,799R%HA% A + 78,553,400/%H
then total issued H shares) were held by INVESCO Hong Kong Limited I (B R RBEREEHITHREBELD
(previously known as INVESCO Asia Limited) in the capacity of investment 5.01%) FAINVESCO Hong Kong Limited (B
manager. FEINVESCO Asia Limited) LAY & A& IR0 &

(SR

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 Br Dt PR ERSl - RIBE FEEMER KHME

December 2007, among the 1,544,484,799 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees A RZETALFTA=1+T—0 &&

Limited, no other person had any interest or short position in the Company’s BHRREE (RBA)BRAAFAEN

shares or underlying shares (as the case may be) which would fall to be 1,544,484, 799K HARH - LA TR R AR

disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the AR (D (RGN E) B R POk
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. B mARR KR EIRRES LS G EXVES

F2RIDWARA BB AR FHE -
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According to the relevant disclosure requirements laid down by the
CSRC, as at the end of the reporting period, the 10 largest registered
shareholders and the 10 largest registered listed stock shareholders
on the register of members and their respective shareholdings are as

follows:

The 10 largest registered shareholders of the Company and
their respective shareholdings

RIBEHEARKMEE?

MBBRERE  RE

IR AR

CEEEELREE
A&

W&%%ﬂﬁﬁ‘lo% AR MAT10R
BRI EEREROT ¢

//IL

RRFA0B T HERRIFRER

Increase/
(Decrease)  Shareholding Charged or
Name of in shareholding at the end  Percentage Type of locked-up  Nature of
shareholders in the year of year (%)  shares shares  shares held
k6l ERDRE
BEEB FERER SRAEREE (%) REOEHR MRAEE ROME
1 CHINA EASTERN AIR HOLDING -96,000,000  2,904,000,000 59.6678 listed (subject to 0 A shares (subject to
COMPANY moratorium) moratorium)
RERFMESE AR B (BE) ARk (R &)
2 HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 5,034,500  1,544,484,799 31.7341  listed Unknown  H shares
BAERREE (KEA) B XA HE
BRAA
3 RMBHESEESREES 10,829,036 10,829,036 0.2225 listed Unknown A shares
BEna AE AR
4 BIBE £ 7l — HSBC— TEMASEK 9,999,969 9,999,969 0.2055 listed Unknown A shares
FULLERTON ALPHA PTE LTD B KA AR
5 AmmslkEES 6,042,224 6,042,224 0.1241  listed Unknown A shares
BEna AE AR
6 FERRRT-—PELH 5,235,008 5,235,008 0.1076 listed Unknown A shares
RERZENELRERS B RA AR
7 UBS AG 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.0740 listed Unknown A shares
BEna I
8 HERIT-FEER300 3,199,979 3,199,979 0.0658 listed Unknown A shares
BEEFREES B KA AR
9 @Eﬂ If&ﬁﬁ%iﬁi%ﬁ 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.0616 listed Unknown A shares
10 PERRBIT-BRER 2,499,981 2,499,981 0.0514 listed Unknown A shares
BRAGEFREES B KA AR

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among
the 10 largest shareholders: The Company is not aware of any related
party or concert party relationship among the above shareholders.

1104 B R BB BR R sk — B TEI RO -
A BARK B AR 2 PR e R R B (R =X
—EITERRER -
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The 10 largest registered listed stock shareholders of the
Company and their respective shareholdings

Name of shareholders

Report of Directors EE2RESE

AT AR EBRBRRRERER

Shareholding of
listed stocks at
the end of year

Nature of
shares held

FREER
BRRERE RERNHE EE
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 1,544,484,799 H sharesf%
EEPREE (REBA)ERRQF
RBNEEESFRERESD 10,829,036 A sharesf&
PR < @h-HSBC-TEMASEK FULLERTON 9,999,969 A sharesfi%
ALPHA PTE LTD
ARFE %Txﬁ%ﬁ 6,042,224 A sharesp&
B ERRIRIT — RIS A ARG E K 5,235,008 A sharesf&
i‘?ia’é%&ﬁ%ﬁ
UBS AG 3,600,000 A sharesfi%
P EIRETT — 32 E BR300 EiFE 3,199,979 A sharesf&
REHES
FRERIEIT - RIREEEESE 3,000,000 A sharesf&
PREERERIT-BREELERAR 2,499,981 A sharesf&
BEREES
%}Fﬁ EHREES 2,499,956 A sharesf&

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among
the 10 largest listed stock shareholders: The Company is not aware
of any related party or concert party relationship among the above
listed stock shareholders.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

There has been no change in the Company’s controlling shareholder
in the year.

CEA Holding is the parent company of the Company and its registered
capital amounts to RMB2,558,441,000. Mr. Li Fenghua is the legal
representative of CEA Holding. CEA Holding’s scope of business
includes manage all State-owned assets and State-owned equity of
its group and its investment enterprises which are formed by State
investment. As at 31 December 2007, no share of the Company held
by CEA Holding was pledged.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Save as otherwise disclosed, during the year ended 31 December
2007, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities (“securities” having the
meaning ascribed thereto under paragraph 1 of Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules), without taking into account any issue of new securities.

SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE COMPANY AND THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES REQUIRED TO BE
FOLLOWED BY U.S. COMPANIES UNDER THE NEW YORK
STOCK EXCHANGE’'S LISTING STANDARDS

As a company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the New York
Stock Exchange (the “NYSE"), the Company is subject to not only
applicable PRC laws and regulations, including the PRC Company
Law, the PRC Securities Law, the Corporate Governance Standards for
Listed Companies and Guidance Opinions regarding the Establishment
of the Independent Director System in Listed Companies (the
“Independent Director Guidance”), but also Hong Kong laws and
regulations, including the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
and the SFO, as well as applicable U.S. Federal securities laws and
regulations, including the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934
including amendments and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The
Company is also subject to the listing standards of the NYSE to the
extent they apply to non-U.S. issuers. The Company is not required
to completely comply with all of the corporate governance listing
standards of the NYSE.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 303A.11 of the NYSE
Listed Company Manual, the following is a summary of the significant
differences between the Company’s corporate governance practices
and those required to be followed by U.S. companies under the
NYSE’s listing standards.

Section 303A.01 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that
listed companies must have a majority of independent Directors. As
a company listed in the PRC, the Company is subject to the
requirement under the Independent Director Guidance that at least
one-third of the Board of the Company be independent as determined
thereunder. As a company listed in Hong Kong, the Company is also
subject to the requirement under the Listing Rules that at least
three members of the Board of the Company shall be independent,
and at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company currently has five independent Directors out
of a total of ten Directors. The standards for establishing
independence set forth under either the Independent Director
Guidance or the Listing Rules differ from those set forth in the NYSE
Listed Company Manual.
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Section 303A.03 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that
listed companies must schedule reqgular executive sessions in which
non-management directors meet without management participation.
The Company is not required, under either the applicable PRC law or
the applicable Hong Kong law, to hold such executive sessions.

Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that
listed companies must have a nominating/corporate governance
committee composed entirely of independent directors. Currently,
the Company does not have a nominating/corporate governance
committee. The Company can choose to have one but is not required
to have such a committee under either the applicable PRC law or
Hong Kong law. Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual
also provides that the nominating/corporate governance committee
of a listed company must have a written charter that addresses the
committee’s purpose and responsibilities, which include, among
others, the development and recommendation of corporate governance
guidelines to the listed company’s board of directors. The Board of
the Company is directly responsible for developing the Company’s
corporate governance guidelines.

Section 303A.05 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that
listed companies must have a compensation committee composed
entirely of independent directors. The remuneration and appraisal
committee of the Company is composed of two independent non-
executive Directors and one non-executive Director.

Section 303A.10 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that
listed companies must adopt and disclose a code of business conduct
and ethics for directors, officers and employees. As required under
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company has adopted a code of
ethics that is applicable to the Company’s Directors, Supervisors,
President, Chief Financial Officer and other senior managers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Under the articles of association of the Company and the PRC laws,
no pre-emptive rights exist which require the Company to offer new
shares to existing shareholders on a pro rata basis.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the Directors believe
that the Company has at all times during the year ended 31 December
2007 maintained the relevant applicable minimum percentage of
listed securities as prescribed by Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Names, relevant information of and shares held by the Directors, the
Supervisors and members of senior management of the Company
during the year and as at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Number of listed
A shares of the
Company held -

ES  ESRSREEAERR

B

ARTBE-TELET-A=+—AE
¥ ERREREEARMLS  AHEH

KFFRIBRT -

Capacity in
which the

Effective date and
expiry date of

Name Position Age personal interest A shares were held appointment
FRAEAE
REBAR

& B % £ R - EA#ER FrisAR & 6 EHELBH

Li Fenghua Chairman, Non-executive Director 58 6,600 (Notel) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010

reE EER FROTES 6,600 (FE#1) BREAA 2007.6-2010.6

Li Jun Vice Chairman, 55 0 - June 2007-June 2010

F B Non-executive Director - 2007.6-2010.6
BEER  FHTES

Luo Chaogeng Non-executive Director 58 6,600 (Notel) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010

BHR FHTES 6,600 (1) ExEAA 2007.6-2010.6

Cao Jianxiong Executive Director, President 49 7,656 (Note2) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010

g2 BITES  BEHE 7,656 (7T 2) BREAA 2007.6-2010.6

Luo Zhuping Executive Director, 55 11,616 (Note3) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010

BMFE Company Secretary 11,616 (F£73) EnlEE A 2007.6-2010.6
HITEE RAMWE

Hu Honggao Independent Non-executive 54 0 - June 2007-June 2010

B Director 2007.6-2010.6
BUFWTES

Peter Lok Independent Non-executive 71 0 - June 2007-June 2010

%29 Director 2007.6-2010.6
BAFRTES

Wu Baiwang Independent Non-executive 65 0 - June 2007-June 2010

R AT Director 2007.6-2010.6
BUFHTES

Zhou Ruijin Independent Non-executive 69 0 - June 2007-June 2010

B Director 2007.6-2010.6
BUFWTES

Xie Rong Independent Non-executive 56 0 - June 2007-June 2010

Gl Director 2007.6-2010.6

BUFNTES

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Number of listed
A shares of the
Company held -

Capacity in
which the

Effective date and
expiry date of

Name Position Age personal interest A shares were held appointment
LSRNV
wBAR
®E B % Fik BRE—EARER AR & 7 EHE LA S
Liu Jiangho Chairman of the 58 0 - June 2007-June 2010
2T Supervisory Committee 2007.6-2010.6
L
Xu Zhao Supervisor 39 0 — June 2007-June 2010
% B’ EE 2007.6-2010.6
Wang Taoying Supervisor 55 0 — June 2007-June 2010
EkE EE 2007.6-2010.6
Yang Jie Supervisor 38 6,600 (Notel) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010
B R EE 6,600 (FE#1) EREAA 2007.6-2010.6
Liu Jiashun Supervisor 51 3,960 (Note4) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010
ElE EE 3,960 (FE#4) ExBBA 2007.6-2010.6
Zhang Jianzhong Vice President 53 0 - June 2007-June 2010
R BlagE 2007.6-2010.6
Li Yangmin Vice President 45 3,960 (Note4) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010
FER Bl 3,960 (FE#4) ExBBA 2007.6-2010.6
Fan Ru Vice President 59 3,696 (Noteb) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010
B F Bl 3,696 (7T #£5) EREAA 2007.6-2010.6
Luo Weide Chief Financial Officer 52 3,960 (Note4) Beneficial Owner June 2007-June 2010
ERE MsEE 3,960 (FE#£4) ExBBA 2007.6-2010.6
Note 1: representing approximately 0.0002% of the Company’s total issued HEL: ERRERZEEEF+ A=+
listed A shares as at 31 December 2007 HE /TR IMAR AR 2£70.0002%
Note 2: representing approximately 0.000232% of the Company’s total issued HE2 . ERRAERZEELF+A=1+—
listed A shares as at 31 December 2007 HE TR MAIR AR ££0.000232%
Note 3: representing approximately 0.000352% of the Company’s total issued HE3 R RERZEEEF+ A=+
listed A shares as at 31 December 2007 HE TR MAIR AR ££0.000352%
Note 4: representing approximately 0.00012% of the Company’s total issued HE4 ERRERZEETEFT A=+
listed A shares as at 31 December 2007 HE BT MARARE(£)0.00012%
Note 5: representing approximately 0.000112% of the Company’s total issued s R RERZEEEF A=+

listed A shares as at 31 December 2007 HE B/ T/RIBAKARE470.000112%
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As at the date of this report, brief biographical details in respect of
each of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management officers of
the Company are as follows:

Mr. Li Fenghua is the incumbent Chairman of the Board of the
Company, and also the president and deputy party secretary of CEA
Holding. Mr. Li joined the civil aviation industry in 1968 and was
deputy head, and subsequently became head, of the 26th Fleet of
the CAAC from 1987 to 1992. From 1992 to 1996, Mr. Li served as
vice president, and then became president, of the Hubei Branch of
China Southern Airlines (Group). Since 1996, he became vice president
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited and vice president of
China Southern Airlines (Group). In 2000, Mr. Li became party
secretary and vice president of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited. From October 2002 to September 2004, he served as the
president of the Company and vice president of CEA Holding. In
September 2004, he became president and deputy party secretary of
CEA Holding. Mr. Li graduated from the China Civil Aviation Senior
Aviation School and holds the title of First Class Pilot.

Mr. Li Jun is currently the Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company
and the party secretary of CEA Holding. Mr. Li joined the civil aviation
industry in 1972. Since 1977, Mr. Li served as officer in the Political
Department and office secretary of CAAC. Mr. Li served as person-in-
charge of Policy Research Department in the Civil Aviation Bureau in
1984, deputy director of Policy Research Department in the Civil
Aviation Bureau in 1986, deputy manager of Planning Department in
CAAC in 1989, manager of Planning Department in CAAC in 1994,
director of the General Office in CAAC in 1996, manager of Personnel
Education Department in CAAC in 2000, and deputy head and party
committee member of CAAC in 2001. Since 2006, Mr. Li has served as
party secretary of CEA holding. Mr. Li graduated from the Party
School of the Central Committee of the C.P.C. and holds a bachelor
degree of Economic Management and is a qualified Economist.
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Mr. Luo Chaogeng is currently an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Luo joined the civil aviation industry in 1970. Mr. Luo was a
flight mechanic of the instructing team of the Lanzhou Civil Aviation
Administration Bureau from August 1970 to August 1972. From August
1972 to March 1989, he was the flight mechanic and vice instructor
of the 8th Civil Aviation Flight Team. From March 1989 to August
1994, he was the deputy commissar, commissar and party secretary
of the Xi'an Flight Team of China Northwest Airlines. From August
1994 to October 1996, he was the party secretary of the aircraft
maintenance plant of China Northwest Airlines. From October 1996
to March 1997, he was the party secretary and deputy general manager
of the aircraft maintenance base of China Northwest Airlines. From
March 1997 to December 2000, he was the deputy director of the
Civil Aviation Administration Bureau of China Northwest Airlines.
From December 2000 to November 2001, Mr. Luo was the general
manager of Yunnan Airlines and the director and deputy party
secretary of Civil Aviation Administration Bureau of Yunnan. From
November 2001 to September 2002, he was the general manager and
deputy party secretary of Yunnan Airlines. From September 2002 to
present, he has been the party constitution member and vice president
of CEA Holding. From September 2002 to September 2004, he has
also been serving concurrently as the general manager of Yunnan
Airlines of CEA Holding. From September 2004 to the present, he has
been the party constitution member and vice president of China
Eastern Air Holding Company, and from September 2004 to October
2006 was President and deputy party secretary of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited. From September 1998 to June 2001,
Mr. Luo attended the postgraduate course in economics and
management for incumbent leading cadres of Shaanxi Province at
the Central Party School. Mr. Luo has first class competency in flight
mechanics.

Mr. Cao Jianxiong is the Company’s president and is currently an
Executive Director. Mr. Cao joined the civil aviation industry in
1982. From 1992, he served as president of Shanghai Eastern Airlines
Development Company and in 1994 he became president of Eastern
Airlines Futures Brokerage Company. In early 1996 he served as
assistant president of the Company. From 1997, he served as vice
president and chief financial officer of the Company. Since December
1999, he has served as vice president of CEA Group. Since October
2002, he served as vice president of CEA Holding, and he also was
the party secretary of China Eastern Air Northwest Company from
December 2002 to September 2004. Since October 2006, he has
served as president of the Company. Mr. Cao graduated from the
Civil Aviation Management Institute with a major in labour economics.
Mr. Cao also received a master degree in global economics from
Eastern China Normal University’s Department of International Finance.
Mr. Cao holds the title of Senior Economist.
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Mr. Luo Zhuping is an Executive Director of the Company, the Company
Secretary and the head of the secretariat of the Board of the Company.
Mr. Luo joined CEA in 1988. He was deputy chief and then chief of
the enterprise management department of China Eastern Airlines
from 1992 to 1997. He was deputy head of the share system office
from 1993 to 1996. In 1997, he became the secretary of the Board
of the Company and the head of the secretariat of the board of
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited. He became a Director of
the Company in June 2004. Mr. Luo graduated from the Faculty of
Philosophy and the Faculty of Law of Anhui University in 1979 and
1985, respectively. In 1994, Mr. Luo received a Master degree from
the Economics Department of Eastern China Normal University,
majoring in global economics. In 1998, he participated in the training
programme for senior managers of large state-owned enterprises
organised in the U.S.A. by the State Economic and Trade Commission
and Morgan Stanley.

Mr. Hu Honggao was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1996. He is currently the deputy dean of
the School of Law, the director and professor of the Civil and
Commercial Law Research Centre, and a tutor to doctoral students
majoring in civil and commercial law at Fudan University. He is also
a senior lawyer at the Shanghai Shen Yang Law Office. Mr. Hu is a
managing director of China Commercial Law Research Society, a
managing director of China Economic Law Research Society (A B 4%
ESEIFL @ E I E), a member of the Legislative Consultation
Committee of the Shanghai Municipal Government, a member of the
Legislative Profession Consultation Committee of the Shanghai
Standing Committee of the People’s Congress (EBEMAAFEZ S
VEBEREZELZGZE), vice chairman of the Shanghai Economic
Law Research Society and an arbitrator of the Shanghai Arbitration
Committee.

Mr. Peter Lok was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in 1998. Mr. Lok went to the College of Air Traffic
Control in England for further studies after joining the Hong Kong
Civil Aviation Department in December 1956. He studied air transport,
air accident investigation and administration and management of
civil aviation in England from 1968 to 1973. In 1982, he became
assistant director of the Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department. From
1985, during his time in office at the air services division of the
Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department, he participated in negotiations
with various countries regarding air traffic rights. He became deputy
director in 1988, and subsequently became director in 1990 of the
Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department. Mr. Lok retired in 1996 and
has served as a consultant at the Flights Standards Department of
the CAAC. Mr. Lok is the first Chinese director of the Hong Kong Civil
Aviation Department and was at one time an instructor at the College
of Air Traffic Control of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wu Baiwang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1998. Mr. Wu joined the civil aviation
industry in 1959 and was deputy fleet leader and subsequently became
fleet leader of the 12th Fleet of the CAAC from 1976 to 1984. From
1984 to 1992, Mr. Wu was deputy head and subsequently became
head of the CAAC Jilin Bureau. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Wu was the
head and party secretary of the CAAC North-eastern Bureau. From
September 1995 to 1998, he became president of China General
Aviation Corporation. He was the party secretary and vice president
of Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport Group Company and the
chairman of the board of directors of Guangzhou Baiyun International
Airport Company Limited from 1998 to September 2003. Mr. Wu
graduated from Chinese Civil Aviation School in 1965 and holds the
title of First Class Pilot.

Mr. Zhou Ruijin was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
director of the Company in 2000. Mr. Zhou was deputy editor-in-
chief and the East China regional director of the People’s Daily.
From 1988 to 1993 Mr. Zhou was the party secretary and deputy
editor-in-chief of the Liberation Daily. From April 1993 to 1996 he
was deputy editor-in-chief of the People’s Daily and from 1996 to
2000 he was deputy editor-in-chief and the East China regional
director of the People’s Daily. After retired, he became Vice chairman
of the China Productivity Council and chairman of the Shanghai
Productivity Council. Mr. Zhou graduated from the journalism
department of Fudan University in 1962.

Mr. Xie Rong was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in 2003. Mr. Xie is the deputy head of Shanghai
National Accounting Institute and a certified accountant in the PRC.
He taught at the faculty of accounting of Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics from December 1985 to March 1997, and had
been an assistant professor, a professor, a doctorate-tutor and the
deputy dean of the faculty. Mr. Xie was a partner of KPMG Huazhen
from December 1997 to October 2002, and has, since October 2002,
been the deputy head of Shanghai National Accounting Institute.
Mr. Xie graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
and has a doctorate degree in Economics.
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Ms. Liu Jiangbo is currently the chairman of the supervisory committee
of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”), and a party member,
vice president, and the head of disciplinary inspection group of CEA
holding. Ms. Liu Jiangbo joined the civil aviation industry in 1979.
Since then, Ms. Liu had been an officer in the Beijing Administrative
Bureau of Civil Aviation of China and the deputy secretary of the
committee of C.P.C. of the transportation business division. Ms. Liu
served as secretary of the committee of the Communist Youth League
of the National Civil Aviation in 1985, deputy director of the personnel
department of the Traffic Control Bureau of the Aviation of China in
1987, supervisor to the Civil Aviation Administration of China
appointed by the Supervisory Bureau of China in 1990, deputy director
of the transportation division of CAAC in 1994, secretary of the
committee of C.P.C. and vice president of Yunnan Airlines Corporation
Limited in 2000, and the party member, vice president and head of
the disciplinary examination committee of CEA holding in 2002. Ms.
Liu graduated from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences, majoring in business management of industrial economics,
having the qualification of post-graduate and senior political work
instructor.

Mr. Xu Zhao is currently a Supervisor of the Company, and the chief
accountant of CEA holding. Mr. Xu joined the civil aviation industry
in 2007. Mr. Xu served as engineer and accountant in Dongfeng
Motor Group Company Limited in 1991 and 1997 respectively, Mr. Xu
joined Shanghai Yanhua High Technology Limited Company as a
manager in finance department in 2000, and joined Shaanxi Heavy
Duty Automobile Co. Limited as a chief financial officer in 2002.
Since January 2007, Mr. Xu has served as the chief accountant in
CEA holding. Mr. Xu graduated from Chongxing University, majoring
in moulding, and The Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring in
accounting, and holds a master degree. Mr. Xu is qualified as an
engineer and an accountant, and is a certified public accountant in
the PRC.
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Ms. Wang Taoying, is currently a Supervisor, the assistant to the
president, and the general manager of the auditing department of
the Company. Ms. Wang joined the civil aviation industry in 1972,
was the deputy director of the supervisory and auditing department
and the deputy manager of the disciplinary committee office of
China Eastern Airlines Company from March 1993 to August 1995.
Ms. Wang was the head of the auditing department of China Eastern
Airlines Company from August 1995 to March 1997, the supervisor in
the first session of the Supervisory Committee from January 1995 to
March 1998, the cabin service manager of the Company from March
1997 to April 1999, and the deputy general manager of security
department in Pudong, Shanghai of the Company taking charge of
the servicing safety in the production procedure from April 1999 to
August 2000. Ms. Wang also acted as chief officer of the auditing
department of the Company from August 2000 to August 2004. From
August 2004 to August 2006, she served as the general manager of
the auditing department of the Company and has been the assistant
to the president of the Company and the general manager of the
auditing department since August 2006. Ms. Wang graduated from
the Shanghai Second Polytechnic University, majoring in sociopolitics,
and holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the Open
University of Macau.

Ms. Yang Jie is currently a Supervisor. Ms. Yang joined the civil
aviation industry in 1992. From 1996 to 1998 she was the electronic
technology supervisor of the technology office and Communist Youth
League secretary of the overhaul department at the aircraft
maintenance base of the Company. From 1998 to September 2000
she was Communist Youth League deputy secretary of the aircraft
maintenance base of the Company. She was the deputy secretary of
the Company’s Communist Youth League from September 2000 to
July 2002, and the secretary of the Company’s Communist Youth
League from August 2002 to January 2003. Since January 2003, she
has been the secretary of the Communist Youth League of CEA Holding,
as well as the secretary of the Communist Youth League of the
Company. Ms. Yang graduated with a major in aviation electronics
from the China Civil Aviation Academy and a major in Business
Administration from Sunny Management Academy (JB B &2 £z T
75 & 12 ) at Donghua University and she received a master degree in
Business Administration. She is also a qualified engineer.
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Mr. Liu Jiashun has been a Supervisor of the Company since 2000.
From 1993 to 1999 Mr. Liu was party secretary, deputy president and
secretary of the disciplinary committee of China Aviation Fuel Hainan
Company, as well as chairman of the board and president of Hainan
Nanyang Air Transport Co., Ltd. From 1997 to 1999 he was also the
chief director in charge of fuel supply engineering at Haikou’s Meilan
Airport and served as a director of Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. and the
vice chairman of the board and president of s B X AR A 7.
From 1999 to 2007 he was deputy party secretary, and subsequently
the secretary of the disciplinary committee of China Aviation Fuel
East China Company and he has been the general manager of /&8
A M A R X 7] since 2006. Mr. Liu received post-graduate education
and is qualified as a senior political work instructor.

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong is a vice president of the Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the civil aviation industry in 1982. From April 1982 to
December 1987, he was an assistant of the CAAC Shanghai Planning
Bureau. From December 1987 to April 1990, he was the deputy
director of the planning department of Shanghai Honggiao
International Airport. From April 1990 to January 1996, he was the
director of the planning department of China Eastern Airlines. From
January 1996 to April 1999, he was the manager of the sales and
marketing department of the Company. From April 1999 to April
2003, he was the assistant to the president of the Company. From
September 2000 to December 2001, he served concurrently as the
director of the office of strategic study of the Company. From
December 2001 to May 2003, he served concurrently as the general
manager of the computer information centre of the Company. From
April 2003 to June 2004, he was the chief economist of the Company.
From May 2003 to June 2004, he served concurrently as the general
manager of the sales and marketing department of the Company.
From June 2004 to the present, he has been a vice president of the
Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Faculty of Mechanical
Engineering of Zhejiang University and also the Economics and
Management of Fudan University from which he obtained a master
degree.
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Mr. Li Yangmin is a vice president of the Company. Mr. Li joined the
civil aviation industry in 1985. From July 1985 to October 1996, he
was the Deputy Head of the aircraft maintenance workshop (TR %
{EE &), Head of technology office and secretary of the workshop
branch of Northwest Company (FEdbfiiZ 2 &) . From October 1996
to June 2002, he was the deputy general manager of the aircraft
maintenance base and the manager of air route department (F14R
#6) of Northwest Company (PEILMT %A &) . From June 2002 to
March 2004, he was the general manager of the aircraft maintenance
base of China Eastern Air Northwest Company. From March 2004 to
October 2005, he was the Vice President and a member of the standing
committee to the party committee of China Eastern Air Northwest
Company. Since October 2005, he has been Deputy General Manager
of the Company. Mr. Li is a university graduate from China Civil
Aviation Academy. He is a qualified senior engineer.

Mr. Fan Ru is the Company’s vice president. Mr. Fan started his civil
aviation career in 1966. He was a deputy fleet leader of China
Eastern Airlines” Shanghai Fleet since 1988 and was the head of
aviation technology management office of China Eastern Airlines
since 1995. He was appointed as the deputy chief pilot and the head
of aviation technology management office of the Company since
1997. He was the chief pilot of the Company from 1999 to November
2006, and was appointed as the vice president of the Company since
November 2006. Mr. Fan graduated from Advanced Aviation School
for professional flying. He has received tertiary education and has
obtained first class technical qualifications for pilots.

Mr. Luo Weide is the Company’s chief financial officer. In 1976 Mr.
Luo began his military service at the Air Force in Liuan Airport. From
1979 to 1991 he successively served as department head and deputy
head of the Putuo branch of the Shanghai Municipal Tax Bureau.
From 1991 to 1993 he concurrently served as head of the finance
bureau and the state asset bureau of Putuo District, Shanghai. From
1993 to 1998 he successively served as deputy chief accountant,
chief accountant and executive deputy president of Shanghai Jingiao
(Group) Co., Ltd. From 1998 to 2000, he was vice president of
Shanghai Pudong Development (Group) Co., Ltd. and chairman of the
board and president of Pudong Finance Company. Since 2000 he has
been chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Luo graduated from
the Sino-European International Business School in 1999 with a
Master’s degree in business administration. He holds the titles of
Senior Accountant and Senior Economist.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has issued a
confirmation in respect of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules concerning his independence pursuant to Rule 3.15 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES IN THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

(1) On the 2006 annual general meeting held on 29 June 2007, the
shareholders of the Company approved the termination of office
as a whole for the fourth session of the Board of the Company,
and approved the appointment of Mr. Li Fenghua, Mr. Li Jun,
Mr. Luo Chaogeng, Mr. Cao Jianxiong, Mr. Luo Zhuping, Mr. Hu
Honggao, Mr. Peter Lok, Mr. Wu Baiwang, Mr. Zhou Ruijin and
Mr. Xie Rong as directors to the fifth session of the Board of
the Company.

(2) On the 2006 annual general meeting held on 29 June 2007, the
shareholders of the Company approved the termination of office
as a whole for the fourth session of the Supervisory Committee,
and approved the appointment of Mr. Liu Jiashun, Ms. Liu Jiangbo
and Mr. Xu Zhao as supervisors nominated by shareholders to
the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee. Pursuant to an
employees’ representatives meeting of the Company, Ms. Wang
Taoying and Ms. Yang Jie were nominated as supervisors by the
employees of the Company with effect from 29 June 2007.

(3) On 29 June 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the Company
held the first meeting for 2007 and elected Mr. Li Fenghua as
the Chairman of the Board of the Company and Mr. Li Jun as the
Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company, and that Mr. Xie
Rong, Mr. Hu Honggao and Mr. Zhou Ruijin were appointed as
the members of the Audit Committee and Mr. Xie Rong as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, and that Mr. Wu Baiwang, Mr.
Luo Chaogeng and Mr. Luo Zhuping were appointed as the
members of the planning and development committee of the
Company (the “Planning and Development Committee”) and Mr.
Wu Baiwang as the chairman of the Planning and Development
Committee, and that Mr. Zhou Ruijin, Mr. Luo Chaogeng and Mr.
Wu Baiwang were appointed as the remuneration and assessment
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration and Assessment
Committee”), and Mr. Zhou Ruijin as the chairman of the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, and that based on
the nomination by the Chairman of the Board of the Company,
Mr. Cao Jianxiong was appointed as the President of the Company,
and that based on the nomination by the President of the
Company, Mr. Zhang Jianzhong, Mr. Li Yangmin and Mr. Fan Ru
were appointed as the Vice Presidents of the Company and Mr.
Luo Weide as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, and
that based on the nomination by the Chairman of the Board of
the Company, Mr. Luo Zhuping was appointed as the secretary
to the Board of the Company.
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(4) On 29 June 2007, the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee
held the first meeting for 2007 and elected Ms. Liu Jiangbo as
the chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the
Directors, chief executives, Supervisors or members of the Company’s
senior management and their respective associates had any other
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and/or
debentures (as the case may be) of the Company and/or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which was required to be notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including any interest or short position which
any of such Directors, chief executives, Supervisors or members of
the Company’s senior management and their respective associates
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which was otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (which shall be deemed to apply to the Supervisors
to the same extent as it applied to the Directors).

In 2007 and as at 31 December 2007, none of the Directors, chief
executives, Supervisors, senior management of the Company and/or
any of their spouses or children under the age of eighteen were
granted any right, and the Company had not made any arrangement
enabling any of them, to subscribe for share capital or debt securities
of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

No Director or Supervisor has entered into any service contract with
the Company which is not terminable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or Supervisors had a material interest directly
or indirectly in any contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year (the term
‘contract of significance’ having the meaning ascribed thereto in
paragraph 15 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRS.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had 40,477 employees, a majority
of whom worked in the PRC. Employee compensation is primarily
composed of basic salary and performance-based bonus.

MEDICAL INSURANCE

In January 2001, the Group joined the medical insurance scheme
promulgated by the Shanghai Municipal Government. The Group and
its employees contribute approximately 12% and 2% respectively of
the employees’ basic salaries to the scheme. The Group has no other
significant obligation for the payment of medical expenses other
than the abovementioned contributions. The Group believes that its
contributions to such scheme will not have significant impact on the
operations or financial position of the Group. As at 31 December
2007, the Group’s medical insurance contributions charged to the
income statement amounted to RMB75 million (2006: RMB60 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2007 are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

INTEREST CAPITALIZED

Interest capitalized by the Group as calculated in accordance with
IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2007 was RMB399 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company and
the Group during the year are summarized in note 17 to the financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group, and
profit appropriation by the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007 are set out in note 38 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

STATUTORY COMMON WELFARE FUND

Details in relation to the statutory common welfare fund, such as
the nature and application of and movements in the fund, and the
basis of its calculation, including the percentage used for calculating
the amounts, are set out in note 38 to the financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable purposes
amounting to RMB1.01 million.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Company’s employee retirement scheme and post
retirement benefits are set out in note 34 to the financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December 2007, the cost of aircraft and related materials
from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 10.39% and 12.34%, respectively, of the total purchases
of the Group. The sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 8.39% of the Group’s total sales in 2007.

Since May 2003, CEA Holding has been interested in 55% of Shanghai
Dongmei Aviation Travel Company Limited, one of the top five
customers, whereas the Company is interested in 45%. In 2007, the
air ticket sales for which the Group entrusted Dongmei Air Travel
Company Limited as its agent accounted for approximately 1.5% of
the total sales of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors or any of
their respective associates nor any shareholders who, to the knowledge
of the Directors, hold 5% or more of the Company’s share capital has
any interest in any of the above mentioned suppliers and customers.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

On 17 July 2007, the Company entered into an aircraft purchase
agreement in Shanghai with Airbus SAS to purchase ten Airbus A320
series aircraft (with engines). Details are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 20 July 2007, and the circular dated 9 August
2007.

AGM AND BOARD MEETINGS
AGM

The 2006 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 29
June 2007 at the Meeting Centre, Shanghai Home You Hotel, 2550
Honggiao Road, Shanghai to consider the resolutions proposed by
the Board of the Company, and approved by way of ordinary
resolutions: the report of the Board of the Company for 2006, the
report of the Supervisory Committee for 2006, the audited financial
report for 2006, the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian CPAs Limited Company as the Company’s PRC domestic auditors
for 2007 and the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified
Public Accountants, as the Company’s international auditors for 2007,
and to authorize the Board of the Company to determine their
remuneration, the annual allowance for each of the independent
non-executive directors for 2007 and election of the members of the
fifth session of the Board of the Company and the fifth session of
the Supervisory Committee, and approved by way of special resolution
the amendment of certain provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS

During 2007, the Board of the Company held twelve meetings and
passed, among others, the following resolutions:

(1) On 26 January 2007, the Board of the Company convened its
first regular meeting for 2007, during which the following were
considered and passed: the financial budget report of the
Company for 2007, the investment plan for 2007, the resolution
regarding purchase of land by Beijing base, the resolution on
the price for transferring Shanghai Eastern Airlines Investment
Co., Ltd., the resolution on disposal of FK100 accessories, the
resolution on transferring the whole urban infrastructure project
of Ningbo Branch as well as the report of the General Manager.

(2) On 19 April 2007, the Board of the Company convened its second
regular meeting for 2007, during which the following were
considered and passed: the financial report of the Company for
2006, the Company’s profit appropriation proposal for 2006, the
Company’s draft results announcement for 2006 (H/A shares),
the resolution on conversion of the first class and business
class cabins of A343, the resolution on setting up a customer
service company, the resolution on transfer of the equity interest
in Shanghai Eastern Airlines Investment Co., Ltd.*, the Investor
Relationship Management System and the resolution on
amendment of the Articles of Association of the Company.

(3) On 26 April 2007, the Board of the Company convened its third
regular meeting for 2007, during which the following were
considered and passed: the Company’s report and financial
statements for the first quarter of 2006, the annual allowance
for the independent directors, appointment of the Company’s
internal and external auditors for 2007, the “Information
Disclosure Management System” and “Rules Governing
Transactions beyond Ordinary Course of Business”.

(4) On 29 August 2007, the Board of the Company convened its
fourth regular meeting for 2007, during which the interim
financial report of the Company for 2007 and the announcement
draft of the interim financial report of the Company for 2007
were considered and passed.

(5) On 29 October 2007, the Board of the Company convened its
fifth reqgular meeting for 2007, during which the financial
statements of the Company for the third quarter of 2007 and
the announcement draft of the financial report of the Company
for the third quarter of 2007 were considered and passed.
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On 29 June 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the Company
convened its first meeting to elect the Chairman and Vice
Chairman of the Board of the Company, the members of the
Audit Committee, the members of the Planning and Development
Committee and the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the Company, to engage the President, Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and the company secretary of the Company,
and to consider and pass the “Corporate Governance Self-
assessment and Rectification Plan” and the proposal for transfer
of equity interest in Eastern Airlines Hotel Co., Ltd.

On 20 July 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the Company
convened its second meeting and approved the introduction of
ten Airbus A320 series aircrafts, the establishment of China
Eastern Airlines Cultural Gifts Company Limited (3 75 fit 2= 30 1t
EMRABRZAA) and the setting up of Beijing Branch.

On 29 August 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the Company
convened its third meeting to approve the purchase of Director
and Officers Liability Insurance.

On 2 September 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the
Company convened its fourth meeting, during which the following
resolutions were considered and passed: introduction of strategic
investors through private placement of additional H shares, and
granting power to the Chairman of the Board of the Company
and the Company Secretary on negotiating and signing of the
Framework Agreement.

(10) On 29 October 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the

Company convened its fifth meeting, during which the following
were considered and passed: the auditors’ remuneration for 2007,
preliminary fleet plan for “the 12th Five-year” and the reform
report on specific corporate governance activities of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited for 2007.
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(11) On 9 November 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the
Company convened its sixth meeting, during which the following
were considered and passed: placing additional H shares to SIA
and Temasek and entering into a relevant subscription agreement;
placing additional H shares to the CEA Holding and entering
into a relevant subscription agreement; entering into a strategic
cooperation agreement and a secondment agreement with SIA;
making amendment to certain provisions of the Articles of
Association after completion of private placement of additional
H shares; making proposal to the general meeting of the Company
to authorize the Board of the Company, which in turn authorizes
the senior management of the Company to decide on all matters
relating to such issues; electing persons recommended by SIA
and Temasek as candidates for directorship in the Board of the
Company after completion of private placement of additional H
shares; and convening an extraordinary general meeting and
class meetings of the Company.

(12) On 28 December 2007, the fifth session of the Board of the
Company convened its seventh meeting and approved the
introduction of 30 B737NG series aircrafts and authorized the
President of the Company for specific implementation.

* The resolution was related to connected transaction, and directors
involved in the connected transactions abstained from voting.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its connected persons or
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) are
governed by and have to comply with the requirements for disclosure
under the Listing Rules. The following table sets out the annual
limits for the continuing connected transactions between the Group
and members of CEA Holding for 2007:
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1. Property leasing MEME 60,000

2. Financial services 51 %5 AR 75

Deposit and other 7R K EH A

financial services 1 75 PR 75 1,150,000

3. Import/export agency services HEHORERS 55,000

4. Maintenance services  E IR T% 43,200

5. Catering services i 2= B B R 1% 480,000

6. Sales agency services MEHEREBRS 101,985

7. Advertising services B & R 19,000
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Details of the Group’s continuing connected transactions with the
Company’s connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) during
the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out in note 42 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

For further details regarding the above continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the Company’s 2005 annual report.

The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
such continuing connected transactions during the year 2007 and
confirmed that:

(a) the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into either (i) on normal
commercial terms (by reference to transactions of a similar nature
made by similar entities within China) or (ii) (where there is no
available comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into either (i) in accordance
with the terms of the agreement governing each such connected
transaction or (ii) (where there is no such agreement) on terms
no less favorable than terms available to third parties.

In respect of each continuing connected transaction disclosed in
note 42 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRS, the Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 9 November 2007, CEA Holding entered into a CEA Holding
subscription agreement with the Company to subscribe in cash for
1,100,418,000 new H Shares in the Company at the subscription
price of HK$3.80 per share. As CEA Holding holds approximately
59.67% of the issued share capital of the Company, this transaction
entered into between the Company and CEA Holding constitute
connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules. For
information about the principal terms of this transaction, please
refer to the announcements dated 2 September 2007, 9 November
2007, 8 January 2008, 21 January 2008 and 26 February 2008 and
published by the Company in Hong Kong.
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On 16 November 2007, the Company, CEA Holding and b /& R fin 2
Holds ZHEK AR QA (East China Care System Co., Ltd.) (“East
China Cares”) entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to
which the Company and East China Cares agreed to dispose their
entire equity interests in /8 R A% & BB A A (China Eastern
Air Investment Company Limited (“CEA Investment”) to CEA Holding.
The considerations to be received by the Company and East China
Cares for the disposal of 98.79% and 1.21% interests in CEA
Investment are approximately RMB461.9 million and RMB5.66 million
respectively. As CEA Holding holds approximately 59.67% of the
issued share capital of the Company, this transaction entered into
between the Company and CEA Holding constitutes connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules. For information
about the principal terms of this transaction, please refer to the
announcement dated 16 November 2007 and published by the Company
in Hong Kong.

Details of the other related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out in note 42 to
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

In relation to future deliveries of aircraft, as at 31 December 2007,

the following are details of aircrafts on order which are scheduled to
be delivered:

Type of aircraft

Number of aircraft
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Year to be delivered

R EA REH B & F 4
A320 8 2008
A321 5 2008
A330-300 3 2008
A330-200 1 2008
B737-700 1 2008
B737-800 1 2008
A320 10 2009
B737-700 7 2009
B737-800 3 2009

As at the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any
aircraft which is subject to options exercisable during a period of
not less than 12 months from 31 December 2007.

STAFF QUARTERS

Details of the Group’s staff quarters are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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Report of Directors EEERES

MATERIAL LITIGATION

In 2005, the family members of certain victims in the aircraft accident
(the aircraft was then owned and operated by China Eastern Air
Yunnan Company), which occurred in Baotou on 21 November 2004,
sued the Company in a U.S. court for compensation. On 5 July 2007,
pursuant to several conditions with which the Company has complied,
the Superior Court of the State of California ordered the action
stayed on the grounds of forum non conveniens for the purpose of
permitting proceedings in the PRC. On 20 February 2008, the plaintiff
filed a motion with the Superior Court of the State of California to
lift the stay. The case is still pending. The Directors believe that a
negative outcome will not have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company. The
Company intends to provide updates to the shareholders of the
Company regarding the progress of the litigation. As of 31 December
2007, the Company was not involved in any other litigation,
arbitration or claim of material importance.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.

During the 2006 annual general meeting held on 29 June
2007, the shareholders of the Company approved amendments
to the articles of association of the Company by adding the
following new paragraph after the first paragraph of Article
21:

“On 18th December, 2006, the share reform plan of the
Company was approved in the relevant shareholders’ meeting
of A share market. Upon the implementation of the share
reform, the total share capital of the Company remained
unchanged and still comprised 4,866,950,000 shares, of which
2,904,000,000 A shares, representing 59.67% of the total share
capital of the Company, were held by China Eastern Air Holding
Company. The 1,566,950,000 shares, representing 32.20% of
the total share capital of the Company, were overseas listed H
shares, and the 396,000,000 shares, representing 8.13% of
the total share capital of the Company, were domestic listed
A shares.”

On 9 November 2007, SIA and Temasek entered into an investor
subscription agreement with the Company, to subscribe for
new H shares to be issued by the Company. Simultaneously
with the entering into of the investor subscription agreement,
CEA Holding entered into a CEA Holding subscription agreement
with the Company to subscribe for new H shares to be issued
by the Company. For information about this project, please
refer to the announcements dated 2 September 2007, 9
November 2007, 8 January 2008, 21 January 2008 and 26
February 2008 and published by the Company in Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ OPINION

Independent Directors of the Company have performed auditing work
and issued an independent opinion on the guarantees the Company
has provided, as required by the relevant requirements of the CSRC.
The Company has strictly observed relevant laws and regulations as
well as its articles of association while it has also imposed strict
control on the guarantees provided. As at 31 December 2007, none
of the Company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated
financial statements has provided any guarantee to the Company’s
controlling shareholder and other related parties, other non-legal
person entity units and individuals.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong and
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company (registered
accountants in the PRC) were the Company’s international and
domestic auditors in 2007, respectively.

On behalf of the Board of the Company

Li Fenghua
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
14 April 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and appropriate corporate
governance structure. The Company has also placed emphasis on the
corporate governance principle of having transparency, accountability
and safeguarding the interests of all shareholders.

The Directors believe that sound corporate governance is essential
to the development of the Company’s operations. The Board of the
Company regularly reviews our corporate governance practices to
ensure that the Company operates in accordance with the laws,
regulations and requirements of the listing jurisdictions, and that
the Company continuously implements corporate governance of a
high quality.

The Company’s corporate governance practices include but are not
limited to the following:

Articles of association and working rules of the Board of the Company
(including rules of meeting of the Board of the Company, procedures
of meetings of the Board of the Company, constitutional document
of the audit committee, constitutional documents of the planning
and development committee, constitutional documents of the
remuneration and appraisal committee, working reporting rules of
the senior management, notices regarding the purchasing of shares
of the Company by Directors, Supervisors and senior management,
information disclosure and management regulations, and the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees of the Company).

As at 31 December 2007 (the “Reporting Period”) and as at the date
of the announcement of this annual report, the Board of the Company
has reviewed the relevant provisions and corporate governance
practices under the codes of corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company, and took the view that the Company’s corporate
governance practices during the financial year ended 31 December
2007 met the requirements under the code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “Code”). In certain aspects, the code of corporate
governance adopted by the Company is more stringent than the
provisions set out in the Code. The following sets out aspects which
are more stringent than the Code.

Corporate Governance i®¥&%4
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Major aspects which are more stringent than provisions set out in
the Code:

- all members of the audit committee are independent non-
executive directors.

- 12 meetings of the Board of the Company were held during the
financial year of 2007.

- other than the audit committee and the remuneration and
appraisal committee, the Company has also established a
governance committee, which is known as the planning and
development committee.

BOARD

The Company is managed by the Board of the Company. The Board is
responsible for the leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are jointly responsible for implementing businesses of the
Company by directing and supervising the affairs of the Company.

DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company consists of 10 Directors,
including a Chairman (also an non-executive Director) and two
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and five independent
non-executive Directors. During the 2006 annual general meeting
held on 29 June 2007, the shareholders of the Company approved
the appointment of Mr. Li Fenghua, Mr. Li Jun, Mr. Luo Chaogeng,
Mr. Cao Jianxiong, Mr. Luo Zhuping, Mr. Hu Honggao, Mr. Peter Lok ,
Mr. Wu Baiwang, Mr. Zhou Ruijin and Mr. Xie Rong as directors of
the fifth session of the Board of the Company.

ALl Directors shall retire in the third annual general meeting following
their appointment, but are eligible for re-election.

Names, personal particulars and effective date of appointment of
the Directors are set out in page 37 to page 48 of this report.

Independent non-executive Directors of the Company shall possess
extensive skills and experience. They shall be able to play their roles
of supervising the checks and balances to the fullest extent to
protect the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
Five out of eight non-executive Directors (over one third) are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board of the Company
considers that they shall be able to exercise independent judgment
effectively, which complies with guidelines on their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received the
annual confirmation letters from each of the independent non-
executive Directors on their independence.

All the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of 3 years. The formal appointment
letters and the articles of association of the Company have set out
the terms and conditions of their appointment.

The Company is making an active effort to study insurance
arrangements for directors and senior management in relation to
their potential legal liabilities.

Other than working relationships, Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company do not have any financial, business or
family connection with one another.

POWERS OF THE BOARD

On a periodic basis, the Board of the Company reviews the relevant
performance against proposed budgets and business objectives of
each operating unit. It also exercises a number of powers retained
by the Board of the Company, including but not limited to the
following:

- responsibility for convening general meetings and reporting to
shareholders on its work;

- implementing resolutions passed in general meetings;

- deciding on the operating plan and investment proposals of the
Company;

- formulating the annual preliminary and final budget proposals;

- formulating the Company’s profit distribution proposal and the
proposal to offset losses;

- formulating the Company’s proposals to increase or reduce the
registered capital and proposals to issue debt securities;

- drawing up proposals for the Company’s merger, demerger and
dissolution;

- deciding on the Company’s internal management structure;

- employing or dismissing the Company’s President and secretary
to the Board of the Company; appointment or dismissal of the
Vice President and chief financial officer of the Company on the
nomination of the President, and the determination of their
remuneration;
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- formulating the management systems of the Company;

- formulating proposals to amend the articles of association of
the Company;

- discharging any other powers and functions granted in general
meetings.

The Board of the Company is also responsible for the completeness
of financial information of the Company and is responsible for
maintaining an effective internal control system and for risk
management, as well as preparing the financial statements. Setting
the business objectives and overseeing the daily operations are the
responsibilities of the chief executive officer. The Company’s articles
of association specify the duties and functions of the Board of the
Company and management. The Board of the Company periodically
reviews the duties and functions of the chief executive officer and
the powers delegated to him to ensure that such arrangements are
appropriate.

In order to ensure the balance of powers and authorization, the
roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer have been
clearly defined. The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Li Fenghua, and
the chief executive officer is Mr. Cao Jianxiong, an executive Director.
There are also other senior officers who are responsible for the daily
management within their scope of duties.

MEETING OF THE BOARD

The Chairman leads the Board of the Company to ensure that the
Board of the Company performs its various duties effectively and he
is responsible for drawing up the agenda of the meeting of the
Board of the Company and considering other matters other Directors
propose to be included in the agenda. The agenda together with
documents of the Board of the Company should be, as far as
practicable, circulated at least 3 days prior to the meeting of the
Board of the Company or its committees. The Chairman is also obliged
to ensure that all the Directors are suitably briefed on matters to be
raised in the meeting of the Board of the Company. The Chairman
ensures that the Directors receive information that is accurate, timely
and clear. Through on-the-job training of Directors and continued
participation in meetings of the Board and of committees of the
Board of the Company and interviews with key persons in headquarters
and other departments, the Directors are encouraged to update their
knowledge of technology and their understanding of the Group.
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The Company has established a special unit to work for the Board of
the Company. All the Directors can access the service of the company
secretary. The company secretary shall periodically update the
Directors of the latest information on governance and regulation.
The Directors may seek independent professional advice through the
Chairman for the purpose of performing their duties, with the cost
to the Company. Both the audit committee and the remuneration
and appraisal committee may also seek professional advice.

The company secretary is responsible for the records of the board
meetings. These minutes of meetings together with other documents
for the board meetings shall be made available to all the Directors.
Board meetings are meant to enable the Directors to have open and
frank discussions and to ensure that non-executive Directors are
able to make effective enquiries of each of the executive Directors.

In order to ensure sound corporate governance, the Board of the
Company has established 3 committees: an audit committee,
remuneration and appraisal committee, and planning and development
committee with their terms of reference drawn up in accordance with
the principles set out in the Code. The company secretary drafts the
minutes of meetings for these committees, and the committees report
to the Directors.

The Board of the Company has held 12 meetings during the Reporting
Period. The following tables show the attendance rate of each Director
at shareholders” general meetings, board meetings and meetings of
these specialized committees:
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Board Meetings General Meetings

Attendance/ Attendance/
No. of meetings No. of meetings
Directors Esg BREXE
- HERE, HERE,
BERE BERE
Non-executive Director Li Fenghua FHITESTFTEE 12/12 1/1
Non-executive Director Li Jun FHITESFE 9/12 0/1
Non-executive Director Luo Chaogeng FFHITEEEFHE 11/12 0/1
Executive Director Cao Jianxiong WITESTEEMH 8/12 0/1
Executive Director Luo Zhuping BITESEN T 12/12 1/1
Executive Director Wan Mingwu* MITESEEHR 3/3 0/1
Non-executive Director Zhong Xiong*  FE#{ 7T 5= S 4E M * 3/3 0/1
Independent non-executive Director B FFHITE S
Hu Honggao B = 6/12 1/1
Independent non-executive Director B JEHITE S
Peter Lok L ] 1/12 0/1
Independent non-executive Director B JEHITE S
Wu Baiwang E= 10/12 1/1
Independent non-executive Director B IFHITE S
Zhou Ruijin Bk 7/12 1/1
Independent non-executive Director B JEHITE S
Xie Rong i &8 11/12 1/1
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Executive Director Wan Mingwu and non-executive Director Zhong Xiong
were no longer Directors of the Company after members of the fifth
session of the Board of the Company were elected at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2007, before then, three
board meetings had been convened by the Company.

Audit Committee:
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Members Attendance/No. of meetings
£8 HERE ERRE
Xie Rong Els] 3/3

Hu Honggao B = 1/3

Zhou Ruijin Aime 1/1

Wu Baiwang* XA 0/2

Following the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2007,
Independent non-executive Director Wu Baiwang was no longer a member
of the Audit Committee. Independent Non-Executive Director Zhou Ruijin
was appointed as a new member of the Audit Committee. Two meetings
were convened by the Audit Committee of the Company before 29 June
2007.
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Remuneration and Appraisal Committee:

FEEZLZE®

Members Attendance/No. of meetings
£B8 HERE ERRE
Zhou Ruijin Bihe 1/1

Luo Chaogeng EHR 1/1

Wu Baiwang RBEH 1/1

Planning and Development Committee: REBREES

Members Attendance/No. of meetings
£B5 HERE EFRE
Wu Baiwang RSB 2/2

Zhong Xiong* S 0/1

Cao Jianxiong* gy 0/1

Luo Chaogeng EHRE 1/1

Luo Zhuping EMT 1/1

Following the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2007, Directors
Zhong Xiong and Cao Jianxiong were no longer members of the Planning
and Development Committee, and Directors Luo Chaogeng and Luo
Zhuping were elected as new members of the Planning and Development
Committee. One meeting was convened by the Planning and Development
Committee of the Company before 29 June 2007.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

All the Directors shall declare to the Board of the Company upon
their first appointment their capacities as Directors and any other
positions held in other institutions, the declaration of which shall
be renewed once a year. When the Board of the Company discusses
any motion or transaction and considers any Director has any conflict
of interest, the Director shall declare his interest and abstain from
voting, and will excuse himself as appropriate. The Company shall,
pursuant to the guidelines, request from Directors their confirmation
if they or their associates are connected with any transactions entered
into by the Company or its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.
Material transactions which have been confirmed as having been
entered into with any connected person have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS
of this annual report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the securities transactions code. Each of the Directors
and Supervisors of the Company has been issued with a copy of the
Model Code upon their appointment.

All the Directors and Supervisors of the Company have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code in 2007.

The Company has also adopted the related provisions set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and has established its Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees of the Company
according to its own situation and with reference to the Model Code
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The aforesaid Code of
Conduct shall apply to the conduct of dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Supervisors and senior management of the
Company.

In addition, pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules for
Shares of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the shares of the Company
transferred by each of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company every year are not allowed to exceed
25% of the total number of shares held by each of them, and they
are not allowed to purchase the shares of the Company within 6
months after they have sold their shares. They are also not allowed
to sell the shares of the Company within 6 months after they have
bought the shares of the Company. Additionally, within 6 months
after they have left their appointment, they are not allowed to
transfer their shares of the Company held by them.

Corporate Governance i®¥&%4

EEER
PEERAR B XAERERRANRRIES
SERREEMARIEBETESHHMD
BN Sh  ERNERREFER—
R e AR RIEFREE S IR EEHA
HRRREFHEETFENRER - %E
SRBRBMmLRERR - YEEEBR
TETE - ARRIRBIRSINBET RS
HIR 2K E SR MBI EBEALRR]
HEMERRETHEABBENRS
RERNEXBREALRS  HEER
FIRIZBRP B RE ERRR 2 WK
B SER R

ESETZESRRS

A RIE R _E BB R+ (T
A BAA R E ER SR ST - AF
FREREENESCHOBE—(HUD
HFA -

AABIMAERNEEN TR LFHR
gt (RESTA -

N A IRERAR T AR AR 8%+ U RO B R AR
T REARB HIERLAES EH AR
Bt RETRIMREHF T(RRIET
EITRZRZNTATAD - T RIFE
BARAREENSREEABREAR
AIRERITR °

N RIBEEEESFZZAE TR
ADBRTE - ARER  BEENSHRER
ABBFEENARARND NMIBBER
BHARR RN BB HI25% - W HAEE N
ZEANEAARTNMSBTEARRED - B
AZENEAANSBITELARR AR
o BIMERHERANEANR - b MSEE
PR E BV R R AL ©

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH

65



66

All the employees who may have unpublished price-sensitive
information related to the Group are also required to comply with
the Model Code. During the Reporting Period, the Directors are not
aware of any breach of laws and regulations.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement made by the Company’s auditors in
respect of the financial statements is set out on page 75 to page 76
of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal control system

The Board of the Company shall be responsible for the overall internal
control system of the Company/Group and periodically reviews the
effectiveness of the internal control system. The internal control
system is essential to risk management which, in turn, is important
in ensuring that operational objectives can be achieved. Internal
control procedures are designed to prevent assets from unauthorized
use or disposal, to ensure the maintenance of appropriate accounting
records and to provide reliable financial information either for internal
use or for dissemination externally. However, the control procedures
aim at reasonably (but not absolutely) assuring that there will not
be material misrepresentation, loss or unlawful conduct. The internal
control system is designed to comply with the relevant laws,
supplementary regulations and constitutional documents.

The Company reviews the effectiveness of its internal control annually,
which includes control over finance, operations, compliance with
laws and regulations as well as the monitoring of risk management.
The results of the review have been reported to the Audit Committee
and the Board of the Company.

The Board of the Company confirms that the Company has systems
and procedures in place to identify, manage and report material
risks in the course of achieving its strategic objectives. The Directors
continue to monitor risks with the support of the committees and
senior management. The Company has conducted a review to identify
areas for improvement, and is taking measures to implement them.
The effectiveness of the measures taken will be reported in the next
meeting of the Audit Committee.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s internal audit department is responsible for conducting
an independent audit of whether or not the internal control system
is sufficient and effective. The auditing plan is prepared using a risk
based approach and is discussed and finalized by the audit committee.
Other than the pre-determined scope of work, the department is also
required to conduct other specific audits.

The Group's internal audit department reports to the chief executive
officer; it may also report directly to the chairman of the audit
committee. All internal audit reports are delivered to the Chairman
of the Board of the Company, chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, the management of the audit department and related
departments. The outcome of each audit, in summary, will also be
discussed with the audit committee. The Board and audit committee
of the Company actively monitor the number and seriousness of any
weaknesses or issues identified, and the relevant corrective measures
taken by the relevant department.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management involves identifying and managing business risk
effectively, including safety and security, law, environment and
reputation risk.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has not established a risk management
committee, but the internal audit department has undertaken related
risk management duties and reports to the audit committee
periodically. It is responsible for coordinating the implementation of
appropriate measures to manage operational risks including:

- establishing risk trends and risk management strategy of the
Group and reviewing the risk profile of the Group;

- identifying, assessing and managing material risks the various
operations are exposed to;

- examining and assessing the suitability of the Group’s risk
management procedures, systems and internal controls;

- examining compliance with the Group’s risk management
procedures, systems and internal controls, including whether
the Group meets legal and regulatory requirements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing audit reports,
reviewing internal control and corporate governance, and is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board of the Company.
At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 29 June 2007, the
members of the fifth session of the Board of the Company were
appointed through re-election. The meeting also re-appointed
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Xie Rong as the chairman of
the audit committee, and Independent Non-executive Directors Hu
Honggao and Zhou Ruijin were appointed, for the first time, as
members of audit committee. The chairman of the committee possesses
professional qualifications in accounting.

Constitutional documents of the audit committee are posted on the
website of the Company.

The audit committee held 3 meetings in 2007. In each meeting,
senior management and external as well as internal auditors were
invited to attend. Based on the reports of the external and internal
auditors, the audit committee conducted reviews of accounting
policies and principles, and internal controls procedures adopted by
the Group with a view to continuing compliance with the Listing
Rules. The committee also conducted reviews of internal and external
audits, internal control, risk management and financial statements.
The interim results for 2007 and the final results for 2006 had been
discussed in meetings before they were submitted to the Board of
the Company for approval.

Attendance of members of the audit committee is as follows:
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Attendance/
Directors No. of meetings Attendance
- HERE ERRHE i fE &
Xie Rong EIES 3/3 100%
Hu Honggao HBE S 1/3 33%
Zhou Ruijin Aim e 1/1 100%
Wu Baiwang* REHE* 0/2 0%

* Independent non-executive Director Wu Baiwang remained a member of
the audit committee until the annual general meeting was convened
on 29 June 2007. The audit committee of the Company held 2 meetings
before 29 June 2007.
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The audit committee has also conducted other compliance work to
comply with US reporting requirements in 2007, including review of
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; and specifically to consider
the work undertaken in connection with managements’ assessment
of the effectiveness of internal controls to ensure compliance with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

In the Reporting Period, the remuneration of the external auditors is
estimated to be approximately RMB18.44 million, of which
approximately RMB18.38 million was for the regular annual fee for
audit of the Group’s 2007 financial statements prepared under IFRS
and PRC Accounting Regulations and the other relevant documents
applicable for the purpose of 20-F filing, the remaining RMB0.06
million was for approved services not directly connected with annual
audit. Audit fees are determined by the Audit Committee and approved
by the Board of the Company.

The Audit Committee obtained an overall understanding of the non-
audit services and its scope and was satisfied that the non-audit
services (in respect of the nature of service and the total cost) had
not affected the independence of the accounting firm. The non-audit
services primarily comprise tax compliance services.

The partner appointed by the external auditor to take responsibility
for the annual audit has been responsible for the service since 2006.
Pursuant to applicable U.S. securities laws, the partner responsible
for the annual audit may not undertake the service for more than 5
consecutive years.
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REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 29 June 2007, the
members of the fifth session of the Board of the Company were
appointed during the re-election. Mr. Zhou Ruijin was elected as
chairman of remuneration and appraisal committee and non-executive
Director Luo Chaogeng and independent non-executive Director Wu
Baiwang were appointed as members of the committee. After each
internal meeting, the remuneration and appraisal committee reported
to the Board of the Company. Constitutional documents of the
remuneration and appraisal committee are posted on the Company’s
website.

The remuneration and appraisal committee held 1 meeting in 2007.

Members and attendance of the remuneration and appraisal committee
are as follows:
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Attendance/
Directors No. of meetings Attendance
= HEREERRE i E =R
Zhou Ruijin A& 1/1 100%
Luo Chaogeng EHR 1/1 100%
Wu Baiwang RSB 1/1 100%

REMUNERATION POLICY OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Remuneration packages of executive Directors are aimed primarily at
linking the remuneration of executive Directors to their performance
and providing appropriate incentives. Pursuant to the policy, Directors
are not allowed to approve their own remuneration.

The remuneration of executive Directors mainly comprises basic salary
and bonus.

BASIC SALARY

Executive Directors review and approve the basic salary of each
executive Director every year pursuant to the remuneration policy of
the Company. Pursuant to the service contracts entered into between
the Company and each of the executive Directors, executive Directors
are entitled to receive a fixed annual salary.

BONUS

Bonuses are calculated based on the measurable performance of the
operating units for which the executive Directors are responsible.
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors do not receive remuneration from the Group.

Allowances (before tax) received by the 5 Independent Non-executive
Directors in 2007 were as follows:

Hu Honggao RMB120,000
Peter Lok HK$120,000
Wu Baiwang RMB120,000
Zhou Ruijin RMB120,000
Xie Rong RMB120,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a nomination committee and the
Board of the Company is directly responsible for nominating Directors.
Pursuant to the articles of association, candidates for Director shall
be nominated by the Board or shareholders, and nominations shall
be submitted to the general meeting as motions for consideration.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company undertakes that the disclosure it makes is fair,
comprehensive and transparent. The ultimate priority is to ensure
effective communication with investors and to ensure that the Board
of the Company is aware of the views of major shareholders. The
Chairman meets major shareholders on a regular basis and the routine
communication of the Board of the Company with the major
shareholders is conducted through the company secretary.

The Company has drawn up and implemented an Information Disclosure
and Management System and has further improved the information
disclosure system in order to ensure the accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of information disclosure; the Company has also established
an information disclosure office for which the company secretary is
responsible. The information disclosure office is mainly responsible
for the collection, collation and compilation of basic information for
disclosure, and is also responsible for drawing up the internal control
and procedural guidelines. It is responsible for monitoring the correct
implementation of the various control measures.

The Company has also implemented an Investor Relationship
Management System, which specifies the basic principles and the
institutional structure of the investor relationship management, as
well as the duties and responsibilities of investor relationship work,
so as to further foster corporate integrity and discipline, and to
realize standardized operation, with the ultimate aim of maximizing
the corporate value and shareholders” interests, and ensuring that
benefits of investors are protected.
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The Company has released information in relation to its quarterly
results. In the latest annual general meeting held on 29 June 2007
in Shanghai, the meeting was open to all the shareholders and the
media. A total of 12 shareholders attended in person or by proxy.

In the annual general meeting, each matter was proposed as a
resolution and voted by poll.

Investors and the public may access our website and download
coverage on such briefings. The website also sets out details of each
of the Group’s operations. Announcements of the interim and final
results may also be downloaded from the website.

In 2007, the company secretary and principal officer of the capital
investment market held 83 investors’” meetings with Hong Kong
investment analysts and investors, and also held 5 press conferences
with media in the PRC.

Based on publicly available information and to the best knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital is
held by the public. As at 31 December 2007, there were a total of
168,466 shareholders on the Company’s register of members.

For any enquiries of the Board of the Company, shareholders may
use the shareholders’ hotline 8621-62686268, e-mail at ir@ce-air.com
to contact the company secretary, or they may put forward their
questions in the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meetings. In respect of the procedures for shareholders to convene
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meetings, they may
make enquiries of the company secretary through the aforesaid
channels.

On behalf of the Board of the Company

Li Fenghua
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
14 April 2008
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Report of the Supervisory Committee BEEEIHEE

Dear Shareholders,

In 2007, the members of the Supervisory Committee, basing
themselves on the powers bestowed upon them by the Company Law
and the Company's articles of association and their sense of
responsibility toward all the shareholders, actively carried out their
tasks, faithfully performed their supervisory duties and protected
the legitimate rights and interests of the Company and of all the
shareholders.

On 19 April 2007, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, during
which it adopted the Report of the Supervisory Committee for the
year 2006, and resolved that it would be put forward to the 2006
Annual General Meeting of the Company for consideration; and at
the same time, the Committee reviewed the financial report of the
Company for the year 2006 and expressed a written audit opinion
that the financial report of the Company for the year 2006 truly
reflected the financial position and operating results of the Company,
and resolved that it would be put forward to the 2006 Annual
General Meeting of the Company for consideration; and it agreed
with the resolution of no distribution of profits passed by the Board
of Directors. On 26 April 2007, the Supervisory Committee held a
meeting, during which it reviewed the full text and summary of the
Company's report for the first quarter of 2007 and expressed an
audit opinion. On 29 June 2007, the Supervisory Committee held a
meeting, during which it elected Ms. Liu Jiangbo as chairman of the
fifth Supervisory Committee. On 29 August 2007, the Supervisory
Committee held a meeting, during which it reviewed the 2007 interim
report of the Company and resolved that the 2007 interim report of
the Company truly reflected the financial position and operating
results of the Company. On 29 October 2007, the Supervisory
Committee held a meeting, during which it reviewed the full text
and summary of the Company's report for the third quarter of 2007
and expressed an audit opinion.

The Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed financial
information such as the financial report and the profit distribution
scheme to be submitted to the 2007 Annual General Meeting for
deliberation, and found no problems with these submissions. After
examination, the Supervisory Committee did not discover any acts
of insider trading in the Company's purchase or sale of assets, or
any actions of the directors, presidents or other senior executives
in carrying out their duties that in any way violated laws, regulations,
or the articles of association of the Company or were prejudicial to
the interests of the Company.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee BEE 2R ES

In the new year, the Supervisory Committee will, as in the past,
conscientiously exercise the powers bestowed upon it by the
Company's articles of association and perform corresponding
obligations, further strengthen its supervision of the Company's
financial affairs and ensure compliant business practices. It will
continue to explore monitoring and control mechanisms which are of
benefit in protecting investors and promoting the Company's
development.

The Supervisory Committee is extremely grateful for the continuous
strong support for its work offered by all the shareholders, directors,

staff and workers.

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee

Liu Jiangbo
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, the PRC
14 April 2008
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Independent International Auditor's Report %3 B FR A% B &M R &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES
CORPORATION LIMITED

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 202,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group
as at 31 December 2007, and of the Group’s financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement ZREEBHER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g AR¥T R ARBTFT
Revenues WA 5 42,521,226 37,634,132
Other operating income, net HEmEXEkzs - FH 6 604,713 424,265
Operating expenses EET
Aircraft fuel TR SR (15,117,147) (13,608,793)
Take-off and landing charges R HE [ B (5,174,183) (4,989,382)
Depreciation and amortisation EEEEFE - #iH (4,811,916) (4,597,178)
Wages, salaries and benefits T8  -HFeka 8 (4,327,397) (3,538,082)
Aircraft maintenance Rk e e (2,392,039) (2,647,340)
Food and beverages MEBRHIE (1,235,578) (1,188,016)
Aircraft operating lease rentals M EEHER S (2,850,873) (2,954,751)
Other operating lease rentals E&EEZEHER S (292,844) (276,715)
Selling and marketing expenses SHENU LTS ER (1,805,342) (1,734,987)
Civil aviation infrastructure levies EMEARREERESD (781,613) (696,428)
Ground services and other charges WEREERHEME S (224,466) (162,104)
Office, administrative and mo - EERAEMER
other expenses (3,943,083) (3,620,718)
Deficits on revaluation/ & RERK
impairment loss 17,39 (130,921) (1,035,343)
Total operating expenses EEITHBRE (43,087,402) (41,049,837)
Operating profit/(loss) gERT (EE) 9 38,537 (2,991,440)
Finance income B 75 W A 10 2,119,881 1,008,563
Finance costs B 75 S 11 (1,978,550) (1,765,981)
Share of results of associates BB E N R EE 21 58,312 103,566
Share of results of jointly G LR 2
controlled entities ERESE 22 30,086 29,595
Profit/(loss) before income tax R AT A, (E18) 268,266 (3,615,697)
Income tax IR 12 (23,763) 162,932
Profit/(loss) for the year FERFN(EE) 244,503 (3,452,765)
Attributable to: EER
Equity holders of the Company RArERFEBA 268,896 (3,313,425)
Minority interests DAL R E (24,393) (139,340)
244,503 (3,452,765)
Earning/(loss) per share FRARRAIEZFB A
attributable to the equity (R = F 7 (E18)
holders of the Company
during the year
- basic and diluted —EXREE 15 RMBO0.06 RMB(0.68)

The notes on pages 85 to 202 are an integral part of these FTESSHE202H B B MA N ERE I
consolidated financial statements. {valks
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Consolidated Balance Sheet R EEEBER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)

As at 31 December 2007 L EZ - T LT+ F+ -—A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
T AR®T T AR T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Intangible assets EEEE 16 1,244,706 1,337,554
Property, plant and equipment VI3 - HBEREE 17 47,548,204 40,050,466
Lease prepayments TR HEE R 18 967,497 1,054,362
Advanced payments on TR # T8 1< 3K
acquisition of aircraft 19 6,695,573 7,668,708
Investments in associates KE R E QA 21 601,119 623,390
Investments in jointly BWERHLRZEHE S
controlled entities 22 336,966 115,540
Available-for-sale financial assets AHETREE 53,236 47,554
Other long-term assets HiREBEE 23 660,751 1,099,265
Deferred tax assets RIERIBBEE 33 113,211 82,146
Derivative assets MTEEE 36 6,077 73,269
58,227,340 52,152,254
Current assets REBEE
Flight equipment spare parts REZESH 1,124,936 1,198,642
Trade receivables and & U BR 3R % FE U 2= R 24 2,096,007 1,719,782
notes receivable
Amounts due from related & W B BE Bt N B X8 42 65,455 352,719
companies
Prepayments, deposits and ENR - FRK
other receivables H b & U 3k 25 2,555,649 2,759,065
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 26 1,655,244 1,987,486
Derivative assets MTEEE 36 89,470 113,532
Non-current assets held for sale FHEERHEE 39 2,262,058 882,426
9,848,819 9,013,652
Current liabilities REBEE
Sales in advance of carriage T8 E # AL 1,211,209 891,659
Trade payables and notes payable B ERFR REMNEE 27 3,137,880 5,026,764
Amounts due to related companies FE 1S B BE Bt N B 508 42 671,593 348,477
Other payables and H A TR &
accrued expenses SER = 28 9,624,491 7,873,603
Current portion of obligations BEHEAEN
under finance leases B E 1D 29 2,545,223 2,803,956
Current portion of borrowings ERRRE M0 30 18,494,521 16,016,327
Income tax payable FE 1~ 7 18 90,867 80,483
Current portion of provision for REREEREE
aircraft overhaul expenses B B 2 10 31 - 20,900
Derivative liabilities PTEAE 36 20,238 124,722
Liabilities directly associated with BGHEERDEE
non-current assets held for sale BEEHBENEE 39 127,239 442,935
35,923,261 33,629,826
Net current liabilities BRABERS (26,074,442) (24,616,174)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBARBERE 32,152,898 27,536,080
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Consolidated Balance Sheet REEEEER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
As at 31 December 2007 B Z — T LT+ F+-HA=+—HILFZ

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
T AR¥ T AR T
Non-current liabilities REBEE
Obligations under finance leases mEMHEAR 29 13,906,987 9,048,642
Borrowings =& 30 11,369,307 12,091,413
Provision for aircraft R R IEE R ERH
overhaul expenses 31 956,910 489,721
Other long-term liabilities EMmERHEaE 32 864,336 614,655
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEEE 33 50,369 68,459
Post-retirement benefit obligations RINIEB A EE 34(b) 1,370,702 1,292,960
Long-term portion of staff BITEEmMAL
housing allowance B = HE 5 35(b) - 439,491
Derivative liabilities PTEARE 36 21,558 14,096
28,540,169 24,059,437
Net assets FEE 3,612,729 3,476,643
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to ZANYNESIE- EES RN
the equity holders of the Company JEAE B R R i 2
Share capital & 2 37 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves & 38 (1,839,187) (2,052,053)
3,027,763 2,814,897
Minority interests D 8RR R = 584,966 661,746
Total equity 4R R 3,612,729 3,476,643

Li Fenghua
=3 ¥
Director

EF

The notes on pages 85 to 202 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Cao Jianxiong

EEE
Director

EF

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Balance Sheet EE& &R

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)

As at 31 December 2007 L EZ - T LT+ F+ -—A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
T AR®T T AR T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Intangible assets EEEE 16 939,674 1,032,679
Property, plant and equipment VI3 - HBEREE 17 38,811,488 31,606,868
Lease prepayments TR HEE R 18 425,136 497,668
Advanced payments on TR # T8 1< 3K
acquisition of aircraft 19 6,695,573 7,006,853
Investments in subsidiaries KERKB R A 20 3,785,557 3,882,670
Investments in associates b= Wi R/ 21 377,872 377,872
Investments in jointly BWERHLRZEHE S
controlled entities 22 301,802 59,552
Available-for-sale financial assets AHETRMEE 37,487 31,806
Other long-term assets HMREEE 23 498,849 994,729
Derivative assets MTEEE 36 6,077 73,269
51,879,515 45,563,966
Current assets RBEE
Flight equipment spare parts R ESH 864,204 931,415
Trade receivables and notes JiE UK AR 3k X e W 4R
receivable 24 1,375,156 1,116,466
Amounts due from related JE W B B A B 5B
companies 42 64,410 351,209
Prepayments, deposits and BERR - FRR
other receivables H b & Uk 3k 25 2,150,609 2,318,010
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREeEEY 26 1,040,897 1,109,834
Derivative assets PTHEEBE 36 89,470 113,532
Non-current assets held for sale FHEERHEE 39 764,120 882,426
6,348,866 6,822,892
Current liabilities REBEE
Sales in advance of carriage TEE ML 1,211,209 891,659
Trade payables and notes payable FET AR K R FE T R 48 27 2,662,716 4,610,855
Amounts due to related companies FE 1S B BE Bt N B X8 42 535,341 246,362
Other payables and accrued H th B 5 3K
expenses SER == 28 8,337,940 6,570,291
Current portion of obligations BEHEAE
under finance leases 7 B 2B 19 29 2,316,781 2,636,057
Current portion of borrowings EXHRE D 30 15,943,774 13,004,878
Current portion of provision for REREEREE
aircraft overhaul expenses B B 2 10 31 - 20,900
Derivative liabilities PTEAE 36 20,238 124,722
Liabilities directly associated with BGHEERDEE
non-current assets held for sale BEEHBENEE 39 127,239 442,935
31,155,238 28,548,659
Net current liabilities REEER (24,806,372) (21,725,767)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBARBERE 27,073,143 23,838,199
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Balance Sheet EE& &R

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
As at 31 December 2007 B ZE T LT+ F+ A =+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g AR¥T R ARKETTT
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Obligations under finance leases mEMHEAR 29 11,455,722 7,511,373
Borrowings =& 30 9,650,583 10,841,915
Provision for aircraft R R IEE R ERH
overhaul expenses 31 737,371 408,690
Other long-term liabilities EmREBEE 32 781,412 614,655
Post-retirement benefit obligations RKIE 18 T 22 34(b) 1,195,070 1,144,653
Long-term portion of BITEEmMAL
staff housing allowance 7 & B 2B 19 35(b) - 413,386
Derivative liabilities PTHEERE 36 21,558 14,096
23,841,716 20,948,768
Net assets FEE 3,231,427 2,889,431
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to ZANYNEIY - XS F N
the equity holders of the Company JE1E B AR R
Share capital @i 37 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves G 38 (1,635,523) (1,977,519)
Total equity R 3,231,427 2,889,431

Li Fenghua

=3 ¥
Director

EF

The notes on pages 85 to 202 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Cao Jianxiong

EEE
Director

EF

,f/'\ °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZE&REFER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETARF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g AR TR ARBTFT
Cash flows from operating activities ZEEZTHHNRERE
Cash generated from operations LEEAMNIRS 40(a) 4,998,034 3,458,510
Interest paid EENEAURS (2,240,721) (2,097,077)
Income tax paid B P (62,549) (22,740)
Net cash inflow from operating EETHEENFRS
activities 2,694,764 1,338,693
Cash flows from investing activities REZTEBNRESHRE
Additions of property, BAME -
plant and equipment HEE R (1,592,310) (879,756)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - HRK
property, plant and equipment RAEFTE N 70,681 328,419
Acquisition of land use rights B8 A 5 A 4 - (37,158)
Acquisition of available-for-sale BARRFIEESR
financial assets NEeREE - (6,751)
Advanced payments on M - BEEH
acquisition of aircraft RITR BRI TER K (3,737,079) (4,560,694)
Refund of advanced payments TR M 32 A BF LT B
upon delivery of aircraft B 7R T8 1T 3k 3,064,580 3,744,513
Repayment of other payables EEH M EN R
(instalment payment for (BA—Mz=z
acquisition of an %8 5 B 5R)
airline business) (30,000) (30,000)
Interest received B U F B 96,849 120,161
Dividend received B AR B 22,367 8,617
Acquisitions of controlling 3 B Bt N A B9 4
interests in associates, EmEFRES MM
net cash outflow 40(d) - (366,529)
Capital injection in jointly MAREGEETEE
controlled entity (92,416) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEMB QR #ER
interest in a subsidiary g & 40(c) 441,002 -
Net cash outflow from RETBHEENFRS
investing activities (1,756,326) (1,679,178)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z&EREHKER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2007 2006
—EELF —ETERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARKETTT
Cash flows from financing activities BEZTHHNRERE
Proceeds from draw down RERITERMBR
of short-term bank loans 18,464,695 14,748,954
Repayments of short-term BEEHRITER
bank loans (16,020,304) (15,133,553)
Proceeds from draw down REBITERAERK
of long-term bank loans 3,383,349 6,909,927
Repayments of long-term bank loans  {BiE KHIIR1TE X (2,985,480) (4,179,412)
Principal repayments of BEREHES
finance lease obligations BENARE (2,974,718) (2,539,995)
Proceeds from issuance BIERNEBMER
of notes payable 4,351,121 7,696,014
Repayments of notes payable EERMNERE (6,206,321) (6,014,279)
Repayment of debentures BEES - (2,000,000)
Refund of deposits for finance WERHaEHEE
leases upon maturities TR A 5 779,646 1,046,732
2004 dividend paid 3 1t 2004 4F A% F - (60,000)
Dividends paid to minority RPN RS <
shareholders of subsidiaries % B 3% AN AR A (46,400) (53,550)
Net cash outflow from METHELEFRS
financing activities (1,254,412) 420,838
Net (decrease)/increase in cash fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f“%ﬁ
and cash equivalents "4 ¥ hn (315,974) 80,353
Cash and cash equivalents at —)5] AMRE &
1 January ReZEEY 1,987,486 1,864,001
Exchange adjustments BE % 8 B (16,268) 43,132
Cash and cash equivalents +ZA=+—HWE2
at 31 December RESEEY 1,655,244 1,987,486

The notes on pages 85 to 202 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity ZREESSEI R

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

AARRRER
Minority
Share Other Accumulated Y
capital  reserves losses  Subtotal interests Total equity
R fiff ZEFR Ed KrEz 4R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETE
Balance at 1 January 2006 “ETRE-A-AER 4866950 1,229,115 (539) 6,005526 822,477 6,918,003
Cash flow hedges, net of tax BeREEH NEHE = 8,441 = 8,441 = 8,441
Revaluation reserve, net of tax, arising from FIRE—FWEEZ A7)
the acquisition of a controlling BHERPERANE
interest in an associate NAEfal R B
MR HE - 24,355 - 35 - 24,355
Dividend paid to minority SOLIENEEE e Tl
interests in subsidiaries - - - - (42,892)  (42,892)
Loss for the year EEFR - - (3313425) (3,313,425)  (139,340) (3,452,765)
Additions through acquisitions of EBWERBATEM
subsidiaries - - - - 21,501 21,501
Transfer to other reserve BAHMEE = 20,966 (20,966) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2006 “EERETZA
S+-REH 4,866,050 1,082,877 (3334,930) 2814897 661,746 3,476,643
Balance at 1 January 2007 SSBLE-A-BEH 4866950 1,282,877 (3,334930) 2,814,897 661,746 3,476,643
Cash flow hedges, net of tax REREBEN  MBKRHE - (78,197) - (78,197 - (78,197
Dividend paid to minority XAHEATE
interests in subsidiaries SUBRRRA - - - - (46,400)  (46,400)
Profit for the year FERR - - 268,896 268,896  (24,393) 244,503
Share of revaluation surplus for available E{EHE D AMBFH M
for sale investments held by associates ~ HEREHNFHEEE = 22,167 - 22,167 = 22,167
Disposal of a subsidiary HEFAH - - - - (5,987)  (5,987)
Adjustment to statutory and HEEEREELES
discretionary reserves (Note 38) (#8398 - (428,808) 428,808 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2007 “EELETCR
“t-AE&t% 4,866,950 798,039 (2,637,226) 3,027,763 584,966 3,612,729

The notes on pages 85 to 202 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”), a
joint stock company limited by shares was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 14 April 1995. The
address of its registered office is 66 Airport Street, Pudong
International Airport, Shanghai, the PRC. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the operation of civil aviation, including the provision of
passenger, cargo, and mail delivery and other extended
transportation services.

The Company is majority owned by China Eastern Air Holding
Company (“CEA Holding”), a state-owned enterprise
incorporated in the PRC.

The Company’s shares are traded on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, The New York Stock Exchange and The
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 April 2008.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note
4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The Group’s accumulated losses were approximately
RMB2,637 million as at 31 December 2007 and its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB26,074 million. Based on the Group’s
history of obtaining finance, its relationships with its
bankers, banking facilities available and net operating
cash inflow, the Board of Directors consider that the
Group will be able to obtain sufficient financing to
enable it to operate and meet its liabilities as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, it is appropriate that
these consolidated financial statements should be
prepared on a going concern basis and they do not
include any adjustments that would be required should
the Company and the Group fail to continue as a going
concern.

(i) Standards, amendment and interpretations
effective in 2007

o IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
and the complementary amendment to IAS
1, 'Presentation of financial statements -
Capital disclosures’, introduces new
disclosures relating to financial
instruments.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(a) Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(1)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective
and relevant for the Group’s operations

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008 or later periods, but the Group has
not early adopted them:

o IFRIC 13, "Customer loyalty programmes’
(effective from 1 July 2008). IFRIC 13
clarifies that where goods or services are
sold together with a customer loyalty
incentive (for example, loyalty points or
free products), the arrangement is a
multiple-element arrangement and the
consideration receivable from the customer
is allocated between the components of
the arrangement using fair values. The
Group will apply IFRIC 13 from 1 January
2009. The expected impact is still being
assessed in detail by management.

2. EEETBREE (@
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a) Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(ii)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective
and relevant for the Group’s operations (Cont’d)

° IFRIC 14, 'TAS 19 - The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’
(effective from 1 January 2008). IFRIC 14
provides guidance on assessing the limit
in IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus
that can be recognised as an asset. It
also explains how the pension asset or
liability may be affected by a statutory or
contractual minimum funding requirement.
The Group will apply IFRIC 14 from 1
January 2008, but it is not expected to
have any impact on the Group’s accounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(1i)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective
and relevant for the Group’s operations
(Cont’d)

IAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial
Statements” (effective from 1 January
2009). IAS 1 (Revised) requires all owner
changes in equity to be presented in a
statement of changes in equity. All
comprehensive income is presented in one
statement of comprehensive income or in
two statements (a separate income
statement and a statement of
comprehensive income). It requires
presenting a statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period in a complete
set of financial statements when there
are retrospective adjustments or
reclassification adjustments. However, it
does not change the recognition,
measurement or disclosure of specific
transactions and other events required by
other IFRSs. The Group will apply IAS 1
(Revised) from 1 January 2009.

IFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (effective
from 1 January 2009). IFRS replaces IAS
14 and aligns segment reporting with the
requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
“Disclosures about segments of an
enterprise and related information’. The
new standard requires a ‘management
approach’, under which segment
information is presented on the same
basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. The Group will apply IFRS 8
from 1 January 2009, but it is not
expected to have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(1)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective
and relevant for the Group’s operations (Cont’d)

IAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” (effective
from annual period beginning on or after
1 July 2009). The amendment requires non-
controlling interests (i.e. minority
interests) to be presented in the
consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from the
equity of the owners of the parent. Total
comprehensive income must be attributed
to the owners of the parent and to the
non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Changes in a
parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in the loss of control
are accounted for within equity. When
control of a subsidiary is lost, the assets
and liabilities and related equity
components of the former subsidiary are
derecognised. Any gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any
investment retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at its fair value at
the date when control is lost. The Group
will apply IAS 27 (Revised) from 1 January
2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(1)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective
and relevant for the Group’s operations (Cont’d)

IFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”
(effective for business combinations with
acquisition date on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The
amendment may bring more transactions
into acquisition accounting as
combinations by contract alone and
combinations of mutual entities are
brought into the scope of the standard
and the definition of a business has been
amended slightly. It now states that the
elements are “capable of being conducted”
rather than “are conducted and managed”.
It requires considerations (including
contingent consideration), each
identifiable asset and liability to be
measured at its acquisition-date fair value,
except leases and insurance contracts,
reacquired right, indemnification assets as
well as some assets and liabilities required
to be measured in accordance with other
IFRSs. They are income taxes, employee
benefits, share-based payment and non
current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations. Any non-
controlling interest in an acquiree is
measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets. The Group will apply IFRS 3
(Revised) from 1 January 2010.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEESTTHEBE (@)
(Cont'd)

(b) Revised accounting estimates and change of
accounting policy

(b) BT EERETBREE

(i) FRBRBZE AL E T

(i)  Treatment of aircraft and engine overhaul costs

92

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group reviewed the way it accounts for certain
aircraft maintenance activities and decided to
change its accounting policy with respect to the
cost of major overhauls of airframes and engines
held under operating leases. The review of the
Group’s accounting policy was, in part, initiated
in response to recent changes in generally
accepted accounting practice in the United States
which have eliminated the use of the accrual
method for overhauls.

Previously, the Group accrued for the cost of
periodic major overhauls of airframes over the
period between overhauls based on flying hours
but only accrued for certain return condition
checks for engines based on the specific terms
of operating lease agreements. The Group has
now adopted a new policy under which the
periodic cost of major overhauls of both airframes
and engines is expensed as incurred and accrual
is made for the estimated cost of return condition
checks (for both airframes and engines) on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. The Group determined that its new policy
for accounting of overhauls for aircraft under
operating leases is more relevant and appropriate
in the context of the significant growth in the
size of the Group’s fleet. The new policy is
consistent with similar policies adopted by many
other large international airlines with mature
fleets. The impact of the change in accounting
policy for airframes is immaterial to the amounts
reported in prior years. If the adjustments had
been applied retrospectively, the impact would
have been to decrease aircraft maintenance
expense and loss for the year ended 31 December
2006 by RMB78 million (2005: increase aircraft
maintenance expense and loss for the year by
RMB26 million).
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEESTHEBE (@)

(Cont’d)
(b) Revised accounting estimates and change of (b) BHHEFIEERESHBREE
accounting policy (Cont'd) (%)

() RBRIBEABHESH

(i)  Treatment of aircraft and engine overhaul costs

(Cont’d)

As part of the Group’s review of its accounting
for overhaul costs, inconsistencies were identified
in (1) the way that the Group’s previous policies
had been applied to certain individual engines
based on interpretation of their lease contracts;
and (2) the accounting for maintenance costs
under certain “Power by hour” contracts where
maintenance contractors receive agreed payments
based on the number of operating hours for the
engine. The net effect of the necessary
adjustments, if they had been applied
retrospectively, would have been to increase
aircraft maintenance expense and loss for the
year ended 31 December 2006 by RMB33 million
(2005: decrease aircraft maintenance expense and
loss for the year by RMB35 million). The impact
of these corrections is immaterial to the amounts
reported in prior years.

The aggregate impact of the application of the
change in accounting policy and the correction
of the inconsistencies referred to above is
immaterial to both the 2007 and prior year
financial statements and all changes have been
recognised in the current year. The cumulative
impact of the new policy and the corrections
was an increase of RMB31 million in net assets
and profit as of and for the year ended 31
December 2007.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEESTTHEBE (@)

(Cont'd)
(b) Revised accounting estimates and change of (b) B EFBRERESHBREE
accounting policy (Cont'd) (%)

(ii)  Change in useful life of flight equipment (i) REBREHEHFREE

(iii)

The Group has changed the estimated useful life
of flight equipment. Previously, flight equipment
was depreciated over 20 years plus an annual
provision of 7% for scrapped items. The economic
useful life of flight equipment has been reviewed
and it is now depreciated over 10 years with no
annual provision for scrapped items with effect
from 1 January 2007. Management considers the
new treatment more accurately reflects past
experience and is consistent with industry
practice. The change in estimate has resulted in
a decreased depreciation charge of RMB44 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Change in depreciation method for components
related to engine overhaul

The Group has changed the depreciation method
applied to components related to engine
overhauls. Previously, components related to
engine overhauls were depreciated on a straight-
line basis over 2 to 8 years. The economic useful
life of components related to engine overhauls
has been reviewed and component costs are now
depreciated between each overhaul period using
the ratio of actual flying hours and estimated
flying hours between overhauls. Management
considers the new policy better reflects the
pattern in which the component’s future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed by the
entity. The change in estimate has resulted in a
decreased depreciation charge of RMB109 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007.
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(c) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEESTHEBE (@)

(Cont’d)
(c) Consolidation (Cont'd)
(i)  Subsidiaries

(c) EEE (8
(i) HWEBAA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by
the Group, including those acquired from holding
companies. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

(c) Consolidation (Cont'd)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with
parties external to the Group. Disposals to
minority interests result in gains and losses for
the Group that are recorded in the income
statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s investments in
associates includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on
acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEESTHEBE (@)

(Cont’d)
(c) Consolidation (Cont'd)
(iii) Associates (Cont’d)

(c) KEE (&
(iii) B & 2 7] ()

(1v)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are

AREBEEBENEZHR
SRR ER W st B R
LRRIERABEREE o IR
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B2BE  RRAKREREBR
IR LARTES - BHE ARl E
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RS N RS BB N

recognised in the consolidated income statement. B RIER ©
In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments EARRRIZEEBERA -

in associates are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2(n)). The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity in which
the Group has joint control over its economic
activity established under a contractual
arrangement. The Group’s investments in jointly
controlled entities includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on
acquisition.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by the equity method of
accounting based on the audited financial
statements or management accounts of the jointly
controlled entities. The Group’s share of its
jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements is
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in that entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
jointly controlled entity.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEESTTHEBE (@)

(Cont'd)
(c) Consolidation (Cont'd) (c) EEE ()
(iv) Jointly controlled entities (Cont'd) (iv) REZFEE (&)
The Group recognises the portion of gains or REEHMERZEGER
losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the EEEREMEE T EER
joint venture that it is attributable to the other BEIMDERAR - A&E
venturers. The Group does not recognise its share TERA S B M EIE '
of profits or losses from the joint venture that BEABEMEEZEGE
result from the Group’s purchase of assets from LERE  BRIFEEHKE
the joint venture until it resells the assets to an EBETE=F -Am &
independent party. However, a loss on the BB IBER RS EERNT]
transaction is recognised immediately if the loss SIFER D R IRREE
provides evidence of a reduction in the net B RGEBARER -
realisable value of current assets, or an
impairment loss.
In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments EARRRIZEERBERA -
in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost ARSI E S 2 I E R
less provision for impairment losses. The results NEHRBEBRER?T
of jointly controlled entities are accounted for IR o EEEHIERE 2 ¥EH
by the Company on the basis of dividends RARHRE W R AR EA
received and receivable. Bk o
(d) Segmental reporting (d)y DEBFHE
A business segment is a group of assets and operations EB DN SIRMEE DR
engaged in providing products or services that are W—HAEEMNFER - MEMIAR
subject to risks and returns that are different from 765 B [ e A0 (2] 3R £ L o S 7% 95 B
those of other business segments. A geographical BINE] o MR 7 EPHETE EERE
segment is engaged in providing products or services KERRAREREEDIR
within a particular economic environment that are % - BEMTAREA R NE R
subject to risks and returns that are different from B H A BIRIB R S B D
those of segments operating in other economic B)NE o
environments.
(e) Foreign currency translation (e) SEEE
(i)  Functional and presentation currency (i) ZHEER Z AR &
Items included in the financial statements of REBESEERNMBRE
each of the Group’s entities are measured using FroTE B AR B & BT
the currency of the primary economic environment ) E 2R ERENE SR
in which the entity operates (the “functional = ([T - REe0T%
currency”). The consolidated financial statements WERAAREZ:H - AR
are presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), which RARANINEERINEE
is the Company’s functional and presentation o
currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e)

(f)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(ii)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Revenue recognition and sales in advance of
carriage

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and the
provision of services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of business
and value-added taxes, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is
not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i)  Traffic revenues

Passenger, cargo and mail revenues are
recognised as traffic revenues when the
transportation services are provided. The value
of sold but unused tickets is recognised as sales
in advance of carriage (“SIAC”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

()

(9)

(h)

Revenue recognition and sales in advance of
carriage (Cont’d)

(ii)) Commission income

Commission income represents amounts earned
from other carriers in respect of sales made by
the Group on their behalf, and is recognised in
the income statement upon ticket sales.

(iii) Other revenue

Revenues from other operating businesses,
including income derived from the provision of
ground services and cargo handling services, are

recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income from subleases of aircraft is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the respective leases. Rental income from
leasing office premises and cargo warehouses is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Government grants

Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of aircraft and engines under operating leases,
the Group has the responsibility to fulfill certain return
conditions under the leases. Provision for the estimated
cost of these return condition checks is made on a
straight line basis over the term of the leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(h)

@)

(k)

Maintenance and overhaul costs (Cont’d)

In respect of aircraft and engines owned by the Group
or held under finance leases, overhaul costs are
capitalised as a component of property, plant and
equipment and are depreciated over the appropriate
maintenance cycles (note 2(m)).

All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
the income statement as and when incurred.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans
is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset, including the interest attributable to
loans for advance payments used to finance the
acquisition of aircraft, are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

Current and deferred tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the jurisdictions where
the Company and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(k)

O]

Current and deferred tax (Cont’'d)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Intangible assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled
entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisition of subsidiaries is included in
“intangible assets”. Goodwill on acquisition of
associates and jointly controlled entities is
included in “investments in associates” and
“investments in jointly controlled entities” and
is tested for impairment as part of the overall
balances. Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses
on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Intangible assets (Cont’'d)

(Cont’d)
(V)
(1)
(1i)
(iii)

(m)

Goodwill (Cont’d)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating units
or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Sponsorship fees

Sponsorship fees paid and payable in relation to
the 2010 Shanghai Expo have been capitalised
and are being amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the sponsorship program. The
cost of the intangible asset is calculated based
on the expected cash payment and the fair value
of the services to be provided.

Computer software costs

Acquired computer software licenses are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives of
5 to 6 years. Costs associated with developing
or maintaining computer software programmes
are recognised as expense when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognised initially at
cost which comprises purchase price, and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to the condition
for their intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(m)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’'d)

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and
equipment is stated at fair value, based on periodic
valuations less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Adjustment to carrying
values is made where they are materially different from
fair value. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. Increases in the
carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to
the revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. Decreases
that offset previous increases relating to the same asset
are charged against the revaluation reserve directly in
shareholders” equity; all other decreases are charged to
the income statement.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately.

When each major aircraft overhaul is performed, its
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment and is depreciated
over the appropriate maintenance cycles. Components
related to airframe overhaul cost, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over 2 to 8 years. Components related
to engine overhaul costs, are depreciated between each
overhaul period using the ratio of actual flying hours
and estimated flying hours between overhauls. Upon
completion of an overhaul, any remaining carrying
amount of the cost of the previous overhaul is
derecognised and charged to the income statement.

Except for components related to overhaul costs,
depreciation method of which has been described in
the proceeding paragraph, other depreciation of
property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to write down their costs or
revalued amounts to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment

10 to 20 years

Buildings 15 to 35 years
Other property, plant and 5 to 20 years
equipment
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note

2(n)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the assets’ carrying amount
and are recognised in the income statement. When
revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained profits.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment, being mainly
flight simulators, pending instalation. This includes the
costs of construction or acquisition and interest
capitalised. No depreciation is provided on construction
in progress until the asset is completed and ready for
use.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, jointly controlled entities and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or which are
not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Other assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that have suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each balance
sheet date.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent acquisition costs of land
use rights less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is provided over the lease period of the land use rights
on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(p)

(a)

(n

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft represent
payments to aircraft manufacturers to secure deliveries
of aircraft in future years, including attributable finance
costs, and are included in non-current assets. The
balance is transferred to property, plant and equipment
upon delivery of the aircraft.

Flight equipment spare parts

Flight equipment spare parts are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of flight
equipment spare parts comprises the purchase price (net
of discounts), freight charges, duty and value added
tax and other miscellaneous charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price of the flight equipment
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. When a
trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the provision account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(s)

()

(u)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any differences between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEESTTHEBE (@)

108

(Cont'd)
(v) Leases (v) HE
(i) A Group company is the lessee () FEAKLEREABEA
Finance leases FEHE

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has acquired
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other short-term
and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. Leased assets are depreciated using a
straight-line basis over their expected useful lives
to residual values.

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting in
a finance lease, differences between sales
proceeds and net book values are deferred and
amortised over the minimum lease terms.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting in
an operating lease, differences between sales
proceeds and net book values are recognised
immediately in the income statement, except to
the extent that any profit or loss is compensated
for by future lease payments at above or below
market value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v)

(w)

Leases (Cont'd)
(ii) A Group company is the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
included in property, plant and equipment in
the balance sheet. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with
similar property, plant and equipment. Rental
income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes regarding pension and medical
benefits for employees organised by the municipal
governments of the relevant provinces. The contributions
to the schemes are charged to the income statement as
and when incurred.

In addition, the Group provides retirees with post-
retirement benefits including retirement subsidies,
transportation subsidies, social function activity
subsidies as well as other welfare. The Lliability
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the
fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service
costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of government bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions in excess of the greater of 10% of the
value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit
obligation are charged or credited to income over the
employees’ expected average remaining working lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

ER G #)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(w)

(x)

Retirement benefits (Cont’d)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the
income statement, unless the changes to the pension
plan are conditional on the employees remaining in
service for a specified period of time (the vesting
period). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
in the balance sheet at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether
the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents, at the inception of the
transaction, the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are accounted for as trading
instruments and any unrealised gains or losses, being
changes in fair value of the derivatives, are recognised
in the income statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges and that
are highly effective, are recorded in the income
statement, along with any changes in the fair value of
the hedged assets or liabilities that are attributable to
the hedged risk.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007

2. EESTBOREE (@

(w) BERKRER @

VARTBRTS B R B R AR

FRIFZ RN EIR LR TR
B B (s8] 2 Rigk
ARIEMRE ° FULER T - ARTAR

BERUNEXaMNREREE
8 °

TRITETA
ERITAETERZRERNEER
BERARAEER - HRARR
BEEFE - BREAAEEH

MEERFZERITETARS
AERTA - R - ARRTFHPR
$HHIR B MIEEME

AEERTURSEREHTA
H¥HRIEE 2 @R - LEERR
EREERPTLZEHARZZ
RESIERE 8% © $§lﬁﬂﬁ
SERR B MRS EEAE -
ﬁﬁ%#;ﬁ%#%%&%Zﬁ
£ TR RESEABUIEEY
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁtﬁiﬁiﬁ@m
S o

AERMITETANTAERSR
RABERRAEETR - Hi
’Ajﬂ?"fﬁL EMELRNAREIRB
S EE RS RN T AR

_7J
e ©

ERAERFEBERNAAEE
H - HAAENESHBAERER
AEEBHEANEENRE
BRAENES R -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(%)

(v)

Derivative financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge
accounting and which are designated as a specific hedge
of the variability in cashflows of a highly probable
forecast transaction, are accounted for as follows:

(i) the effective portion of any change in fair value
of the derivative financial instrument is
recognised directly in equity. Where the forecast
transaction or firm commitment results in the
recognition of an asset or a liability, the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are
included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the asset or liability. Otherwise, the cumulative
gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument
is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement in the same period during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects
net profit or loss.

(ii)  the ineffective portion of any change in fair
value is recognised in the income statement
immediately.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when
a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
in the income statement when the committed or forecast
transaction ultimately occurs. When a committed or
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was recorded in equity
is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in securities other than subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, being held
for non-trading purposes, are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet
date, the fair value is remeasured, with any resulting
gain or loss being recognised directly in equity, except
for impairment losses. When these investments are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(v)

(2)

(aa)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the securities below its cost is
considered an indicator that the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss, measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement, is
removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

Comparatives

Where necessary, prior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in
the current year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and fuel
price risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007

2. EESTBOREE (@

(¥)

AHHESHEE (B
AEEESESE RN ERE
EEZBEEARASHEERR
HERMEERDRE - HNDHE
AAHHERNRIERS - EEE
HENESS L ERRER &
ERBHFAABEOKNELEY
BREEREAANE - SR HEE
MBEEFEILEER - BN
ZEEE (BEBRAEERQ
RENERE  BEXEMBEE A
R R R H TR ER RS
8) BERT ZIFR A B R
ik o R R ER A T AR
EEEISEBREREM -

R
DERTARABRRZBEAMRAR
AR SR AL/ % B & BRE R A AR
SEZEE-

(aa) lt BE & #

WERE  URTFERIESREE

e

3. TREMEE
(a) eRAREZE

REER)EERTE LB
R 5 R R (B E R
% DAEMNERER RERE
=R MAUBERER) - 5
ERR LB E SRR - NEE
HERRMRE R S IR
TISEETRRIN - WSREER
EHAREMBRRVEETT
& AEENMATESRITA
HrETAINER -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (the “Group Treasury”) under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Group Treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments.

(1)

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the
US dollars, Japanese Yen and Euro. Foreign
exchange risk arises from ticket sales made in
overseas offices, expenses, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
RMB.

The Group normally generates sufficient foreign
currencies for payment of foreign currency
expenses. The Group also enters into certain
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge
against foreign currency risk. Details of foreign
currency forward contracts are disclosed in Note
36(b) to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

3. ERAREE (§
(a) SFMEMREZE (@)
(i) SHEmB ()

TRRE T EERAFTEY
R B e SNERR -

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to

currency risk.

Group
6
2007 2006
IN)] Euro JPY Usb Euro JPY
ETr E A e BT BT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Trade and other JE U HR 3 R
receivables {8 Y5k 1,019,506 54,185 420,927 712,769 38,698 212,987
Cash and cash RERAEEED
equivalents 736,951 92,205 70,996 435,944 66,454 68,950
Trade and other ERER R
payables H it AT 5 (317,867)  (6,017) (16)  (315,560) (955) (170)
Obligation under BERERRE
finance leases (15,417,522) - (1,034,688) (9,733,992) - (1,615,949)
Borrowings B (17,196,836)  (130,145) - (16,698,321)  (100,000) -
Currency derivatives FEEEZ
at notional value EBTER 241,052 = = 259,069 = =
Net balance sheet BETERZE
expostire (30,934,626) 10,228  (542,781) (25,340,091) 4,197 (1,334,182)
Company
A H
2007 2006
usD Euro JPY Usb Euro JPY
ETr B A e BT BT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade and other JE U HR F R
receivables ot e Y% 876,175 2,366 419,604 593,298 1,252 208,717
Cash and cash RERAEEED
equivalents 460,383 60,122 57,480 412,160 61,029 54,871
Trade and other ERER R
payables B it e £ 5 (315,576)  (5,833) (16)  (315,560) (178) (170)
Obligation under BEMERR
finance leases (12,737,815) - (1,034,688) (8,028,824) - (1,615,949)
Borrowings B (16,874,186)  (130,145) - (16,010,787)  (100,000) -
Currency derivatives FEE[EZ
at notional value ERTEm 241,052 = - 259,069 = =
Net balance sheet ~ EEFEXFE
exposure (28,349,967)  (73,490) (557,620) (23,000,644)  (38,497) (1,352,531)
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

3. eREAKRERE (&
(a) &EtEEEZ (&)
(i) SMER B (4&)
TRETNREEARBRR
HNEETE SR B A BEY B IR B
By - BIEX EFA5% - &
REBFQ R BT AT K
a0l -4

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s and the Company’s profit
and loss and other components of consolidated
equity in response to a 5% appreciation of the
RMB against the following currencies at the
balance sheet date.

Group
£H
2007 2006
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit and components profit and components
(loss) of equity (loss) of equity
HABR HEmZHM HANER HEDHAM
BEENEE HONTE BENTE HHHOTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTT ARETT
US dollars ETT 1,555,851 1,228 1,259,358 9,760
Euro B T (511) - (210) -
Japanese Yen Ht 27,139 - 66,709 -
Company
R F)
2007 2006
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit and components profit and components
(loss) of equity (loss) of equity
HABR HEDZHEM HANEE HESHEM
BENTE DONTE BFEENTYE FHOTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTRT AR®TR
US dollars EY 1,426,618 1,228 1,146,886 9,760
Euro &1 7T 3,675 - 1,925 -
Japanese Yen = 27,881 - 67,627 -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

3. TRIAMREE (F)
(a) £RIEEEE (&)
(i) FIF E B

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk primarily arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
During 2007 and 2006, the Group’s borrowings
at variable rates were primarily denominated in
US dollars. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of borrowings made to the Group and
interest rate swaps are disclosed in Notes 30
and 36(a) to the financial statements.

To hedge against the variability in the cash flows
arising from a change in market interest rates,
the Group has entered into certain interest rate
swaps to swap variable rates into fixed rates.

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s interest rate profile of the interest-
bearing financial instruments at the balance sheet
date.

RMB'000
ARBTRE AREBETT

AEENNEREEERE
REIER o IREEHEREIT
NERLSAEEAZER LM
SRR o REEMEE
THERSAEBAZ DA
ENERR - RZZTLF
ZETRFAN - ARER
FRNEAENEREEZNU
ETLER - MEX - £EM
B REBGERIARF Ei=
HEBERM B RENTE
3005 E36(a) ©

BT SR TSI S,
FialERE S RS - A%
iR — ORI R E
B E B BEEFIE -

TEER T EERATER
B AR SR T AN
FISRER, -

Company
nF
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Fixed rate BEERMETH
instruments
Borrowings B (9,734,862)

Obligations under FEHETEE

(14,570,519)

(9,477,525) (8,631,474)

(9,304,320 (11,992,404) (7,653,794)

3,342,023 3,829,675

finance leases
Interest rate | =& $5 5

swaps 3,342,023
Net exposure FE

(20,963,358) (14,253,704) (18,127,906) (12,455,593)
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

(a) Financial risk factors

(Cont’'d)

(ii)  Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

3. cEEREE (@
(a) *REABEE (&)
(i) & @B (&)

Group Company
£8 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETRT AR®BTR ARBTE
Floating rate FEAEITA
instruments
Cash and cash RBeRk
equivalents ReEEBY 1,655,244 1,987,486 1,040,897 1,109,834
Borrowings - (20,128,966) (19,328,681) (16,116,832) (15,215,319)
Obligations under BMEMEETEE
finance leases (1,881,691) (2,548,278) (1,780,598) (2,493,636)
Interest rate =4 Hf
swaps 1,217,691 1,097,224 1,217,691 1,097,224
(19,137,722) (18,792,249) (15,638,842) (15,501,897)
The following table indicates the approximate TRERTEERARNFEKEBNHAR

BB LA R BRI R A A B AT AL L B R
HEE P ECHD AR PR R0 B -

change in the Group’s and the Company’s profit
and loss and other components of equity in
response to reasonable possible changes in the
interest rate.

2007 2006
Increase/ Effect on  Increase/ Effect on
(decrease)  Effect on other  (decrease)  Effect on other
in interest  profit and components in interest  profit and components
rates (loss)  of equity rates (loss)  of equity

Rzrs/ HAUBR HE&EHE NELH/ HNER BESEt
BE BRNFE BHNTE RE BENYE BhayE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR

Floating rate FEHHETH
instruments 0.25% (57,681) 27,872 0.25% (36,086) 1,227
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

ER G #)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(iii)  Fuel price risk

(1v)

The Group’s results of operations may be
significantly affected by fluctuations in fuel
prices which is a significant expense for the
Group. Aircraft fuel accounts for 35% of the
Group’s operating expenses for the year ended
31 December 2007 (2006: 33%). The Group has
entered into certain financial derivatives to hedge
against fuel price risk. Details of fuel option
contracts are disclosed in Note 36(c) to the
financial statements.

For the year ended, if fuel prices had been 5%
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the impact is shown below.

3. TRERERE (@)

(a) £EIAREZE (&)

(iii) A 1B 15 &l B2
HABARER —BEEE
EEBEY I Rk ANEERE

BRASXE

|0 e (B AR B

I e HE TS +F+
ZA=t—HIEFEMBAX
EEEBEZES HAI35%

(2006 : 33%)

o REEERB

L ROTAE TERE
HERRE o fUREIES K
MFHIB IR BN RS 1

F£36(c)

52007512 A31H * InRM
SRER EF R T5%
mMEREEEZEE T&—HK

BIEAIRER T H M EE
iE - BIRZERE R EN
T~
2007 2006
Effect Effect
on profit on profit
and loss and loss
#FE R A &
EENTE EBEOZE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR® T
Net increase HELEH - FE
in fuel price 8,766 17,960
Net decrease HERE  FE
in fuel price (17,531) (45,290)
Credit risk (iv) EE R

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to sales
agents. The Group has a credit policy in place to
monitor the exposures to these credit risks on
an on-going basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

3. EREMERE (@
(a) E=EEREZE (&

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(1v)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
blank tickets are only made available to sales
agents with an appropriate credit history. A major
portion of sales are conducted through sales
agents and the majority of these agents are
connected to various settlement plans and/or
clearing systems which impose requirements on
their credit standing.

A significant portion of the Group’s air tickets
are sold by agents participating in the Billing
and Settlements Plan (“BSP”), a clearing system
between airlines and sales agents organised by
the International Air Transportation Association.
The balance due from BSP agents amounted to
approximately RMB896 million as at 31 December
2007 (2006: RMB650 million).

Except for the above, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with the exposure
spreading over a number of counterparties.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in Note 24.

The Group’s cash management policy is to deposit
cash and cash equivalents mainly in state-owned
banks and other banks, which are highly rated
by an international credit rating company. The
Group also deposits cash and cash equivalents in
an associate financial institution owned by its
holding company (Note 42). The management
does not expect any loss to arise from non-
performance by these banks and financial
institution.

(iv) EEm B (&)

AEEE ARG
ARTRMT A RITEE
SHERIEA « AEBX
EHP I ERIBRIE AT -
I AABBREALESSR
ESBEHHBREE RS
B R R A R
B -

AN B /) FRURBR 3R KB
AR HEFAREEE T
2] ([BSP]) IR EAKIK
18 - ©EBEMm R A
fRzE A RIARIE A 2 A
MIHELEE RG - HIL—F
E+HE+-_A=+—Hit"
N5 B FEUIBSPRIE A HYFR
THAAANREE-I6 A &L (=
TERF  ARK6508E

JC) ©

fr bt RIRID - AREE
STHNEXEERR -

Sl B b A0 IR R 51 AR
EERRN T4 KE

AEBHEEERS LR EF
BV - EZEHEFHRN
BARIT R E M —LLIRTT -
BIFRE A AR i A iE LR
TERSHIEASHETE -
R - SEERRS MRS
EEYEN BRI
Rz BYBHE GEE
42) - BEEERRTENE
LESRITM S BB R BT
IR FTER R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

ER G #)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &
For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. TRIAMREE (F)

120

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont'd) (a) ERABEE (&

(iv) Credit risk (Cont’d) (iv) FEE Bz (&)
Transactions in relation to derivative financial PTESRTARSRERE
instruments are only carried out with financial B RIIEETT - fEIEH
institutions of high reputation. The Group has N WEEE B HATER
policies that limit the amount of credit exposure o MEREINTTEERE L
to any one financial institution. Management EHHERTELORITAT
does not expect any losses from non-performance EEEE -
by these banks.

(v) Liquidity risk (v) RBELEE
The Group’s primary cash requirements have been AEENFERSFRKAR
for additions of and upgrades to aircraft, engines M - BB R RITERIEAY
and flight equipment and payments on related RNEIARREEEEEE
borrowings. The Group finances its working HKAE - AEEBIEEE
capital requirements through a combination of B MRITERRBER
funds generated from operations and both short FrSHiREa B K meHE
and long term bank loans. The Group generally BESHNFER - AEERAT
finances the acquisition of aircraft through long- LA EHEMRITERN S
term finance leases and bank loans. AIREE R
The Group operates with a working capital deficit. ZIKE@%E%L@%Q@?E&&E@
As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s net current R TEE N TTLF

liabilities amounted to RMB26,074 million (2006:
RMB24,616 million). For the year ended 31
December 2007, the Group recorded a net cash
inflow from operating activities of RMB2,695
million (2006: RMB1,339 million), a net cash
outflow from investing activities and financing
activities of RMB3,011 million (2006: RMB1,258

+_H_-|- B &AEEBEH
FRBEBEBHNAARKE
260.741BTC (ZETRF ¢
ARHE246.161E7T) ° A
EEEHF+_A=1+—
BIEFE  AEBHRE/HE
BERESFRANAEARK

million), and an decrease in cash and cash 26.951% E(_gi/\ﬁ
equivalents of RMB316 million (2006: RMB80 AR®13.39187T) « IREE
million). @&Kﬂﬁ/ﬁ@m/ﬂiﬁﬁfmﬂj
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

3. TEEMEE (@)
(a) &EtEEEZ (&)

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(v)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The Directors of the Company believe that cash
from operations and short-term bank borrowings
will be sufficient to meet the Group’s operating
cashflow. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group’s treasury policy
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping credit lines available. The Directors of
the Company believe that the Group has obtained
sufficient general credit facilities from PRC banks
for financing future capital commitments and for
working capital purposes.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserves on the basis of expected
cash flows:

The table below analysis the Group’s financial
liabilities that will be settled into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

(v) "B E L@ (F)

ARBEERANEE A
BB EE RIRTTR IS FER
BRANEEES - AT
ENMEZE  NEEEB
R E AN E MEBELIRG
REENEETTE - ART]
EFEREAKECAPER
NRTTESHERNEER
[Z - BB ARIRE AR
XMEREEMTES °

EEEREREHRSNE
EESENRBESFHER
RETEA

TRETAEERARTH
M aE R EEESEE
MemasE  EREENE
BRI - RIBREEHEAR
MR HA B TSR IR TS
e ERARBENSEAS
HERBVRMIRERE ©
REFIR AR ERK - BULE
1218 A A EHAR &R E R
HIREE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(v) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

3. TREREE (@
(a) EEEAREZE (&)

(v) nBEZRE (&)

Group
£8
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
1F 0T 1228 R 285F R 5F U £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARKETRT ARBTIT ARETE
At 31 December Z=—ZEELHF
2007 +=-A=+-—-8
Borrowings IRITE K 18,494,521 5,927,098 4,216,517 1,225,692
Derivative financial T4 <@ T E
instruments 20,238 441 5,120 15,997
Obligations under BMEMREAE
finance leases 2,545,223 1,567,253 4,205,352 8,134,382
Trade and other J& 1 BR 3 &%
payables H & < 3K 12,108,423 - 339,064 314,884
Total FEkE 33,168,405 7,494,792 8,766,053 9,690,955
At 31 December —TERF
2006 +=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings  #RITE K 16,016,327 3,053,315 7,560,389 1,477,709
Derivative financial T4 <@ T E
instruments 124,722 13,006 1,090 -
Obligations under BMEMREAE
finance leases 2,803,956 1,940,937 2,602,151 4,505,554
Trade and other JE 1 BR 3 &%
payables H & < 3K 12,137,307 = 448,176 314,884
Total LR 31,082,312 5,007,258 10,611,806 6,298,147
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. TRIERERE (B
(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d) (a) 2REKEE (&)
(v) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (v) REELEE (&)
Company
N

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
1T 1225 R 2E55F 5F N E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

At 31 December Z=—ZBE+LHF

2007 +=HA=+-—H
Borrowings RITER 15,943,774 5,515,186 3,266,554 868,843
Derivative financial mii R T A

instruments 20,238 441 5,120 15,997
Obligations under FEMHEETEE

finance leases 2,316,781 1,342,166 3,494,960 6,618,596
Trade and other ERTBR R K

payables H 5 5K 10,417,708 - 268,064 314,884
Total BE 28,698,501 6,857,793 7,034,698 7,818,320
At 31 December —EERF

2006 +-A=+—H
Bank borrowings  (R{TE R 13,004,878 2,953,315 7,020,891 867,709

Derivative financial T4 & T A

instruments 124,722 13,006 1,090 -
Obligations under FMEMHEETEE
finance leases 2,636,057 1,794,916 2,180,700 3,535,757
Trade and other JE 1 BR 3 K&
payables H At JE 1< 5K 10,547,694 - 318,568 314,884
Total K] 26,313,351 4,761,237 9,521,249 4,718,350
(b) Capital risk management (b) EXEEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to $E.E’]ﬁ$afiﬂlﬁ ERE
safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going REBEEEIE - ARIRRIRM
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders @*ﬁfﬂﬁﬁ@%wﬁﬁ}\};ﬂ L
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an ' FIR R R ENE NG LA
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. ﬂ1&§$ﬁk$
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, %Tﬁﬁ?—irﬂzmﬁﬁlkii% &
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to AlRE S AR TR S
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new %Z%Ei MR D IR E ARE -
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. BRI EEENRERSE
j‘% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

3. SREKERE (#)
(b) EXREEERE ()

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
(b) Capital risk management (Cont’d)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity,
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2006 and 2007 were
as follows:

HEERNEMAT —5 - AEEF
FAAELREREEN o iR
RIRERS FRAGR AR ERNGTE
BERFRSREERERE MR
TFHFEY - BEAR ] (10

RAEBEERBRMY) NERF

B o
H

—EEHFR_TERFTZ
A=+—8 ' aELERAT :

2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF

Total borrowings BEE 29,863,828 28,107,740
Less: Cash and B BEeRIREEEY

cash equivalents (1,655,244) (1,987,486)

Net debt B %5 28,208,584 26,120,254

Total equity B 3,027,763 2,814,897

Total capital =i 31,236,347 28,935,151

Gearing ratio BERE 0.90 0.90

(c) THEENESRMEBNANE

(c) Fair value estimation of financial assets and

124

liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading
and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price; the quoted market price used
for financial liabilities is the current asking price.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value estimation of financial assets and
liabilities (Cont'd)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments. The fair value of interest-rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts is determined using forward
exchange market rates at the balance sheet date. The
fair value of fuel option contracts is determined using
quoted market values.

The carrying value less impairment provision for trade
receivables and the carrying value of payables
approximate their fair values. The fair values of other
long-term receivables are based on cash flows discounted
using a rate based on the borrowing rate. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments (Notes
29 and 30).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

3. EREMERE (@

(c) EREENESHEBENARE
AP ()
REEERMEEENEMTA
BV AR EN B EERMEE - &
SEFNAZETL - WRIEEE
FERERNTSIERELR
& o REIEHHBREUTANT
SHREIARFHREETE - Hitw
By flanfEEt BRI R E
AAEEESREMTANRAR
18 - MR R AERGERTR
FHREREMNRETE - EHH
ESNNARENREREREH
MGERETE - fumHES N
DAENATESREETE

JE USSR RN FE A 3R A BR TE (B TR Rk B
BEEEREOIEAAE - K
JEURBR TR A A B - Th2mEnIs
REMEMERMEFTATE 1
AFEEN  SRMEEAREN
HEHEARR GRS REBURE
EfEem T ArSRIREMS
AR T E GERE294130)

4. EEGFHEFTRAE

i BB T R R IS TR A RO (7 R0 )
B AR A A A A =55
BEITIHE - BEERBEBRATHE
SERKEMNEIETRR - A5KH
BRRIELEENRR - FISNE
AHERMEER  ROGEAER
RERMR - RAKSEZ T EV K
FREMNBEEMBENERREFLE
ANFBNEEMRRIHBAOT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

ER G #)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets have been impaired in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2(n) to the
financial statements. The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates including gross margin, growth rate and
discount rate which are disclosed in Note 16(a) to the
financial statements.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment is
subsequently stated at fair value, based on periodic
valuations less subsequent accumulated depreciation in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2(m) to the financial statements. If the subsequent
fair value differ materially from carrying amounts, the
carrying amounts will be adjusted to the fair value.
Their recorded value is impacted by management
judgment, including valuations performed by
management and/or independent professional valuers,
estimates of useful lives, residual values and impairment
charges. If different judgments or estimates had been
utilised, material differences could have resulted in the
amount of revaluation and related depreciation charges.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises passenger, cargo and mail revenues
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2(f) to the financial statements. Unused tickets are
recognised in traffic revenues based on current
estimates. Management annually evaluates the balance
in the Sales in advance of carriage account (“SIAC”)
and records any adjustments, which can be material, in
the period the evaluation is completed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

These adjustments result from differences between the
estimates of certain revenue transactions and the timing
of recognising revenue for any unused air tickets and
the related sales price, and are impacted by various
factors, including a complex pricing structure and
interline agreements throughout the industry, which
affect the timing of revenue recognition.

Overhaul costs

The amount of overhaul costs charged/amortised to
operating profits is impacted by management’s estimates
of the expected flying hours and overhaul costs, which
are largely based on past experience of overhauls of
the same or similar models of aircraft. Different
judgments or estimates could significantly affect the
estimated overhaul expense and materially impact the
results of operations.

Retirement benefits

The Group operates and maintains defined retirement
benefit plans which provide retirees with benefits
including transportation subsidies, social activity
subsidies as well as other welfare. The cost of providing
the aforementioned benefits in the defined retirement
benefit plan is actuarially determined and recognised
over the employees’ service period by utilising various
actuarial assumptions and using the projected unit credit
method in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2(w) to the financial statements. These
assumptions include, without limitation, the selection
of discount rate, annual rate of increase of per capita
benefit payment and employees’ turnover rate. The
discount rate is based on management’s review of local
high quality corporate bonds. The annual rate of increase
of benefit payments is based on the general local
economic conditions. The employees” turnover rate is
based on historical trends of the Group. Additional
information regarding the retirement benefit plans is
disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.

4. EEGTHEE R A (&)

(c)

WA BT ()

I FRBERANEWARZ B
B RIE AR R RHER ARA
HIBF ] M AR RRSH S B eV (A T
RAMEETRMNAEER &
ERAZNTE  BREMNE
RAER RAFAE AN Z H R BER
& HEFEWANERRE -

KIEE A

REB@mARPERNKEERZA
FTAIE BRI AR TR T/ Ry R TR R T
ERFE  EABHAREES
FERI AR LB SR TR K (B RV
SeAEER o TRIRFIET KA HTR
IR EEBEEATE - X
REERBEATE -

RAKER

IR BB s S RISV TE MR KR
FErEl Bl ARNERRERE
AL - IR ERRE AR AR
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R o BLRREE - B TRRIT
BE - NGRANFERERLE
BRARE - MRXEEEERE
HEMEMEEEESRHNE
it EFEER - AR FER
KRRV E BRI - BER
REZRBAKEEL BEMHETE
M) o BRE BRI AIET SR E
fbIE0 R aEkE34

PERAREROERLAT —STLFFH

127



128

4‘

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont'd)

(f)

Deferred income tax

In assessing the amount of deferred tax assets that
need to be recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2(k) to the financial statements,
the Group considers future taxable income and ongoing
prudent and feasible tax planning strategies. In the
event that the Group’s estimates of projected future
taxable income and benefits from available tax strategies
are changed, or changes in current tax regulations are
enacted that would impact the timing or extent of the
Group’s ability to utilise the tax benefits of net
operating loss carry forwards in the future, adjustments
to the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets and
taxation expense would be made.

REVENUES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of civil

4. EEGFHEET R AE (&)

(f)

SRR

REF BRI ER2(NTENE
AHBUR - EE BHERRLIEH
BENSHER AEBEEER
At AR R FESRB @ M B AT A THYREAR
BIARTBIRET - EARBBRA
K ERTRRT AR ERTE ) S @
REBIAF SIREE O 5B &
B - SEIRTTROARI N H AR
B TS BT R AR AR B R SR FERR

SABERIBNELAEIFE
ERPIEHER -

5. WA
AEBTIERLRMES  BREE

aviation, including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail B BiE - ERAMTEENERR
delivery and other extended transportation services. % e
Group
£8
2007 2006
—EELF ZETARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTFT
Revenues WA
Traffic revenues R RGN
- Passenger — K& 36,064,642 31,121,718
- Cargo and mail —EENEE 5,633,117 5,776,671
Ground service income b T AR 75 U A 1,001,809 893,960
Cargo handling income EYEE KA 364,638 289,530
Commission income RN 156,713 125,576
Others H 393,166 403,469
43,614,085 38,610,924
Less: Business tax (Note) o EER (GEE) (1,092,859) (976,792)
42,521,226 37,634,132
Note: SR

Except for traffic revenues derived from inbound international
and regional flights, which are not subject to the PRC business
tax, the Group’s traffic revenues, commission income, ground

service income, cargo handling income and other revenues are
subject to PRC business tax levied at rates of 3% or 5%, pursuant
to PRC business tax rules and regulations.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007

Ak BRI e 1 [ Ao 4R [0 A2 S i U S AU SR TR
Sh - REERBHRA - A2 - BER
BRAREMREBABRIETESEEE
1855 A1) B2 G191 #R3% 5 %14 7 B & 2 75



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET 6. Hftt& Xl - FHE
Group
£
2007 2006
—EELHE —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
Government subsidies (Note) BT BE GERE) 487,561 462,370
Net fair value gains/(losses) ME@W&IEA nEF
on financial instruments Was, (1B
- forward foreign exchange —9|\|‘?EEL@/E|\%’U
contracts 20,576 26,744
- fuel hedging income/ — MR E K (1B X)
(losses) 96,576 (64,849)
604,713 424,265
Note: e

HF MR E B R ()P R BFER
£ B H) R A N (i) B30 0 BUR R ek B AR &=
B LN E AR TROMES o

The government subsidies represent (i) subsidies granted by the
Central Government and local government to the Group; and (ii)
other subsidies granted by various local municipalities to encourage
the Group to operate certain routes to cities where these
municipalities are located.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that business segments be presented
as the primary reporting format and geographical as the
secondary reporting format.

TR,\\$%@ZW*BE7T?§$E(5: KEHE

EREREE D EBERMEREEHE
meE - mis@HmERIIERXE D
EBREAZS o

(a) Primary reporting format by business segment

(a) AEBIBRHETES Bﬂéiﬁ

REB D RMEZEBHE - D5l
BREDEBREE RS \T:?B
ZE D EMIRE PTIR MBI IR &2
BEMERERELEOFAEE

The Group has two business segments, namely passenger
and cargo and logistics, which are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the services they provide.

(1) Passenger business segment includes cargo (1) BEHEBD BB HEME
carried by passenger flights. B EERTS ©

(2) Inter-segment transfers or transactions are (2) DEEER RS AR
entered into under normal commercial terms and FaEt 2 3 = H R AR K

conditions that would also be available to
unrelated third parties.

RN R BTE ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. 7EEF (&)
(a) Primary reporting format by business segment (@) UEBIHBRETEIBERX
(Cont’d) &)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December (E-EELFINFERNDEE
2007 are as follows: BINTAIR
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
TE GERYR Ko E a&t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR

Traffic revenues 78 By W A 37,537,460 3,113,488 - 40,650,948
Other revenues H bl A K
Hfh g W 1,208,760 900,529 208,456 2,317,745

Total segment revenue 7 2B A A & 38,746,220 4,014,017 208,456 42,968,693
Inter-segment revenue % &AW A (348,643) - (98,824)  (447,467)
Revenues e A 38,397,577 4,014,017 109,632 42,521,226
Operating (loss)/profit  #&4 (E518) /# F

- segment results — D ERELS (182,147) 181,823 38,861 38,537
Finance income B 75 U A 2,034,611 84,481 789 2,119,881
Finance costs B % H (1,799,454) (164,685)  (14,411) (1,978,550)
Share of results of o E/NE]

associates E4 = = 58,312 58,312
Share of results of jointly {5 £t [&] 2 %

controlled entities ERERA - - 30,086 30,086
Profit before income tax 7 Al Jis A4 53,010 101,619 113,637 268,266
Income tax I8 38,835 (58,123) (4,475) (23,763)
Profit for the year F[E % F 91,845 43,496 109,162 244,503
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. 7EHER (&
(a) Primary reporting format by business segment (@ AEBIBRAETESI RN
(Cont’d) (#&)
Other segment items included in the income statement (E—EELFT_A=+—H
for the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows: LEFEBRESRFBERTNEMD

EBE B FIRAT

Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
TE BERYR Ko E a&t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBETRE ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR

Depreciation neE 3,991,253 646,364 42,749 4,680,366
Amortisation 35 119,913 11,051 586 131,550
Deficits on revaluation/ &E{&E IR(EE %k
impairment loss 130,921 - - 130,921
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2007 BE-_TT+F+-_A=1T—H
and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as EFEZHHEE  BERER
follows: M HIPRAT :
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
EFE EERYUR Ko B &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARB®TR AR®TRT AR®TR

Segment assets DEEE 60,725,717 5,286,774 1,125,583 67,138,074
Investments in associates % & FA B = N &) - - 601,119 601,119
Investments in jointly ~ WE R KR

controlled entities EH R - - 336,966 336,966
Total assets EEAG 60,725,717 5,286,774 2,063,668 68,076,159
Segment liabilities S A & (59,784,072) (4,196,729) (482,629)(64,463,430)
Capital expenditure BEARMZ N

(Notes 16 & 17) (FF¥16K%17) 13,334,367 642,795 7,730 13,984,892
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

ER G #)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(a)

Primary reporting format by business segment

7. 7

HEF ()

(a) AXBSBR/ERIHER

(Cont’d) (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE_ZTRFILFENHEE
2006 are as follows: BT HR ¢
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
FE SERYR R BC A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRE AR TR AR T
Traffic revenues ERBA 33,489,978 2,842,836 - 36,332,814
Other revenues H A A K
H & W 1,211,553 709,069 140,525 2,061,147
Total segment revenue 7 BB A A &f 34,701,531 3,551,905 140,525 38,393,961
Inter-segment revenue 7 2B YA (689,331) - (70,498)  (759,829)
Revenues A 34,012,200 3,551,905 70,027 37,634,132
Operating (loss)/profit — #&%& (&5 1#8) & F
- segment results —DEEE (2,770,861)  (242,526) 21,947  (2,991,440)
Finance income M E YA 989,473 17,639 1,451 1,008,563
Finance costs B (1,653,939)  (104,418) (7,624) (1,765,981)
Share of results of BnEE DA
associates E - - 103,566 103,566
Share of results of G R
jointly controlled ERXE
entities - - 29,595 29,595
(Loss)/profit before BiAT (&18) & Tl
income tax (3,435,327)  (329,305) 148,935  (3,615,697)
Income tax Bi1E 198,088 (30,262) (4,894) 162,932
(Loss)/profit for the year F/E (E5#) & F| (3,237,239)  (359,567) 144,041  (3,452,765)
Other segment items included in the income statement HE_TTF+_HA=+—H

for the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:

IFEERERABERTOEMLD

HEBFIRET

Cargo and

Passenger logistics Unallocated Total

FE SERYR RN BC A&t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTT

Depreciation e 3,937,182 524,150 32,240 4,493,572

Amortisation 55 103,606 - - 103,606
Deficits on revaluation/ &Ff&h /R {E1E %k

impairment loss 1,035,343 - - 1,035,343
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. 7HEFR (&)
(a) Primary reporting format by business segment (@) UEBIHBRETESIHER
(Cont’d) (#&)

HE_ZZF+-_A=+—H
IFFEEzHHEE - ABRENR

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2006
and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as

follows: M HARAT
Cargo and

Passenger logistics Unallocated Total

¥iE BERYR RO ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTET

Segment assets DEEE 54,778,224 5,185,564 463,188 60,426,976
Investments in ®E R

associates N - - 623,390 623,390
Investments in jointly — &R ELFE

controlled entities i & g8 - - 115,540 115,540

Total assets BEAGT 54,778,224 5,185,564 1,202,118 61,165,906

Segment liabilities DEEE (53,632,097) (3,992,814) (64,352) (57,689,263)
Capital expenditure BEARMRZH

(Notes 16 & 17) (FFE16%17) 15,566,384 1,170,712 52,623 16,789,719

(b) Secondary reporting format by geographical (b) LEH DS BEXRERELR

segment

The Group’s two business segments operate in four main
geographical areas, even though they are managed on
a worldwide basis.

The Group’s revenues (net of business tax) by
geographical segment are analyzed based on the
following criteria:

(1)

(2)

Traffic revenue from services within the PRC
(excluding the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“Hong Kong”)) is classified as domestic
operations. Traffic revenue from inbound and
outbound services between the PRC, Hong Kong
or overseas markets is attributed to the segments
based on the origin and destination of each flight
segment.

Revenue from ticket handling services, airport
ground services and other miscellaneous services
are classified on the basis of where the services
are performed.

BE

FBELEI  AEEZR

185752 BRI PO 8 £ AV I8

4T o
ijx:m]'_ =

AEESHE 2 A (=
BEHEFE ST

(i)

(if)

RHPBEER (TRETER
BERNTRE ([FE])) 1R
RIS P ERER ) B S U A VB
REIREBUA - FRHF
BEBIEINTHREERN
(132 AR 7% FAT AR 038 i A
BBIMRARRIE 3 BB AR B
ZIER R HR FE U -

REERRBEUWA - #I5H
FIRIEUA K E At R ARHS
PERER e 4 A IR IR % AR TS
P 8155 A ek [ Y 56 75
WA ©

PERAREROERLAT —STLFFH

133



Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. 7EEF (&)
(b) Secondary reporting format by geographical (b) UEHSHERERELRX
segment (Cont'd) (&)
Group
£m
2007 2006
ZEEBLF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Domestic (the PRC, N(FE - TBEEE)
excluding Hong Kong) 24,125,288 20,948,698
Hong Kong B3 2,694,857 3,244,846
Japan H 7 3,642,220 3,582,962
Other countries H 4t B = 12,058,861 9,857,626
Total A&t 42,521,226 37,634,132

AEEETZRARFRERBEE - 1hF
RS EMNPE - ARAEE 2 FRER]
ETRMART BEER  RERUEFEE
AR ERES P AEDEME
- EUE I ARARIR IR 53 FB AR R B E e
BARMEE -

The major revenue-earning assets of the Group are its
aircraft, all of which are registered in the PRC. Since
the Group’s aircraft are deployed flexibly across its route
network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such
assets and the related liabilities to geographical
segments and hence segment assets and capital
expenditure by geographic segment have not been
presented.

8. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS 8. IE -HFER{ER

Group
£8
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTFT
Wages, salaries, bonus ITE %< CAKMM

and allowances 3,198,734 2,603,095
Employee welfare and benefits 1& 8 & F| & 7 &= 246,626 231,000
Defined contribution retirement & 28R K& 5 & (FEFE34(a))

schemes (Note 34(a)) 373,253 298,363
Post-retirement benefits EBERKEBEFNER (FEE34(b)

(Note 34(b)) 170,670 146,968
Staff housing fund (Note 35(a)) B T FEE % (FF#35(a)) 285,000 228,000
Staff housing allowance B I(ERE AL (FER35(b))

(Note 35(b)) 53,114 30,656

4,327,397 3,538,082
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

8.  WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont'd)

(a)

Emoluments of directors, supervisors and senior

management

Details of the emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors, supervisors and senior management are

8. T¥ HFETREFN @

(a) EE - EERERITHAEW

<=

XNHERAES - EENEHEIT

BABHME BFE T5I%E

as follows:
2007
—EZTtHF
Salaries and
allowances Bonus Total
FEeREs TEAL #Em
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTIT ARETT AREBTT
Executive Directors HITES
Li Fenghua* o - - -
Luo Chaogeng* EEARR* - - =
Cao Jainxiong* EEM = = =
Li Jun* ZE - - -
Luo Zhuping 7 L 187 - 187
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Hu Honggao s = 120 - 120
Peter Lok LEE 117 - 117
Wu Baiwang RAEHE 120 - 120
Zhou Ruijin Eime 120 - 120
Xie Rong EES 120 - 120
Supervisors EE
Liu Jiangbo* 2T * - - -
Xu Zhao* 1RER* - - -
Yang Jie 152 144 - 144
Wang Taoying F kR 169 - 169
Liu Jiashun 2K B - - -
Vice executive Directors BRTES
Zhang Jianzhong R 2 220 - 220
Li Yangmin ZER 202 - 202
Fan Ru B 676 - 676
Finance controller B 7 4 BE
Luo Weide EEE 207 - 207
Total |t 2,402 - 2,402

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

8. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont'd) 8. ITE¥ - FEekEFN (H)
(a) Emoluments of directors, supervisors and senior (a) EE - ESREMITHAEN
management (Cont'd) < (&)
2006
—ETRF
Salaries and
allowances Bonus Total
e kHmas 14T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRT AR®TrT AR%®TrT
Executive Directors HITESE
Li Fenghua* o = = =
Luo Chaogeng* EEARR = - -
Cao Jainxiong* EEE - - -
Wan Mingwu* ERHR - - -
Zhong Xiong* SE - - -
Luo Zhuping &M 157 - 157
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Hu Honggao* S = - - -
Peter Lok * BEE - - -
Wu Baiwang* RBAME* - - -
Zhou Ruijin* Aime* - - -
Xie Rong* FilE = = =
Supervisors EES
Li Wenxin* =3 i = = =
Ba Shengji* B A - - -
Yang Xingen EEARI 149 - 149
Yang Jie EDA 100 - 100
Liu Jiashun 2R 8 - - -
Vice executive Directors BETES
Zhang Jianzhong iR 176 - 176
Li Yangmin FER 156 - 156
Fan Ru BE 454 - 454
Finance controller B 75 48 B
Luo Weide EEE 173 - 173
Total &t 1,365 - 1,365
o Certain Directors of the Company received emoluments * ApaHmEZTRAAAARE
from CEA Holding, the parent company, part of which M A AR ERS - WHEEA
is in respect of their services to the Company and its AP EMER T REMNS -
subsidiaries. No apportionment has been made as it is AR ARESRAEUGEES
impractical to apportion this amount between their KBRS o LB AR SR B & R B R
services to the Group and their services to CEA Holding. sl - Bttt oELaElt
R AR -
During the year ended 31 December 2007, no Directors REBEZET+F+_A=1+—
and supervisors waived their emoluments (2006: Nil). BIEFE - WEEA—UEER
%)%E&ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ (ZFERF
) o
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # %

8.  WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont'd)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

One of the vice executive Directors, whose emoluments
are reflected in the above analysis was among the five
highest paid individuals in the Group for 2007. The
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2006: four)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

SEErEF A=+ —ALFE

ITE - HFEeREN @)

(b) AfuBEHFAENME
AEBRNGRESHFAES - Hep
—ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ%% HFSER

DHT P EEIE o TR
(2006- MUhL) sx=dr A BRI &
EJ-yulNE

Group
£8
2007 2006
—EZLHF —EETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETFTT
Wages, salaries, T& - %% fE4
bonus and allowances Ko 45 Bh 2,430 1,736
The emoluments fell within the following band: MERRBAT -

Number of individuals

A
2007 2006
—EELE —ETRF
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/8 7T LA T 4 4

During the year ended 31 December 2007, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors,
supervisors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a
compensation for loss of office (2006: Nil).

REBEZE_ZTLF+-_A=1+—Hit
FE > AEERBERBESFRAR
MAERTES  BEERAUKSH
AEBEAME (2T H) -

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

9. OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS

Operating profit/loss is stated after charging and crediting

9. REnF EE
SR LA B THIE

the following items: Bk :
Group
£8
2007 2006
—E2tHF N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R INSLES
Charging: kR -
Depreciation of property, ME  HBERBEITE
plant and equipment
- Leased —HE 1,839,928 1,418,781
- Owned —BE 2,840,438 3,074,791
Amortisation of intangible B EE#IE
assets 106,703 72,737
Amortisation of lease TEAS A & SR i
prepayments 24,847 30,869
Consumption of flight REFZES B
equipment spare parts 468,888 326,248
Allowances for obsolescence REZES M
of flight equipment PR &
spare parts 96,535 60,317
Deficits on revaluation/ ERAER K
impairment loss 130,921 1,035,343
Provision for impairment JE U bR 3R K H A
of trade and other FE W FOR B 2E 1
receivables 10,481 19,539
Auditors’ remuneration % BED B & 18,439 20,120
Crediting: KETA
Gain on disposals of property, FRIBEWIE - HBE K
plant and equipment Bkl 674 36,207
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

10. FINANCE INCOME 10. BAFE WA

Group
&5
2007 2006
—ETLHF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Exchange gains, net (Note) FIE N W as (GERE) 2,023,032 888,402
Interest income 2 HA 96,849 120,161
Finance income B U A 2,119,881 1,008,563
Note: AR ¢

R-ZZELFE+_A=+—B EXEK
BHIERRNEBAINETENREMR
EERRBENFREL SR -

The exchange gain for the year ended 31 December 2007 primarily
relates to the translation of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
borrowings and obligations under finance leases at year-end exchange

rates.
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. B2
Group
£8
2007 2006
—EBELHF ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
Interest relating to MEHEBENE
obligations under
finance leases (731,885) (543,953)
Interest on loans from banks RITR S EE
and financial institutions -/ PS) (1,629,090) (1,580,536)
Interest relating to R ZEBF S
notes payable (72,779) (91,280)
Amortisation of the discount ZEEFITIEH
on zero coupon debentures = (25,456)
Interest relating to £ HA P& - 3OF 2
long-term payables (3,406) (4,961)
Fair value gains on financial EMIEAREBAE
instruments i A
- transfer from equity in — IR
respect of interest rate RenEH -
swaps qualified as cash EmEA
flow hedges 59,111 55,889
(2,378,049) (2,190,297)
Less: Amounts capitalised into B B L RRKTE
advanced payments on NHREHE
acquisition of (7T 19)
aircraft (Note 19) 399,499 424,316
Finance costs B 32 (1,978,550) (1,765,981)

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

12. INCOME TAX

Income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated income
statement is as follows:

12.

IR

BirA BRI A (R BfiE
T

Group
58
2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTFT
Provision for PRC income tax R P A5 AR 2E 1 72,918 48,072
Deferred taxation (Note 33) AR IE (FE#E33) (49,155) (211,004)
23,763 (162,932)

For 2007, the Company is subject to PRC income tax at a
reduced rate of 15%, pursuant to the Circular Hu Shui Er Cai
(2001) No. 104 issued by the Shanghai Municipal Tax Bureau.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group located in Pudong, Shanghai
are subject to PRC income tax at a reduced rate of 15%,
pursuant to the preferential tax policy in Pudong, Shanghai.
Other subsidiaries of the Group are generally subject to the
PRC corporate income tax at the standard rate of 33% for the
years presented.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved
the Corporate Income Tax of the People’s Republic of China
(the “new CIT Law”). The PRC enterprise income tax rate for
the Company and all its subsidiaries, except those registered
in Hong Kong, will change to a standard tax rate of 25%.
However, the tax bureau in which the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries are registered has not yet announced the
detailed transitional provisions from the old rate to the new
CIT rate. For the purposes of deferred tax calculations, the
Company and its subsidiaries apply 25% tax rate effective
from 1 January 2008. The net deferred tax position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2007 is
insignificant and management considers that the change in
tax rate will not have a material impact on the Group’s deferred
tax position.

Further detailed measures and regulations on determination
of taxable profit, tax incentives and grandfathering provisions
will be issued by the tax authorities. As and when the tax
authorities announce the additional regulations, the Group
will assess their impact, if any, and the corresponding change
in accounting estimate will be accounted for prospectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

12. BIH (4)

AEEFARSREROBIA - BAR
ARBEZKERANREMEES 22

12. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

Tax on the Group’s consolidated income statement differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation

rate of the home country of the Company as follows: FRIERRERRLNT ¢
Group
58
2007 2006
—EELHF —EETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
Profit/(loss) before income tax B %1 B B 18 268,266 (3,615,697)
Adjusted by: A
Share of result of associates BEMEARR
and jointly controlled $ 7] 2=
entities ERNES (88,398) (133,161)
179,868 (3,748,858)
Tax calculated at enacted L15% M K5 &
tax rate of 15% WS E R 26,980 (562,329)
Effect attributable to Bt 8 A B117.5%3K 33%
subsidiaries charged at P15 25 A 2
tax rates of 17.5% or 33% ok (49,578) (27,969)
Effect of tax rate change HEESHIREE
on deferred tax MIENTE 24,289 -
Expenses not deductible LIEiE o)
for tax purposes ;%fﬁ 12,031 13,852
(Recognisation)/utilisation W)/ fFE AR
of previously unrecognised $Fx_5fiﬁ€u/um
tax losses T B 1a (157,531) 23,130
Unrecognised tax losses R T HERE T BB 54,647 327,739
Other unrecognised HAth R ER
temporary differences ERMER 112,925 16,067
Gain arising from intra-group EEAREER
property, plant and B F & E
equipment disposal =k Ei0)
subject to taxation A = 46,578
Tax charge/(credit) REER(BH) 23,763 (162,932)

AEBLEBRMAR - RIEFKLIFI

The Group operates international flights to overseas
destinations. There was no material overseas taxation for the
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, as there are double
tax treaties between the PRC and the corresponding
jurisdictions (including Hong Kong) relating to aviation
businesses.

B 89t o R B ERARRE R R AR
(BEEE) EXTHEEEEHNHL
B AEEREBE_TTLFR-F
ZRF+_A=+t—HUIFEVES
RNEINEFK o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

13.

14.

15.

DIVIDEND
No interim dividend was paid during both 2007 and 2006.

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended
any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007.
No final dividend was paid in respect of the year ended 31
December 2006.

PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of RMB420 million (2006: loss of RMB2,664 million).

EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earning per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of RMB269
million (2006: loss of RMB3,313 million) and the weighted
average number of shares of 4,866,950,000 (2006:
4,866,950,000) in issue during the year.

The Company has no potentially dilutive option or other
instruments relating to ordinary shares.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

16. B EE

Group
58
Goodwill  Sponsorship
(Note (a)) fee (Note (b)) Computer
[k =i software Total
(FE(a) (FEE(b) EREH @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%Tn
Cost B A
At 1 January 2006 RZZT E-H—H 688,311 - 84,964 773,275
Additions through the R R E D R
acquisition of a controlling ¥ #|EFr 3| £
interest in an associate H3E AN 304,832 - 28 304,860
Other additions HMRE - 320,000 33,617 353,617
Disposals HE - - (36) (36)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF+ZA=1T—H 993,143 320,000 118,573 1,431,716
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZT+5—-H—H 993,143 320,000 118,573 1,431,716
Other additions HMRE - - 15,283 15,283
Disposals HE - - (1,715) (1,715)
At 31 December 2007 R-BBtE+=A=+-H 993,143 320,000 132,141 1,445,284
Accumulated amortisation e
At 1 January 2006 R-ZZTRE-A—H - - 21,432 21,432
Charge for the year AEHH - 52,870 19,867 72,737
Disposals HE - - 0] (7)
At 31 December 2006 RZEERE+-A=1+—H - 52,870 41,292 94,162
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZT+5—-H—H - 52,870 41,292 94,162
Charge for the year AEHH - 82,194 24,509 106,703
Disposals HE - - (287) (287)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEBEtE+=-A=+-H - 135,064 65,514 200,578
Net book amount BRE R E
At 31 December 2006 RZEERF+ZA=1T—H 993,143 267,130 77,281 1,337,554
At 31 December 2007 R-ZBBtE+=A=+-H 993,143 184,936 66,627 1,244,706

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd) 16. ML & E ()
Company
A7
Goodwill  Sponsorship
(Note (a)) fee (Note (b)) Computer
BE BHE software Total
(FF8@) (FE(®) ERE M st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRE ARETR
Cost B AR
At 1 January 2006 RZZET E—-A—H 688,311 - 83,808 772,119
Other additions HUARE - 320,000 33,617 353,617
Disposals & - = (36) (36)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEE E+-A=+—H 688,311 320,000 117,389 1,125,700
At 1 January 2007 RZZET+F—-A—H 688,311 320,000 117,389 1,125,700
Other additions HRE = - 15,071 15,071
Disposals HE - - (1,715) (1,715)
At 31 December 2007 RZZEZEtFE+ZA=1+—H 688,311 320,000 130,745 1,139,056
Accumulated amortisation S £
At 1 January 2006 RZZET E-HA—H - - 20,528 20,528
Charge for the year AEHH - 52,870 19,630 72,500
Disposals & - = (7) (7)
At 31 December 2006 RZEER F+-_A=1+—H - 52,870 40,151 93,021
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZET+F—-A—H - 52,870 40,151 93,021
Charge for the year AEHH - 82,194 24,454 106,648
Disposals HE - - (287) (287)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZZEEtE+ZA=1+—H = 135,064 64,318 199,382
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2006 RZBEAE+-_A=+—H 688,311 267,130 77,238 1,032,679
At 31 December 2007 RZZEZEtFE+ZA=1+—H 688,311 184,936 66,427 939,674
Notes: EAE

(a) PTRAVBIERH
AEEEEMERSELSETD A
REE(BRERER) UREER
IR °

(a) Impairment tests for goodwill
The Group operates in two cash-generating units (“CGU”) which
are passenger (including cargo carried by passenger flights)
and cargo and logistics.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the aviation businesses
in which the CGU operates.

Ro B B TR A E S TR
RBENE - SHESRAARAIR
SREEA  KEETERENHT
FHMBEY - BARATHNT
S B TALE A R %
(EILHEE - RERETBAROE
£ B EENERTEEBNRD
FHERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Cont’d)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

- Gross margin 12%
- Growth rate 15%
- Discount rate 10%

Management determined budgeted gross margins based on
past performance and its expectations for market development.
The weighted average growth rate used is consistent with the
forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the Group’s
business.

Sponsorship fees

In March 2006, the Company entered into an agreement (the
“Sponsorship Agreement”) with the Bureau of 2010 Expo
Shanghai (the “Bureau”) which designated the Group as the
exclusive airline passenger carrier in the PRC to sponsor the
2010 Shanghai Expo. The Company will be entitled to a number
of rights, including but not limited to the use of the Expo
logo in the Group’s products, priority to purchase advertising
space at the Expo site etc. In return, the Company is required
to pay a total sponsorship fee of RMB320 million, RMB160
million of which would be paid in cash by instalments, the
remaining RMB160 million would be settled by value-in-kind
services (“VIK”) (in the form of goods or services) to support
the 2010 Shanghai Expo. Accordingly, an intangible asset has
been recognised and is being amortised on a straight-line
basis over the beneficial period from the effective date of
the Sponsorship Agreement to the completion of the Expo.
The outstanding sponsorship fee of RMB233 million (2006:
279 million) has also been recognised as other long-term
liabilities (Note 32) in the Group’s balance sheet.

16. BEILEE (&)

i ()

(a)

(b)

BE AR E R ()
EREEFENTI2/REIMT

—FEFI=E 12%
—BRX 15%
—BhIR & 10%

ERERBBERT REHEMSHE
REOBABEREENX - FIRA
BRI R R BT R E A
EFERIFT S — B - PTERAMREIR
TR L R [ BRARREE 7 BR A4 TE
[\

B

REZBEXNF=A  ARRHE S
M- —EFEeEKHARE
FEDHBEIEREER T —TF
LsttEEE— PR ERESE
B ARARINZHEMERERE (R
TR £ A tHE e RN A E
MERL ZEEEHEeSUNE
EEMUEBLES - ARaFEX
AR08 ETLHENE » U
FTE-TFEEe  HRAREK
1608 BLAD X NES - 88 T
MARKI0EETEURESEEY
S CAREEW S RBEH ) o £
SEEEABRPUEDED HTE
REBWEE - WEFEELEED
e £ A A B AR T s 2
MIAB AR E T UABESE - BB A
A ARE233FE T (20065 :
279B B 7T) - HAERENRE T
REEMRHEE GEE32) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 903 ~ WBERRME
Group
£H
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
R RBR
RRTHRE
C Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned J\ME  Buildings HAWHE - in progress Total
BE HERF BT HERRKE HRIE CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR
Valuation or cost ThE/ AR
At 1 January 2006 RZEERE—R—H 33,254,963 17,791,313 2,424,089 2,984,531 240,884 56,696,680
Reclassification upon purchase BAKENE 2,011,940 (2,011,940) - - - -
Transfers from construction in progress (AR TRE A - - 52,832 242,669 (295,501) -
Transfers from advanced payments on  EREBFTEA
acquisition of aircraft (Note 19) (’19) 3,797,430 2,591,545 - - - 6,388,975
Additions through the acquisitions MR R S A R
of controlling interests in associates Aol R AE M 78,291 305,663 303,064 33,292 2,447 722,757
Other additions EtRE 5,612,187 2,724,601 - 384743 297,979 9,019,510
Valuation deficit TERER (939,655)  (95,688) - - - (1,035,343)
Transfers to non-current assets BEGHEERT
held for sale (Note (b) & 39) BE (FE(b)R39) (2,108,763)  (202,898) - - - (2,311,661)
Disposals by sale and leaseback ERDBRHZRE (7,940,164) - - - - (7,940,164)
Other disposals Efh & (314,615) - (41,639)  (131,322) - (487,576)
At 31 December 2006 RZIBERE
+-R=+-H 33,451,614 21,102,596 2,739,246 3,513,913 245,809 61,053,178
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE
At 1 January 2006 RZZEAE-A—H 11,880,147 4,426,004 479,334 1,386,327 - 18,171,812
Reclassification upon purchase BAKENE 940,464 (940,464) - - - -
Charge for the year AEEHE 2,600,331 1,418,781 106,441 368,019 - 4493572
Transfers to non-current assets BEGHEERT
held for sale (Note (b) & 39) BE (FE(b)R39) (1,346,228)  (121,049) - - - (1,467,277)
Other disposals EfinE (97,146) - (3,703)  (94,546) - (195,395)
At 31 December 2006 RZIBERE
+-RA=+-H 13,977,568 4,783,272 582,072 1,659,800 - 21,002,712
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2006 RZIZERE
+-R=+-H 19,474,046 16,319,324 2,157,174 1,854,113 245,809 40,050,466
At 1 January 2006 RZBEExE-F—H 21,374,816 13,365,309 1,945,655 1,598,204 240,884 38,524,868
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’'d)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

17. 9% ~ R RRE (@

Group
&8
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
it B L ]
REGHRE
C Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned J\ME  Buildings HAWHE + in progress Total
HE BER BT HERRE HRIE CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR
Valuation or cost HE/ HAE
At 1 January 2007 RZEZtE-f—H 33,451,614 21,102,596 2,739,246 3,513,913 245,809 61,053,178
Reclassification upon purchase BABENR 3,756,521 (3,756,521) - - - -
Transfers from construction in progress HEBRTREA - - 84,402 91,269  (175,671) S
Transfers from advanced payments on ~ EREBRTEA
acquisition of aircraft (Note 19) (FE#19) 189,402 4,920,311 = = - 5,109,713
Other additions ARE 1,792,499 6,026,343 51,276 380,211 406,350 8,656,679
Disposals to a jointly MAREHEELE
controlled entity (Note 22) (HE22) - - (28489)  (2,773) - (31,262)
Transfers to non-current assets BERHEFRDEE
held for sale (Note (b) and 39) (77 (b)A139) (2,945,092) - - - - (2,945,092)
Other disposals At (788,727)  (237,973)  (33,781)  (99,386) - (1,159,867)
At 31 December 2007 RZZELE
+-RA=+-H 35,456,217 28,054,756 2,812,654 3,883,234 476,488 70,683,349
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 1 January 2007 RZBB+E—-HA—H 13,977,568 4,783,272 582,072 1,659,800 - 21,002,712
Reclassification upon purchase BABENE 1,768,786 (1,768,786) = = = =
Charge for the year KEEFE 2268230 1,013,831 103,622 394,683 - 4,680,366
Disposals to a jointly controlled entity ~ FIARAHEEHE - - (5,562)  (1,426) - (6,988)
(Note 22) (’22)
Transfers to non-current assets BEGHELRDEARE
held for sale (Note (b) and 39) (& (b)F139) (1,444,395) - - - - (1,444,395)
Other disposals HEfitE (786,032)  (237,973)  (6,240)  (66,305) - (1,096,550)
At 31 December 2007 A 3
+-RA=+-H 15,784,157 4,690,344 673,892 1,986,752 - 23,135,145
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2007 RZZELE
+-R=+-H 19,672,060 23,364,412 2,138,762 1,896,482 476,488 47,548,204
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEZ+F-f—-H 19,474,046 16,319,324 2,157,174 1,854,113 245,809 40,050,466
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’'d)

17. 9% - BB RRE (&)

Company
AR
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
R 2B
RRTRE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned J\ME  Buildings HAWHE - in progress Total
BE HER BT RERRE HEEIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR
Valuation or cost WG/ HRE
At 1 January 2006 WZEZR E—-FR—H 25586721 16,666,521 1,473,423 2,036,082 88,802 45,851,549
Reclassification upon purchase BAKENE 2,011,940 (2,011,940) - - - -
Transfers to a subsidiary BANERRA (482,982) - - - - (482,982)
Transfers from construction HrERIREA
in progress - - 25,507 12,210 (37,117) -
Transfers from advanced payments HREBENTEA
on acquisition of aircraft (Note 19) (3#219) 3,744,513 1,843,577 = = - 5,588,000
Other additions EHARE 4,812,055 2,345,391 40,491 271,479 100,145 7,569,561
Valuation deficit TERERR (939,655)  (95,688) - - - (1,035,343)
Transfers to non-current assets BEGHEERDEAE
held for sale (Note (b) and 39) (3% (b)A39) (2,108,763)  (202,898) - - - (2,311,661)
Disposals by sale and leaseback ERDBRHZRE (7,940,164) - - - - (7,940,164)
Other disposals Efh & (313,016) - (36,277)  (107,363) - (456,656)
At 31 December 2006 RZIBERE
+-R=+-H 24,370,649 18,544,963 1,503,144 2,212,408 151,230 46,782,394
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 January 2006 RZZZ E-A—-H 7,961,807 4,383,943 318,184 1,025,400 - 13,689,424
Reclassification upon purchase BAKENE 940,464 (940,464) - - - -
Transfers to a subsidiary YN -UNS (458,832) - - - - (458,832)
Charge for the year AEEME 1,939,393 1,317,355 54,726 274,242 - 3,585,716
Transfers to non-current assets held BEGHEERDEE
for sale (Note (b) and 39) (3% (b)A39) (1,346,228)  (121,049) - - - (1,467,277)
Other disposals Efh & (97,146) - (2,997)  (73,362) - (173,505)
At 31 December 2006 RZBERE
+-R=+-H 8,939,548 4,639,785 369,913 1,226,280 - 15,175,526
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2006 RZZZRE
+-RA=+-H 15,431,101 13,905,178 1,133,231 986,128 151,230 31,606,868
At 1 January 2006 RZBEExE-A—-H 17,624,824 12,282,578 1,155,239 1,010,682 88,802 32,162,125
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 17. Y03 ~ B RRE (@)
Company
A
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
il B
RRTRE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction

Owned J\ME  Buildings HAWHE + in progress Total
BE BER BT HERRE HRIE CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR

Valuation or cost AEE/ BAE
At 1 January 2007 R-FZ+%-A—H 24,370,649 18,544,963 1,503,144 2,212,408 151,230 46,782,394
Reclassification upon purchase BABENR 3,521,421 (3,521,421) - - - -
Transfers from construction in progress HEBRTREA - - 82,588 13,388 (95,976) S
Transfers from advanced payments on ~ EREBRTEA
acquisition of aircraft (Note 19) (FE19) 114,941 4,177,685 = = - 4,292,626
Other additions EthiRE 1,070,095 5,149,747 1,437 289,425 146,394 6,657,098
Disposals to a jointly controlled MAREHEELE
entity (Note 22) (7222 - - (28489)  (2773) - (31,262)
Transfers to non-current assets held BEGMEERYEE
for sale (Note (b) and 39) (1 (b)M39) (2,870) - - - - (2,870)
Other disposals it (597,936)  (233,007)  (19,376)  (78,872) - (929,191)
At 31 December 2007 RZBTtE
+-A=t-H 28,482,306 24,111,961 1,539,304 2,433,576 201,648 56,768,795
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 1 January 2007 R-ZE+#—-f—H 8,939,548 4,639,785 369,913 1,226,280 - 15,175,526
Reclassification upon purchase BABENE 1,628,209 (1,628,209) = = = =
Charge for the year KEERE 1,674,051 1,662,403 49,979 293,667 - 3,680,100
Disposals to a jointly controlled MEREHERLE
entity (Note 22) (EE2) - - (5562)  (1426) - (6,988)
Transfers to non-current assets held for EZFHEFRHEE
sale (Note (b) and 39) (G (b)F039) (111) - - - - (111)
Other disposals it (595,240)  (233,007)  (4,514)  (58,459) - (891,220)
At 31 December 2007 RZETLE
+-A=t-H 11,646,457 4,440,972 409,816 1,460,062 - 17,957,307
Net book amount RHFE
At 31 December 2007 RZBEtE
+-A=+-H 16,835,849 19,670,989 1,129,488 973,514 201,648 38,811,488
At 1 January 2007 R-EE+5-A—H 15,431,101 13,905,178 1,133,231 986,128 151,230 31,606,868
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 17. W03 - HEERR1E (&)
Notes: i
(a)  On 31 December 2007, the Group’s property, plant and (@) R=ZEZLFF+_A=+—H" ' &K

equipment were carried at their revalued amounts and costs
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Had the
property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company
been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

RAIMYE - BEERREBAEE
SkAANMER A= RIEFTEFRER K
SRR - REAKERADFNY
¥ HES MR IR AR HIRR REHT

ENMREBRRIIE W% Bk
RBHOFEAR TS -

impairment losses, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment would have been as follows:

Group Company
58 /N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETtE _—TTRF CZBBtHE —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREBTT AR¥®TRx ARETR
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H 47,227,254 39,722,018 38,584,893 31,303,467

150

(b)  In 2006 and 2007, the Board of Directors passed resolutions (b) RZEZRFR-ZZFTLF EF
to dispose of certain aircraft and the related equipment and 2RBEA B ER T Rk & AR
have been actively seeking buyers. The relevant assets have RENER - AARIEBBHERE
been reclassified as “Non-current assets held for sale” at 31 EREBSHAENER - RZZET
December 2006 and 2007 (Note 39). +tE+TZA=+—HBRZZTF

+=ZA=+—8 hWEBEEREA
FHEFRBEE FE39) °
(c)  As at 31 December 2007, certain aircraft and buildings owned (c) R=ZEZTLFF+_HA=+—H &

by the Group and the Company with an aggregate net book
amount of approximately RMB9,923 million and RMB9,017
million respectively (2006: RMB9,110 million and RMB8,310
million respectively) were pledged as collateral under certain
loan arrangements (Note 30).
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18.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)

LEASE PREPAYMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # %

SEErEF A=+ —ALFE

18. A HER

Group Company
£5 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE —TTRF ZEELE —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTn ARETT AR¥BTRT ARETT
Cost 2
At 1 January —A—H#%& 1,247,104 1,134,644 616,553 582,621
Additions through E g8 jJ[I

business acquisitions - 75,302 - -
Other additions H 4t 38 hn - 37,158 - 33,932
Disposals to a jointly mARZEGHEELE

controlled entity (¥ 22)

(Note 22) (70,149) - (70,149) -
Other disposals H & (1,851) - - -
At 31 December TZA=+—RH#%& 1,175,104 1,247,104 546,404 616,553
Accumulated amortisation =~ R #

At 1 January —RA—B#&#&% 192,742 161,873 118,885 101,021
Charge for the year REEFE 24,847 30,869 11,502 17,864
Disposals to a jointly mtRZEGEELHE

controlled entity (FFE22)

(Note 22) (9,119) - (9,119) -
Other disposals HAh & (863) - - -
At 31 December TZA=+—H#%&&% 207,607 192,742 121,268 118,885
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December TZA=+—H#&# 967,497 1,054,362 425,136 497,668

Lease prepayments represent unamortised prepayments for land

use rights.

The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and the
majority of these land use rights have terms of 50 years from
the date of grant. As at 31 December 2007, the majority of
these land use rights had remaining terms ranging from 39 to

54 years (2006: from 40 to 55 years).

BN EFR TR SHA TR L3
FAREHE TR

AEBEFFER T HERAEHLRE
© TRER A b 5F FAAE T AR
REREHETRATE RZTTt
F+-_A=+—8 ' KEHBLHE
REFISGFIEFHA=TNLER T+
NE(ZCEERF:OB+E2R+H
F) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ X 51 7 #8 &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

ER G #)

19. ADVANCED PAYMENTS ON ACQUISITION OF 19. RMETE(T R
AIRCRAFT
Group Company
58 YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE ZTTERE ZEEBELE ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR%¥Tr ARETR
At 1 January —R—B#& 7,668,708 9,072,673 7,006,853 8,157,515
Additions 30 3,737,079 4,560,694 3,604,445 4,059,327
Interest capitalised (Note 11) &AL F| 2 (FFE11) 399,499 424,316 376,901 378,101
Transfers to property, plant  #EE#%  #R K
and equipment (Note 17) FiE (R (5,109,713) (6,388,975) (4,292,626) (5,588,090)
At 31 December +TZA=+—B&#% 6,695,573 7,668,708 6,695,573 7,006,853

F_¥:t¢+:HE+—E'K%
ERARRIEBTFHEBERNEFE
ARt ’JZ%J\E%%E“_ (ZZEER

Included in the Group’s and the Company’s balance sheet as
at 31 December 2007 is accumulated interest capitalised of
RMB553 million (2006: RMB516 million and RMB492 million

respectively), at an average interest rate of 5.90% (2006: F:oRlAAR®.16BETT - AR
5.72%). ¥492B8)  FHERENEXR

5.90% (ZZZT N ¢ 5.72%) °©

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RERKE A =]

Company
A Al

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARET T
Unlisted shares, at cost ELEMEENKAE 2,473,716 2,831,235
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 1,311,841 1,051,435
3,785,557 3,882,670

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest UK B A RIFIE AEER - 8
bearing and are not repayable before 1 January 2009. RABER_ZEZTNF—H—HBAIE

152 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007



20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, all of which are limited
liability companies established and operating in the PRC or

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

20. RERKE AR (8

REBEN T EZNEB AR RSN
BRI EENARELAR - &

Hong Kong, are as follows: ARBERaT :
Place and date of Attributable
Company establishment Paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NEER BB KA BHER BiEREER TEXH
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE ZZTRE ZEBLE ZTTNE
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
China Eastern Airlines PRC 880,000 880,000 63% 63%  Provision of airline
Jiangsu Co., Ltd. 3 May 1993 services
o B R 5 i 22 L & & R ZE RS
BRATF —-AN=E
TA=A
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan PRC 600,000 600,000 96% 96%  Provision of airline
Co., Ltd. (“CEA Wuhan") 16 August 2002 services
PERAMZENE hE R Z RS
EREEAA i S 3
(EmEE]) NR+7H
China Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. PRC 950,000 950,000 70% 70%  Provision of cargo
HEEEMEERAA 22 July 1998 carriage services
8 REEMER RS
—AANE
tAZ+ZH
Shanghai Eastern Flight PRC 473,000 473,000 95% 95%  Provision of flight
Training Co., Ltd. 18 December 1995 training services
FRRARTEN i RAERTIIRIRH
ARAT “WNEF
TZA+N\H
Shanghai Eastern Airlines PRC - 412,500 - 99%  Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note) 8 May 2002
TERMREERRA (FE) HE REER
i k-2
TANA
Shanghai Eastern Airlines PRC 200,000 200,000 70% 70%  Provision of cargo

Logistics Co., Ltd.
EERFEMYR
BRDHE

23 August 2004

8

e i3
NE=t+=H

logistics services

RETENARS

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

The subsidiary was disposed of in November 2007 (Note 40(c)).

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007

& (FEE840(c)) °

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 20. RERHE 7 ()
Place and date of Attributable
Company establishment Paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
DAL RYER A BHER BiaRA#s TEXR
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZBE2LE _TTRF ZBELE _TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETFR
Eastern Airlines Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC 70,000 70,000 86% 86%  Provision of hotel
RRABEERAR 18 March 1998 services primarily
hE to crew members
—AANE FERARITAR
=R+NAH HR A 15 PR 7%
Shanghai Eastern Maintenance PRC 25,658 25,658 60% 60%  Provision of aircraft
Co., Ltd. 27 November 2002 repair and
LRRARBEE hE maintenance services
BRAR —TTCF REREBEER
+—A=t++H AE R
China Eastern Airlines PRC 10,047 10,047 80% 80%  Provision of ticket sales
Development (HK) Co., Ltd. 20 May 1995 and logistics
PERAMEER hE REHERER
(BE)ERRA “MAE#E 7 m & 8 R
RAZ-tH
China Eastern Airlines (Shantou) ~ PRC 10,000 10,000 55% 55%  Provision of airline
Economics Development Co., Ltd. 18 March 1998 equipment sales
BAfmzECOLE) SBEER h FEHERZRMm
BRAR —AANE
=A+NH
China Eastern Airline Gifting PRC 50,000 - 100% - Provision of marketing
Co., Ltd. 17 August 2007 services
RAMZERRERAA hE HETEMm
ZETLE
NA+tAR
Note: AR

ZHBARER —ETLF+— Al



21.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # %

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. RENBERNT

SEErEF A=+ —ALFE

Group Company
55 YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE —TTRF ZEELE —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBTrT AR%®TR ARETT
Unlisted investments, FLEMBENKAE
at cost 425,817 544,266 377,872 377,872
Share of post acquisition — B(HUEEREE &
results/reserves 175,302 79,124 - -
601,119 623,390 377,872 377,872
The movement on investments in associates is as follows: BRERBE R RTNERNINT -
Group Company
58 YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELFE —TTERF ZEELFE —TERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBTrT AR%®TR ARETT
At 1 January —A—HB#%& 623,390 629,746 377,872 620,659
Reduction as a result of EEEAJ%ZE%H%%’R
the acquisition of a 2w P S| R
controlling interest in BR D (G 40(d))
an associate (note 40 (d)) - (109,922) - (242,787)
Disposal of an indirectly HEFBEEEHN
held associate (note 40(c))  Hft& A & (FERE40(c)) (102,750) - - -
Share of results LR 58,312 103,566 - S
Share of revaluation surplus {5 B & X 5 BT &Y
for available for sale HEBEREN
investments held by BREEE
associates 22,167 - - -
At 31 December TZA=T—BH#&# 601,119 623,390 377,872 377,872

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal associates, all of which are limited
liability companies established and operating in the PRC, are

21. RERBERT (#)

REEE R 2R E N RIS R IR L
REBNEREMTAT - HARBR

as follows: wm
Place and date of Attributable
Company establishment Paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
DARAR B R A S EWER EiERAER TEEH
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZBE2LE ZTTRF ZBBLE _TTRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETn
Eastern Air Group Finance PRC 400,000 400,000 25% 25%  Provision of financial
Co., Ltd. (“EAGF") 6 December 1995 services to group
AMEENBERERAAA hE companies of
(TRMmB %) —“ANRE CEA Holding
+=ANH RPERMEEET
R AR B IR
China Eastern Air Catering PRC 350,000 350,000 45% 45%  Provision of air
Investment Co., Ltd. 17 November 2003 catering services
RAmEEmREBRRA e RERTERRSE
—ET=fF
+—A++tH
Jiangsu Huayu General PRC 110,000 110,000 27% 27%  Provision of aviation
Aviation Co., Ltd. 1 December 2004 support services
IHEFRAMZERRA hE R % X R R
—ETME
+ZA-H
Eastern Aviation Import & Export  PRC 80,000 80,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Co., Ltd (“EAIEC") 9 June 1993 equipment, spare parts
REAMEELOBRAR e and tools trading
([RfELA]) —-Wh=% RRERK  RITR
~ANR ERITREZHES
Collins Aviation Maintenance PRC 57,980 57,980 35% 35%  Provision of airline
Service Shanghai Ltd. 27 September 2002 electronic product
LERNE T & E i maintenance services
RBEERAA “TTCF REMBETER
AMAZt+H BERE
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation PRC 31,000 31,000 27% 27%  Provision of traveling

Travel Co., Ltd. (“SDATC") 17 October 2004
TEREMEREARAA E
(RERA) “ZENF
TAtTtH

and accommodation
agency services

R e BB 5 (2 78
RERB
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

21. RERBE QT ()

Place and date of Attributable
Company establishment Paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
RARAB Bt R A S BHER ElEREER TEXH
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZBE2LE —TTRF ZBBLE _TTRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETET
Shanghai Hongpu Civil Airport PRC 25,000 25,000 30% 30%  Provision of cable and
Communication Co., Ltd. 18 October 2002 wireless communication
TRIBRAKSRE i services
BRAR ZETCF REARR
TA+TNR BHRBARSE
Eastern Aviation Advertising PRC 10,320 10,320 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Service Co., Ltd. 4 March 1986 advertising
FERFMEEREERAA H agency services
—AM\RE ftE2RERM
=ZAmA BEEHK
Qingdao Liuting International PRC - 450,000 - 25%  Provision of airport
Airport Co., Ltd. (Note) 1 December 2000 operation services
EERTARKS i RS2 E R
EREARR (B —ETTF
+-ZA—-AH
Notes: FTRE
The associate was disposed in November 2007 (note 40(c)). ZHERBER_EELFE+—HALE

(F7E’40(c)) °

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd) 21. RENBE N7 (&)
Note: T
The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets and REEBEEERFNKRA - XEH &
liabilities of its associates are as follows: EXBEFRATE:
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss)
aE afE WA ER(E8)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AR®TT AR®TT AR%®TT
2007 —EZtF 2,194,818 1,593,699 919,495 58,312
2006 —EENRF 1,728,739 1,105,449 1,221,191 103,566
22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 22. RENHLEEFIER
Group Company
£8 AL
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE ZTZTRN —EBELE —ZTTRHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT AR®TR ARBTE
Unlisted investments, at cost ~ 3F F % & B AN & 268,892 59,552 301,802 59,552
Share of post-acquisition BOWBRER B
results/reserves 68,074 55,988 - -
336,966 115,540 301,802 59,552
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 22. WERHEZEFEMR (&)

(Cont’d)

The movement on investments in jointly controlled entities is
as follows:

BRERARIEHIERHZE T

Group Company
£5 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE ZTTREF ZEELE ZTIEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTrT AR%¥TR ARETRT
At 1 January —A—B#&% 115,540 100,520 59,552 59,552
Cost of additional H#N4% & B A AR
investment (Note) (FF 1) 209,340 - 242,250 -
Dividend received AN F U R I B
during the year (18,000) (14,575) - -
Share of results BihEE 30,086 29,595 = =
At 31 December TZA=+—H#&%R 336,966 115,540 301,802 59,552
Note: R
In 2007, the Company contributed additional capital of RMB242 million ZETLF ANQRIA AR

which was comprised of land use rights, fixed assets at valuation of
RMB150 million and cash of RMB92 million to a jointly controlled
entity, Shanghai Technologies Aerospace Co., Ltd.. The carrying
amount of land use rights and fixed assets were RMB61 million and
RMB24 million respectively upon contribution. The gain on
contribution after eliminating the unrecogrised portion attributable
to the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entity was RMB32
million and was recognised in the income statement. In the meantime,
the another joint venture partner of the jointly controlled entity
contributed the capital proportionally and the Company’s interest in
the joint venture remained unchanged after the contribution.

TEEGHEBRAARK1508ET) &
& 2H BTR LRI B2, BERHY
FMARRAR  TEHFARE 24258
T o THFE AEFE T EERNIRAEE
DRIBARBIAETLR24BETT ° B
2 58 B 7 R 2 1)1 3 /9 R B 2R A 25 20
B FEMBKRET AR ZBEE T -
ERBRRTPER - HtEK - 5—H%
FEEREEEEHRALEBRERER
B - BRI EERARAREHLRES B
XM RIFTE o

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

22.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities, all of
which are limited liability companies established and operating

22. RENHRZEHIER (&)

AEESEEHFERS BRI SPE
R EBNAREERR - HAR

in the PRC are as follows: BRAT -
Place and date of Attributable
Company establishment Paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
AL BB KA BEREX PEAE R A R 2 TEXH
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZBE2LE —TTRF ZBBLE _TIRN
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
Shanghai Technologies PRC 576,795 113,843 51% 51%  Provision of repair and
Aerospace Co., Ltd. 28 September 2004 maintenance services
(“STA") (Note (a)) i RERBERER
TEMBRTFRERRA —ZEME B ER%
(IMRTMm) T8 (a) AMAZ+NH
Shanghai Eastern Union PRC 17,484 17,484 40% 40%  Provision of spare parts
Aviation Wheels & Brakes 28 December 1995 repair and maintenance
maintenance services H services
Overhaul Engineering Co., Ltd —AATE RESHEERSE
(“Wheels & Brakes") +ZAZ+N\H
TERBRERENE
AEIRERAT
(B@mNE])
Eastern China Kaiya PRC 10,000 10,000 41% 41%  Provision of computer
System Integration Co., Ltd. 21 May 1999 systems development
TERMERIE hE REZHER
ZRENARAT —MANE ERRB
FA=-1+—-H
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 22. RENHEEHIER (@
(Cont’d)
Notes: T
(a) Under the Joint Venture Agreement dated 10 March 2003, the (a) BEARFEBEFME —EER
Company and the joint venture partner of STA have agreed to BN =F=ATHEEN
jointly control over the economic activities of STA, any eI A ARRIREES—
strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the BIEIRE R RAZ AR FMEHE
activities of STA require the unanimous consent of the R BN RIIEHIRE o (T BB FAE
Company and the other joint venture partner. )7 B R BT R AR VR SR BB E SR
NEEBMETH S S ERE R
—HHRAE -
(b) The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets (b) ANEEE(HHRNEHIEBRMA - F
and liabilities of its jointly controlled entities is as follows: B BEERBEHRATER:
Assets Liabilities Revenues  Profit/(loss)
BE =R WA SRR (&)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARBFIT ARBFTT ARBFTT
2007 —E2ELHF 382,501 45,535 205,188 30,086
2006 —ETRE 241,019 125,479 171,471 29,595
23. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 23 Hitb RMEE
Group Company
£8 A7
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE —TERF ZBEELHFE —TERHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARETT AR®BTR AR®BTR
Deposits relating to aircraft ERELCEMHHE
under operating HER TR GEE(a))
leases (Note (a)) 508,903 532,878 361,453 449,055
Deposits relating to aircraft BEBREREFT K —
under finance leases-long REIE ) (GERE (b))
term portion (Note (b)) - 389,871 - 389,871
Prepaid staff benefits BB I
(Note (c)) (FEE () 40,567 54,898 32,398 44,524
Rental and renovation deposits A& K & f&E 5] & 33,032 31,338 33,032 31,338
Other long-term receivables  E #f & Hj fE Wi 3018 78,249 90,280 71,966 79,941
660,751 1,099,265 498,849 994,729

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

ER G #)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

23.

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS (Cont’d)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The fair value of deposits relating to aircraft under operating
leases of both the Group and the Company are RMB441 million
and RMB318 million (2006: RMB480 million and RMB414
million), which are determined using the expected future
payments discounted at market interest rates prevailing at
the year end of 2.4%-3.06% (2006: 2.5%-4.0%). The deposits
are caused at amortised cost.

The deposits are pledged as collateral under certain finance
lease arrangements (Note 29). The fair value of deposits
relating to aircraft under finance leases of both the Group
and the Company are RMB420 million (2006: RMB1,249 million
and RMB1,245 million respectively), which are determined

23. At RAEE ()

i
(a) AEERADTERMEL IS

(b)

HENGERZ AR BEIAAR
Bl BBETRARE3I8EE L (=
TERF : ARBLSOEETLRAR
BL14BETT)  MERAABEER
BRI REREREEZEMSH
H2.4%-3.06%TE K] (ZZTT/NF ¢
2.5%-4.0%) ° FZIT RURE SR AT

=8

= °

REHERK TR AE TRHEMRS
e FERS (REE29) - A&
EFRAARMEMEREERZA
REAEARELHIEETL (ZEEAR
F:AREL200BBLRARK

using the expected future payments discounted at market 1,2458&70) * AARBERIRIEE
interest rates prevailing at the year end of 2.4% (2006: 2.6%). ISR NE Iﬁ&iﬂif 270 35 H
The deposits are caused at amortised cost. 2.4%ETHEH (ZTTRE £ 2.6%) ©
AT AR S AT 2 o
Group Company
£ A
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF —EELHF ZEEREF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR%BTr AR®BTT
Deposits relating to aircraft ~— ERE S R#F R
under finance leases 419,604 1,199,250 419,604 1,195,650
Less: Deposits relating to B ELE S AR
aircraft under TR — e
finance leases- 1 (FE¥E25)
current portion
(Note 25) (419,604) (809,379)  (419,604) (805,779)
Deposits relating to aircraft ~ ERE A ER#EF R —
under finance REIE D
leases - Long term portion - 389,871 - 389,871
Prepaid staff benefits represent subsidies to certain employees (c) ENBEIENASEIEIHEENR

The
employees are required to serve the Group for six years from

as an encouragement to purchase motor vehicles.

the date of receipt of the subsidies. If the employee leaves
before the end of the six-year period, a refund by the employee
is required calculated on a pro-rata basis. These subsidies are
amortised over six years on a straight-line basis.

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The credit terms given to trade customers are determined on
an individual basis, with the credit periods generally ranging
from half a month to two months.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

24. B IRR R B RE

RTEENEERESRERIE
METE  BEHFEAZMEART

= o

~T

FEW AR RE R AT AT

Group Company
£H N F
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ERtFE —TTAF -TTLF -TIR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR®TR ARETR
Within 90 days =R 1,761,799 1,506,219 = 1,098,281 948,541
91 to 180 days Nn+—HZ—BANA+AH 104,991 118,323 97,212 80,747
181 to 365 days —BNAT—HZE
ZAATEHEHR 187,355 88,342 150,506 77,729
Over 365 days HB@B=B THHA 101,769 97,303 84,914 96,644
2,155,914 1,810,187 = 1,430,913 1,203,661
Less: provision for B FEURER SRR R
impairment of
receivables (59,907) (90,405) (55,757) (87,195)
Trade receivables EWER R ERE®RFEE 2,096,007 1,719,782 1,375,156 1,116,466
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate JESIE R REEEELEAAE
their fair value. B -

KRB RE R EIORFK T8 % 4
MEARCHRNERERFAR

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of independent sales agents for
whom there is no recent history of default.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 24. EWERFX N R E i (4])

164

(Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2007, trade receivables of RMB360 million
(2006: RMB343 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent sales agents for whom
there is good track record with the Group. The Group holds
cash deposit of RMB202 million (2006: RMB267 million) as
collateral against these trade receivables. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables is as follows:

R-ZEE+F+_A=+—8  EKk
IRAARE30B BT (ZEZTRF -
AR¥3435 &) B LB HR AR
B - WEFIBS RS RSB HIR
BRRSNBEYRE « $izil D ek
RAAEEFE Hﬁ?ﬁ@@%ﬁﬁ/\ﬁ
W202HB L (ZZEZTRF : AR¥
267@&%7_@ I EE 5 R IGE R IRER
DT

Group Company
£8 N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE —TERF ZEELHE —ZTTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARKETT AR®BTR ARBTE
Up to 6 months overdue # HR 7S (8 A AR 202,238 269,727 156,897 195,436
6 to 12 months overdue B 6% 1218 A 157,850 73,979 126,517 66,978
360,088 343,706 283,414 262,414
As at 31 December 2007, trade receivables of RMB44 million RZEZ+LF+=A=+—8" J‘Eqﬂl
(2006: RMB72 million) were impaired and fully provided for. ERARK44ABIL(ZTEER
The remaining impaired trade receivables relate to customers ARB12B88T) E&RE - jﬁEEE
that were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the REFEREER o 58 NRURERIER
receivables is expected to be recovered. The factors considered Fop R FELEMERIRHES - ME
by management in determining the impairment are described FFRB D ERERFK AT E - E1R
in Note 2(r). BAEREEENZEREAZRTE
2(rygat °
The ageing of impaired receivables is as follows: EFHRBENBKZRERERDT -
Group Company
£8 A
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE —TERF ZBEELHF —TERHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR%®TR ARETR
12 to 24 months overdue BH12Z 2418 A 26,734 25,560 18,527 21,086
Over 24 months overdue wHA2418 A A 75,035 71,743 66,387 75,558
101,769 97,303 84,914 96,644
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

(Cont’d)

Movements on the group provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

24. B ARR

R FEUR R

2B (%)

FEWERRURBER R ZE B AT -

Group Company
&= N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EZTtE —TERF ZZEZtEFE —ZZTITRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARETT AR®BTR ARKBTT
At 1 January —H—A 90,405 93,010 87,195 81,707
Receivables written off during W%l & & st W @
the year as uncollectible B U5 K FR 8 (4,009) - (4,009) -
Unused amounts reversed AAEBEED (26,489) (2,605) (27,429) 5,488
At 31 December +ZRA=+—8H 59,907 90,405 55,757 87,195
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are A& B R W AR AR ENE RS B 51 TR
denominated in the following currencies: wm
Group Company
%8 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETtLE —TERF ZZEZtEFE —ZZTITERF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARBETT AR®BTR ARKBTT
Currency B
Renminbi AR 1,800,355 1,480,012 1,159,012 952,230
US Dollar £ 89,944 85,129 15,255 11,821
HK Dollar B 80,246 67,803 80,094 67,626
Euro B 7T 54,185 38,698 49,517 36,639
Korea Won B 41,538 21,217 41,538 21,217
Japanese Yen Hot 1,323 4,270 1,323 4,270
Other currencies H g% 28,416 22,653 28,417 22,663
2,096,007 1,719,782 1,375,156 1,116,466
The net impact of creation and release of provisions for ELE/UZTEF@W KRR AI R B1HY
impaired receivables have been included in “Provision for FREDBRETERREKP [EUERK

impairment of trade and other receivables’ in the income &ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂlmﬂ@ #1A (GERE9) -
statement (Note 9). Amounts charged to the provision account EEERPHHGRNERE —RSEE
are generally written off when there is no expectation of HAfE N BB SR S B EE o
recovering additional cash.

EHE A - EERRKNKSERE
BERLE ER@H%AE’JEEEE

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amount of receivables shown above.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. AR~ TR H A B BGK
Group Company
£8 A7
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE —TIERF ZBELFE —TETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTn AREBETT AR®BTR ARE®TTT
Rebates receivable on N B R FE U B H1 5k
aircraft acquisitions 929,652 627,640 875,786 593,202
Deposits relating to aircraft A& SR
under finance leases- TR —meEEnm
current portion (Note 23(b)) (s 23(b)) 419,604 809,379 419,604 805,779
Ground service fee HE R B 337,166 286,442 215,296 146,463
Prepaid aircraft operating AR &
lease rentals HEHS 256,069 275,073 233,808 238,575
Rental deposits HEFT® 130,348 119,376 79,393 71,159
Custom duties and value JE W B F K
added tax recoverable EEFRENR 88,747 126,587 25,612 63,452
Prepayment for acquisition BERITEBER
of flight equipment Hth & EFEM K
and other assets 60,325 127,446 36,340 115,704
Deposits with banks and a HBiR=EHABIR
financial institution with —FHE TR
original maturity over three (s Ea)
months but less than a
year (Note (a)) 52,843 38,343 52,843 20,143
Others Hth 280,895 348,779 211,927 263,533
2,555,649 2,759,065 2,150,609 2,318,010
Notes: R
(a)  As at 31 December 2007, the effective interest rate on deposits (@) R=ZZEZLF+-_A=+—H R

iIJHﬂEEﬂ &l A BT BB — ﬁfﬂ
TTIF TR B IR 50.7% (ZEZR
¢ £ 0.7%) °

with banks with original maturity over three months but less
than a year was 0.7% (2006: 0.7%).
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26 ReRBEEEY

AEERAA RS LIRS ZEDN
EEEESIRIT -

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s cash and
cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
£5 YN

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELE ZITTRF ZEBLFE —ZTIERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTIT AR%BTR AR%®TR
US Dollars ETT 736,951 435,944 460,383 412,160
Renminbi AR 585,797 1,251,901 322,447 426,705
Euro B 7T 92,205 66,454 60,122 61,029
Japanese Yen Ht 70,996 68,950 57,480 54,871
Canadian Dollars it 25,332 14,525 25,332 14,525
Pounds Sterling R 16,141 17,416 16,141 17,416
Australian Dollars BT 14,991 7,563 14,991 7,563
Singapore Dollars 703 T 1,116 13,032 1,116 13,032
Others Hh 111,715 111,701 82,885 102,533
1,655,244 1,987,486 1,040,897 1,109,834

27 BRI RENRE
B B B 1< B4 0 AR i 3 4 40

27. TRADE PAYABLES AND NOTES PAYABLE

The aging analysis of trade payables and notes payable is as

follows: 5 &
Group Company
£8 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZE2BLE —TIERF ZBELFE —TIERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTT ARB®TR ARETT
Within 90 days A+ BIARA 1,465,079 2,707,474 1,228,690 2,359,363
91 to 180 days NATt—BZ—BATH 1,126,091 2,030,629 = 1,125,495 1,980,677
181 to 365 days —BABNAT+T—HBZ
=AA~TAaA 449,391 243,296 221,750 226,510
Over 365 days BBE=BTHAB 97,319 45,365 86,781 44,305
3,137,880 5,026,764 2,662,716 4,610,855
As at 31 December 2007, all notes payable totaling RMB1,616 R-EEZ+F+_A=1+—H "  FiFd

ENEEEFTARKEL616BET (=
TENREF  ARK3411BE) HE
BIR - WK AL E55% (CTEE
N 2.4%F3.3%) - A ENEE
RSB A RS o

million (2006: RMB3,471 million) were unsecured, beared
discount rates ranged from 3.5% to 5.5% (2006: 2.4% to
3.3%) and all notes are repayable within six months.
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 28. Ht EN R KR FEREH

168

Group Company
58 N
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELHE ZTITRF ZETtEF ZTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%®TR ARETR
Accrued fuel cost FARREME B F 2,348,932 1,824,714 2,180,773 1,636,726
Accrued aircraft HRREREER
overhaul expenses 1,184,529 834,075 978,089 697,149
Accrued salaries, BRIE Hek
wages and benefits =l 1,067,245 580,643 861,035 430,772
Accrued take-off and ERREERER
landing charges 1,036,423 1,022,127 838,218 755,936
Other accrued operating JE& 1< A Bt I EL At B IE
expenses 928,267 899,200 841,311 774,549
Duties and levies payable EREMEEER 858,966 1,037,429 646,588 831,816
Staff housing allowance BITEE®M
(Note 35(b)) (FE¥35(b)) 363,110 - 332,156 -
Deposits received from REBHENE
ticketing agents WE R E] & 339,064 448,176 268,064 318,568
Current portion of other HmRHEED
long-term liabilities mEEB D (FEHE32)
(Note 32) 135,859 104,241 135,859 104,241
Staff housing fund payable ENHEIFRES
(Note 35(a)) (FE135(a)) 135,212 123,277 135,212 123,277
Current portion of RRERAEED
post-retirement benefit mEEB1n
obligations (Note 34(b)) (FEFE34(b)) 34,425 30,724 31,707 28,727
Other payables Hh FE 5K 1,192,459 968,997 1,088,928 868,530
9,624,491 7,873,603 8,337,940 6,570,291
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 20 MEHEERE

At 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company had 55 and RZFEZLF+-A=+—H &%
48 aircraft (2006: 46 and 40 aircraft) respectively under finance ERANGAREREFX D REA
leases. Under the terms of the leases, the Group/the Company A +REMO-NERE(ZTER
has the option to purchase, at or near the end of the lease F o ETAREMETER) - RIEBHEE
terms, certain aircraft at fair market value and others at B3R REERAARAENEER
either fair market value or a percentage of the respective kT E R - A ATFTSEEK
lessors” defined cost of the aircraft. The obligations under RAEBAEHEABENKABERSE
finance leases are principally denominated in US Dollars. LR - EHEREFENETLS

29.

BRIEHE -
The future minimum lease payments (including interest), and EHE® (BIENE) R&EHEEMIR
the present value of the minimum lease payments under finance BERINWAT :
leases are as follows:
Group
%8
2007 2006
ZERtE ZEERE
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease
lease payments lease payments
payments  Interest  HEFEE  payments Interest ~ HEHE
BEREE ME <BE ®mEHES ME ZBE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TR ARRTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
Within one year —5R 3,356,665 811,442 2,545,223 3,447,738 546,904 2,900,834
In the second year F-F 2,206,135 638,882 1,567,253 2,371,076 430,139 1,940,937
In the third to fifth year inclusive ~ E=FZ2ERF (BHEERME) 5,714,466 1,509,114 4,205,352 3514758 912,607 2,602,151
After the fifth year RENE 9,331,048 1,196,666 8,134,382 5,173,152 667,598 4,505,554
Total ik 20,608,314 4,156,104 16,452,210 14,506,724 2,557,248 11,949,476
Less: amount repayable within B —EREEHHR
one year (3,356,665)  (811,442) (2,545,223) (3,348,020)  (544,064) (2,803,956)
amount reclassified to EZRHEERDEE
non-current liabilities k)
held for sale - - - (99,718) (2,840) (96,878)
Long-term portion =HHH 17,251,649 3,344,662 13,906,987 11,058,986 2,010,344 9,048,642
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (Cont'd) 20. MiEHESRS (@
Company
Ad
2007 2006
“EEtE ZEENE

Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease
lease payments lease payments

payments  Interest  HEME  payments  Interest HEME
BERS Gl ZRE REHS ME ZRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR ARMTR AR%TR ARBTRT ARETR AR%TR

Within one year —FR 2,993,378 676,597 2,316,781 3,195,142 459,367 2,735,775
In the second year F-F 1,866,827 524,660 1,342,167 2,146,228 351,312 1,794,916
In the third to fifth year inclusive ~ E=FEZERF (BEEEMEF) 4,725,108 1,230,149 3,494,959 2,903,681 722,981 2,180,700
After the fifth year REL A 1,574,768 956,172 6,618,506 4,033,038 497,081 3,535,757
Total B 17,160,081 3,387,578 13,772,503 12,278,080 2,030,941 10,247,148
Less: amount repayable within B —EREEPH

one year (2,993,378)  (676,597) (2,316,781) (3,092,584)  (456,527) (2,636,057)

amount reclassified to EERGNEFRDEE

liabilities directly ERXRBNAE

associated with
non-current assets

held for sale - - - (102,558) (2,840) (99,718)
Long-term portion RHHH 14,166,703 2,710,981 11,455,722 9,082,947 1571574 7,511,373
The fair values of obligations under finance leases of the REERRARMERERBEZAR
Group and the Company are RMB16,577 million and RMB13,863 EH R B AREERMB16,5778 &7t &
million (2006: RMB11,550 million and RMB9,833 million), which ARMERMB13,863F & T (ZEZE N
are determined using the expected future payments discounted F: AR¥11,5508 8 TR AR
at market interest rates prevailing at the year end of 4.77% 9,833B &) ' MAARBEREIRETE
to 7.34% (2006: 2.5% to 7.0%). MEXNREBRFEFREEMG X

4.77%%7.34%TEH (ZTT/RF
2.5%%27.0%) °

At 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company had bank RZZEZT++—A=+—8  ~5E

deposits totaling RMB420 million (2006: RMB1,249 million MARBIAIBRITFERGT AR 4208

and RMB1,245 million respectively) pledged as collateral under BLT(ZZ2Z2RF  DhlAARE

certain finance lease arrangements (Note 23(b)). 1,249B BT R ARKE1,245 5 & ) 1E
RETHREHENERm (EE
23(b)) °
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30. BORROWINGS 30. EX
Group Company
%W A7
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE —TTRF ZEELE —_ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT

RESRITIE X

Long-term bank borrowings

- secured — B 4,767,233 6,655,850 = 3,992,473 5,187,330
- unsecured — A 9,907,593 8,276,257 = 8,562,676 7,904,819
14,674,826 14,932,107 12,555,149 13,092,149

Less: current portion o BB D 3,305,519 2,840,694 2,904,566 2,250,234
Non-current portion bg-E L) 11,369,307 12,091,413 9,650,583 10,841,915
Short-term bank borrowings R ERSRTIE X 15,189,002 13,175,633 13,039,208 10,754,644
The borrowings are repayable R 17 & F A T 7

as follows: HRAEE
Within one year —FR 18,494,521 16,016,327 15,943,774 13,004,878
In the second year B F 5,927,098 3,053,315 5,515,186 2,953,315
In the third to fifth E=FEFREF

year inclusive (RIEEEME) 4,216,517 7,560,389 3,266,554 7,020,891
After the fifth year HF LR 1,225,692 1,477,709 868,843 867,709
Total borrowings BB 29,863,828 28,107,740 25,594,357 23,846,793
Notes: A
As at 31 December 2007, the secured bank borrowings of the Group RZZEZLFF+_A=1+—H ' ~&H

and the Company were secured by certain aircraft and buildings with
an aggregate net book amount of RMB9,923 million and RMB9,017
million respectively (2006: RMB9,110 million and RMB8,310 million)
(Note 17).

Certain unsecured bank borrowings of the Group totaling of RMB1,008
million (2006: RMB695 million) were guaranteed by CEA Holding
(Note 42(c)). No bank borrowings of the Company was guaranteed by
CEA Holding as at 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB100 million)

Short-term borrowings of the Group and the Company are repayable
within one year with interest charged at the prevailing market rates
based on the rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China. As at 31
December 2007, the interest rates relating to such borrowings ranged
from 4.38% to 6.72% per annum (2006: 4.39% to 6.12% per annum).
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the weighted average
interest rate on short-term bank loans was 5.75 % per annum (2006:
5.60% per annum).

AR BRI E FUAE T RIE R IEF
{EIIR SR EEEE{E{E?%/\E%9 9237
BT ARE 017AETT (CEERF
AR9,110B BT M ARKEES,3108 & L)
(FF817) -

REEBHIFBMBIRITERGT AR
1,008B & T (ZZEZNF : ARBE6ISH
&70) MR BRMEEER GERR42(0)) °
R-ZEE+F+-_HA=+—H ' AAQA
NMFERTREREMERERARITER
(20064 : ARB100EETT) °

NEBRARA RN EHRITEZEBER
FENEE - WARBEARBITAMHRK miﬁ
MR AEREEAEFE - N_TELF+—
A=+—H ' EEZOFENTEE
4.38%%6.72% (ZZEZTRF : NTFER
4.39%%6.12%) - HER_ZTZT+F+=
A=+—HI-FERIEFOFEEER
5.75% (ZZZ/NF © F85.60%) °
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30. BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 30. B (&)
The terms of the long-term bank borrowings are summarised REIRITERAERZBEAT
as follows:
Group Company
Interest rate and £5 AT
Currency final maturities 2007 2006 2007 2006
WE ERFEREEA —EELF ZEERN —EELF ZEERN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETnR ARETT AR®BTR AR®TTT
RMB denominated Interest rates ranging 6,132,551 5,707,500 4,270,211 4,477,500
AR E from 4.52% to 7.64%

per annum with final
maturities through
to 2017.
MENF4.5257.64
ErE - BEXE
20175 & 1% 2 2

U.S. dollar denominated Interest rates ranging 8,418,967 9,124,607 8,161,630 8,514,649
ELiE from 5.55% to 6.15%

per annum with final

maturities through

to 2019

FE N F5.55%6.15
EFrE  HXE
2019%F F 1& |

EURO denominated Interest rate is 6 123,308 100,000 123,308 100,000
BLTEE months LIBOR +0.6%

with final maturity
through 2010.

T BN X F6ME A H
LIBOR+0.6F 5 -

ERZE2010F

& 1& 5| B
Total long-term 14,674,826 14,932,107 12,555,149 13,092,149
bank borrowings
REIEREF
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The fair value of long-term borrowings of the Group and the
Company are RMB14,111 million and RMB12,124 million (2006:

RMB15,397 million and RMB13,546 million),

which are

determined using the expected future payments discounted at
market interest rates prevailing at the year end of 7.71%

(2006: 4.5%).

30. B

(&)
$%&ﬂﬂﬁ’\]§%ﬁ1%fk2@ﬁ{;ﬁ

SEIABARKE14,111EETRARK

4+ —

12,1248 &7t (20065 : AR 15, 397
BETRAREK13,546BETT) °
/“tﬁfé@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ?zﬁmlﬁﬁi
XI%%I@&EXE% M % 7 &
7.71%5K T E K (20065F © 4.5%) °

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in EFHEEESEU NIEBBEN
the following currencies:
Group Company
&5 N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EZTtE —TERF ZZEZtEFE —ZZTITRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTrT AR%¥TR ARETRT
Renminbi AR 12,528,550 11,309,419 8,590,026 7,736,006
US Dollars ey 17,196,836 16,698,321 16,874,186 16,010,787
Euro B 7T 130,145 100,000 130,145 100,000
HK Dollar BT 8,297 - - -
29,863,828 28,107,740 25,594,357 23,846,793
PROVISION FOR AIRCRAFT OVERHAUL EXPENSES 1. REERIEERAER
Group Company
£5 A Fl
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE ZTTREF ZEELE ZTIERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTrT AR%¥TR ARETT
At 1 January —A—H#&#% 510,621 403,999 429,590 348,835
Additions through the =AY N B
acquisition of a controlling TRE %5 PIT S| B #9380
interest in an associate - 23,994 - -
Additional provisions REBR 446,289 150,390 307,781 134,697
Utilisation FEAZA - (67,762) - (53,942)
At 31 December TZA=+—H#&# 956,910 510,621 737,371 429,590
Less: current portion o B E - (20,900) - (20,900)
Long-term portion = HEB 7 956,910 489,721 737,371 408,690
Provision of aircraft overhaul expenses represents the present AR RSB A AL T E R
value of estimated costs of return condition checks for aircraft HTBRT S BRAMIRE - HREER

under operating leases as the Group has the responsibility to

fulfill certain return conditions under relevant leases.

RAREAE TR R ABAEREN
RIS -
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32. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 2. HibREGE
Group Company
&5 N
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELHE ZTITRF ZETtEF ZTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR%®TR AR®TR
Long-term duties REIFAT &
and levies payable H i & 5 118 584,791 218,435 501,867 218,435
Long-term payable to T -THELEHEE
the Bureau of 2010 Expo R EAFE 1 3K
Shanghai (Note 16(b)) (FEE16(b)) 232,811 278,680 232,811 278,680
Long-term payable to Aviation FFEIR B R1TE0
China Civil Flight Institute REIER R 60,000 90,000 60,000 90,000
Deferred gains on sale and & 1& [ F R 4 i A Ut 25
leaseback transactions
of aircraft 21,011 33,605 21,011 33,605
Other long-term payable H b & B fE 5 3¢ 101,582 98,176 101,582 98,176
1,000,195 718,896 917,271 718,896
Less: Current portion o mEER (D
(Note 28) (s11228) (135,859)  (104,241)  (135,859)  (104,241)
Long-term portion K B0 19 864,336 614,655 781,412 614,655
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DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right of offset and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting,
are shown in the balance sheets:

33.

33. IELEH IR

EBRATEREN A S RIRE EER AR
BRERSH - MEEHMEHPRR—
EERE - AITSRERSHEER
EEFTSHRAEEAERE - £IEEE
KR TIeBEEERERAT

G
Group Company
58 A F
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —TERNEFE ZEELFE —ZTTAEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETn ARE®TRT AR%®TR ARETTT
Deferred tax assets RIET A E E
- Deferred tax asset —12[MAA ERATER
to be utilised after RRERIB B E
12 months 111,874 81,010 - -
- Deferred tax asset — 12 ALARA B IR
to be utilised within FIELERIBEE
12 months 1,337 1,136 - -
113,211 82,146 - -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIHE &
- Deferred tax liability — 128 B A ERTE R
to be realised after RIECEHRBEE R
12 months (50,369) (68,459) - -
- Deferred tax liability — 128 ALAR AT B IR
to be realised within MIELEREERE
12 months - - - —
(50,369)  (68,459) - _
Deferred tax assets/ ERERIEEE,/
(liabilities), net (BE)  #8 62,842 13,687 - -

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

33.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

Movements in the net deferred taxation asset/(liability) are

33. IEFERL IR ()

EERBFEE(BE) WEHM

as follows: 5 &
Group Company
58 N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—B2tE —TTAF ZBBLF —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT AR®TR AR T
At 1 January — R —B#&#% 13,687 (166,501) - (160,067)
Additions through business % 7 Ui B8 12 A0
acquisitions - (29,326) - (29,326)
Credited to income BakEHE (GEE12)
statement (Note 12) 49,155 211,004 - 190,883
Charged/(credited) to equity #EzfE™HE (E18H)
- gain/(losses) on cash —ARERNRERE
flow hedges (Note 38) EERA, (BX)
(FF¥£38) - (1,490) - (1,490)
At 31 December +ZA=+—H&% 62,842 13,687 - -
The deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting RIZEZALF+_A=1+—0 &L
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction) were made up of MIBEENBEER —BUEAEE T
the taxation effects of the following: SHATAMAE R A TR IS S 2248 0K
Group Company
58 N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—B2tE —TTARF ZBBLF —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR T
Deferred tax assets: BEEMIBEE
Tax losses carried forward T TS S 18 4 317,392 90,335 313,755 73,322
Provision for obsolete REBEZ GG
flight equipment PREEME
spare parts 138,783 68,574 136,614 66,008
Provision for receivables JE W SORK (B ZE 1 79,195 57,467 44,348 28,092
Provision for post-retirement R {K & 18 FI| % {5
benefits 351,283 216,570 306,694 176,007
Other accrued expenses HmfERE o
and provisions R 107,283 97,823 67,434 67,191
993,936 530,769 868,845 410,620
Deferred tax liabilities: BEEMIBAE
Depreciation and e REH
amortisation (931,094) (517,082) (868,845)  (410,620)
(931,094)  (517,082) (868,845)  (410,620)
Net deferred tax assets RIEMIBE EFRE 62,842 13,687 - -
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34.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses can be carried
forward to offset against future taxable income for a period
of five years. As at 31 December 2007, the Group and the
Company had tax losses carried forward of approximately
RMB5,380 million and RMB4,119 million respectively (2006:
RMB5,849 million and RMB4,846 million respectively) which
will expire between 2008 and 2012, and which are available
to set off against the Group and the Company’s future taxable
income. As at 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company
did not recognise RMB1,028 million and RMB716 million
respectively (2006: RMB882 million and RMB594 million
respectively) of deferred tax assets arising from tax losses
available as management did not consider it probable that
such tax losses would be realised before they expire.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

(a) Defined contribution retirement schemes
(i)  Pension

The Group companies participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by
municipal governments of the various provinces
in which the Group companies operate, and
substantially all of the Group’s PRC employees
are eligible to participate in the Group companies’
retirement schemes. The Group companies are
required to make annual contributions to the
schemes at rates ranging from 20% to 22% on
the employees” prior year salary and allowances.
Employees are required to contribute to the
schemes at rates 8% of their basic salaries. The
Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions under these schemes. For the year
ended 31 December 2007, the Group’s pension
cost charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to RMB296 million (2006:
RMB238 million).

(ii)  Medical insurance

The majority of the Group’s PRC employees
participate in the medical insurance schemes
organised by the municipal governments, under
which the Group and its employees are required to
contribute to the scheme approximately 12% and
2%, respectively, of the employee’s basic salaries.
For those employees who participate in these
schemes, the Group has no other obligation for
the payment of medical expense beyond the annual
contributions. For the year ended 31 December
2007, the Group’s medical insurance contributions
charged to the income statement amounted to
RMB77 million (2006: RMB60 million).

33.

34.

EAEBTE ()

RIEPEFE - HEEERRATEAN
AR R EFRTRMNA e RZZEF
+-A=1+—8 &AEEIKARFH
R E B AR D RIH AR KS,380 5
ETRAR¥411988T (TR
F: AR5, 8498BTMARKE
4,846 E&ETT) IR _EZENFE—
T — —FEIHART R A E B AR A
HIRKRERFRGA - HE-_ZTTLF
+-—A=+—Hit BERAEEEE
AR S BB E B HART AT 4%
FMARATREEER L - REE KA F]
MARERIELEHIBEEDHIABAR
1,028 8 TAARKI1I6BETT
(ZTERF  ARKR2AEETTEA
Ri#Es94HETT) ©

BRASHEREBERKEN
=R

(a) EEMENRESFTE
() EBIkE
AEBLREF LEATHATE
B TR KA RIKREET
2 - XEEXRZHFEHES
HELHEKREERRKEET
B2 B - REBTIRAT—
FEFHE MEBESTER20%
E22% X FEE - BB
R H B AR & AY8% 3 40 it
R o Br_Eal A TEREHL TN -
AREFEHE M E AL FRIK
BRWHEEL - HE_ZTZT+
F+_A=1+—HIFE -
AEBEZTEI TEFT AL
BlEGRMRKEHARER
AARE26EE T (ZEE
N ARM238EETT) ©

(i) B ERE

AEBAIHPERERELM
T R E MBS 5
BREE - AEBKES
BN RIEEARE & 4)12% %
2% MIET B R o BRI
AN - REBER N EIR(E
SlEAMEEEBRET -
E_TEF+ A=+
—HIEFE  KEBEFFAR
BITEET (ZEZERF
AR¥60E B L) EERR
HAAERRP IR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &
For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-RETIREMENT

BENEFITS (Cont'd)
(b)

Post-retirement benefits

In addition to the above retirement schemes, the Group
provides retirees with other post-retirement benefits
including transportation subsidies, social function
activities subsidies and others. The expected cost of
providing these post-retirement benefits is actuarially
determined and recognised by using the projected unit
credit method, which involves a number of assumptions
and estimates, including inflation rate, discount rate
and employees’ turnover ratio.

The post-retirement benefit obligations recognised in
the balance sheets are as follows:

ER G #)

4. RERETHEIREERKENE
A (#8)
(b) 1EEE % HIER
% LRk S B - AR
RELRINEB BRI R AR AR
B+ AERUE B R B UL R A1
7 o RERINGEFIFTELNE
RIRTTREHA IR 1
%I th1Es Iu@ﬁ@
R R - o BIE
& RRELRARARS -

FEAR B AR FRREERR
INETERI B AR T

Group Company
£H AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZBERLF —ZTTRF ZBEBELE —ZZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®TR ARETR
Present value of unfunded HECHEER
post-retirement benefit RINERBANER
obligations EHrIEE 2,155,393 1,892,926 = 1,861,036 1,650,889
Unrecognised RERNBERK
actuarial losses (750,266) (569,242)  (634,259) (477,509)
Post-retirement EERKEREF
benefit obligations EREHE 1,405,127 1,323,684 1,226,777 1,173,380
Less: current portion B BB D
(Note 28) (FF¥28) (34,425) (30,724) (31,707) (28,727)
Long-term portion R EAEB 19 1,370,702 1,292,960 1,195,070 1,144,653
Changes in post-retirement benefit obligations are as B BIRINERAEREFERAIFER
follows: ZET
Group Company
£8 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEBRLF —ZTTRF ZBEBELE —ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE ARKETRT AR®TR AR®TT
At 1 January —RA—B&#% 1,323,684 1,238,702 1,173,380 1,120,165
Charged to income STAGREEREN
statement (Note 8) EMRER (GTEs) 170,670 146,968 128,057 114,422
Payments REEXZNE (89,227) (61,986) (74,660) (61,207)
At 31 December +-—A=+—8#%& 1,405,127 1,323,684 1,226,777 1,173,380
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(b)

Post-retirement benefits (Cont’d)

The costs of post-retirement benefits are recognised
under wages, salaries and benefits in the income

statement as follows:

4. RAREFTERESRKEKE

&A (&)

(b) EERAKEHNEF (&)
AEEHERAERENERTS
ALHE - FaMEHERS W
ERAFEFABRRTRIR :

Group Company
£8 N F
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZE2ELF —_ZTTRF ZBBLF _TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTT ARB®TR ARETT
Current service cost EHR%E R 73,416 63,957 55,624 51,964
Interest cost BENFSER 83,858 72,435 63,678 54,175
Actuarial losses BRNBEEX
recognised 13,396 10,576 8,755 8,283
Total (Note 8) e (FEEs) 170,670 146,968 128,057 114,422
The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet REEBEXRATFEZREMHER
date are as follows: RO -

Group and Company

EERAF
2007 2006
—EELHF e e S S
Discount rate IR & 4.75% 3.75%
Annual rate of increase XHEERAMNEFERE
of per capita
benefit payment 2.5% 1.5%
Employee turnover rate EERAE 3.0% 3.0%
Mortality rate BT R 8.43% 8.84%

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

35.

STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

Staff housing fund

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations,
the Group is required to contribute to the State-
sponsored housing fund at rates ranging from 7% to
15% (2006: 7% to 15%) of the specified salary amount
of its PRC employees. At the same time, the employees
are required to contribute an amount equal to the
Group’s contribution. The employees are entitled to claim
the entire sum of the fund contributed under certain
specified withdrawal circumstances. For the year ended
31 December 2007, the Group’s contributions to the
housing funds amounted to RMB285 million (2006:
RMB228 million) which has been charged to the income
statement. The staff housing fund payable as at 31
December 2007 amounted to RMB135 million (2006:
RMB123 million) (Note 28). The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods.

Staff housing allowances

In addition to the above staff housing fund contributed
to the state sponsored housing fund, the Group also
provides staff housing allowances to eligible employees
who have not been allocated with any housing quarters
or who have not been allocated with a quarter above
the minimum as set out in the Group’s staff housing
allowance policy introduced in October 2003 (the
“Policy”) based on the area of quarter to which they
are entitled and the unit price as set out in the Policy.

The total entitlement is principally vested over a period
of 20 years. Upon an employee’s resignation, his or her
entitlement will cease and any unpaid entitlement
related to past service up to the date of resignation
will be paid. As at 31 December 2007, the present
obligation of the provision for employee’s staff housing
entitlement is RMB363 million (2006: RMB439 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the staff housing
benefits provided under the Policy amounted to RMB53
million (2006: RMB31 million) which has been charged
to the income statement (Note 8).
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(a)
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

36. ERMITETR

Group and Company

EEKAT
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELH ZZEIRN “EELE ZZEIRN
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARE®TrT AR®TrR AR®TrR
At 31 December +-A=+—H
Interest rate swaps (Note (a)) A& F| X B (331 (a)) 33,232 118,689 39,542 36,392
Forward foreign exchange HSINEEHE L
contracts (Note (b)) (3 (b)) 2,847 8,290 1,719 4,962
Fuel option contracts (Note (c)) WA EA#EA 4 (GER (c)) 59,468 59,822 535 97,464
Total A&t 95,547 186,801 41,796 138,818
Less: current portion o B E D
- Interest rate swaps —MEEHi# (27,155) (45,420) (17,984) (22,296)
- Forward foreign —INEEHE L
exchange contracts (2,847) (8,290) (1,719) (4,962)
- Fuel option contracts — RS & (59,468) (59,822) (535) (97,464)
(89,470)  (113,532)  (20,238)  (124,722)
Non-current portion e ) 6,077 73,269 21,558 14,096

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of the derivative assets in the balance sheet.

EHREBH, EEERNRSERE
EREERBRANTEEENAY
8 o

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH

181



182

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

ER G #)

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B9 % 87 7% # &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

36.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce the risk of
changes in market interest rates (Note 3(a)(ii)). The interest
rate swaps entered into by the Group are generally for
swapping variable rates, usually referenced to LIBOR, into
fixed rates. The Group’s interest rate swaps qualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for as cashflow hedges. As at
31 December 2007, the notional amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap agreements was approximately US$624
million (2006: US$631 million). These agreements will expire
between 2008 and 2016. For the year ended 31 December
2007, a net loss of RMB80 million (2006: a net gain of RMB4
million) arising from changes in the fair value of the interest
rate swaps subsequent to initial recognition has been
recognised directly in the hedging reserve (Note 38).

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group uses currency forward contracts to reduce risk of
changes in currency exchange rates in respect of ticket sales
and expenses denominated in foreign currencies (Note 3(a)(i)).
These contracts are generally for selling Japanese Yen and
purchasing U.S. dollars at fixed exchange rates. As at 31
December 2007, the notional amount of the outstanding
currency forward contracts was approximately US$33 million
(2006: US$33 million), which will expire between 2008 and
2010. For the year ended 31 December 2007, a net gain of
RMB2 million (2006: a net gain of RMB6 million) arising from
changes in the fair value of these foreign currency forwards
has been recognised directly in the hedging reserve (Note
38).

Fuel option contracts

The Group uses fuel option contracts to reduce the risk of
changes in market oil/petroleum prices in connection with
aircraft fuel costs. As at 31 December 2007, the Group had
outstanding fuel option contracts to buy approximately
7,980,000 barrels of crude oil at prices which ranged from
US$50 to US$95 per barrel and to sell approximately 2,300,000
barrels of crude oil at prices which ranged from US$43 to
US$115 per barrel, all of which will expire between 2008 and
2009. Management did not designate these fuel option
contracts for hedge accounting and changes in fair values
have been recognised directly in the income statement.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # %

37. SHARE CAPITAL

37. RA&

SEErEF A=+ —ALFE

2007 2006
—EELHE —EBETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Registered, issued and =t BERTREEAN
fully paid of RMB1.00 each ERARE%1.00T
Unlisted shares held FEEMEEREEST
by CEA Holding F A M IE AR
and employees - 3,000,000
Circulating shares with A R A B R H
restricted transfer held BITHANRG
by CEA Holding EEMLAR
and employees 2,904,000 =
A shares listed on ELBBHRZSM
The Shanghai T EY AR
Stock Exchange 396,000 300,000
H shares listed on EEBELFRSM
The Stock Exchange LT AIHAR
of Hong Kong Limited 1,566,950 1,566,950
4,866,950 4,866,950

Pursuant to articles 49 and 50 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, each of the unlisted shares, the listed A shares
and the listed H shares are all registered ordinary shares and
carry equal rights.

On 4 January 2007, the Company’s share reform plan was
approved by the Ministry of Commerce and implemented on 9
January 2007. In this connection, CEA Holding granted 96
million shares in total to the holders of the circulating shares
and the original non-circulating shares held by CEA Holding
were granted the status of listing subject to certain circulating
conditions.

— ==

?i o g

BREARRNAREREN AT
TR - BRIFRER -
AEE B = B RIS HER o

ARA B HRSC R

+F—AMA - REARLM
B EP R T [P E R Az
BRARIREN
£ RN A ==
o BEMIRM AR
X 196,000,000 % A% 17 7 7% 18 IR A
B A AR R FERBAR
MENES XA TRE G Lk

Rfs
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D ENES KRS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z =L L+ F+ - A=1+—HILFEF
38. RESERVES 38. ffR
Group
58
Statutory and
discretionary Capital Hedging
Share reserve  Revaluation reserve reserve Accumulated
premium  (Note (a)) reserve  (Note (b)) (Note 36) losses Total
EER
KA #£ELES BrfiE EDRE
nE (ZBe) EM4RE (B0 (B0 ZHEE fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETRT ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARET:
At 1 January 2006 “ETRE-R-A&R 1,006,455 407,842 490,688 (720,057) 44,726 (539) 1,229,115
Unrealised gains on REEHMMAER NG
cashflow hedges (4 %36)
(Note 36)
- gross -7 - - - - 12,774 - 12,774
- tax -HB - - - - (1,916) - (1,916)
Realised gains on REEHMEERNE
cashflow hedges (3 736)
(Note 36)
- gross -8 - - - - (2,843) - (2,843)
- tax -HE - - - - 426 - 426
Revaluation reserve, VNN
net of tax, PRI 4 P ol e A
arising from EftfE - NBHE
acquisition of a
controlling interest
in an associate - - 23,816 - - - 23,816
Loss attributable ARAEREEA
to equity holders EiEBE
of the Company - - - - - (3,313,425) (3,313,425)
Transfer from HREEFBZRE
retained profits (FE()
to reserves
(Note (a)) - 20,966 - - - (20,96) -
At 31 December 2006 ~ —ZERNET_F
—t-A& 1006455 428,808 514504  (720,057) 53,167  (3,334,930) (2,052,053)
At1January 2007  —BBRLE-B-AKH 1,006,455 428,808 514,504  (720,057) 53,167 (3,334,930) (2,052,053)
Unrealised loss REEHN
on cashflow hedges ~ REBER
(Note 36) (2 136)
- gross -#8 - - - - (19,783) - (19,783)
- tax -5 - - - - - - -
Realised gains on ReEHN
cashflow hedges CERNE
(Note 36) (ER836)
- gross -458 - - - - 1,586 - 1,586
- tax -HE - - - - - - =
Revaluation of BEARARTHLE
available for sale REMTEEE
investments in
associates 22,167 - - - - - 22,167
Profit attributable ARRREREA
to equity holders {5 R
of the Company - - - - - 268,896 268,896
Adjustments to ABEEERAELARS
statutory and
discretionary - (428,808) - - - 428,808 -
At 31 December 2007 =EBtF+ZF=+-H
&4 1,028,622 - 514504  (720,057)  (25,030) (2,637,226) (1,839,187)
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

38. RESERVES (Cont'd) 38. @& (&)
Company
A
Statutory and
discretionary Capital Hedging
Share reserves  Revaluation reserve reserve Accumulated
premium  (Note (a)) reserve  (Note (b))  (Note 36) losses Total
EER
fELES EXfifs EBRG
RxgE (EBe) EfRE (ZB0)  (E836) ZiEE CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARSTR ARBTT AR%TR ARSTR ARBTR
At 1 January 2006 “EERE-R-A&R 1,006,455 182,336 435,077 (720,057) 46,726 (210,784) 677,753
Unrealised gains on ~~ BEEBNAERME
cashflow hedges (3%36)
(Note 36)
- gross -8 - - - - 12,774 - 12,774
- tax -HA - - - - (1,916) - (1,916)
Realised gains on REeESMBEER NS
cashflow hedges (3% %36)
(Note 36)
- gross -8 - - - - (2,843) - (2,883)
- tax -HE - - - - 426 - 426
Loss for the year EENEE - - - - - (2,663,713)  (2,663,713)
At 31 December 2006 Z—ERSETZAZT—HEHR 1,006,455 182,336 435,077 (720,057) 53,167  (2,934,497)  (1,977,519)
At 1 January 2007 “E2tE-B-RER 1,006,455 182,336 435,077  (720,057) 53,167 (2,934,497) (1,977,519)
Unrealised loss REEHM
on cashflow hedges ~ *EHEFR
(Note 36) (% 36)
- gross -am - - - - (79,783) - (79,783)
- tax -HE - - - - - - -
Realised gains on BEEHY
cashflow hedges BERNE
(Note 36) (Z#&36)
- gross -am - - - - 1,586 - 1,586
- tax -HE - - - - - - -
Profit for the year ~ EEMEH - - - - - 420,193 420,193
Adjustments to HEEIERAELARS
statutory and
discretionary - (182,336) - - - 182,336 420,193
At 31 December 2007 —EFLF+-A=t-R
33 1,006,455 - 435077 (720,057)  (25,030) (2,331,968) (1,635,523)
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38. RESERVES (Cont'd) 38. fi#fE (&)
Notes: i
(a)  Statutory and Discretionary Reserves (a) EEREEAES
Group Company
& |
2007 2006 2007 2006
2B —ZZEXF ZBEtE CETRHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETRT AR®TR ARKETR

Statutory common EEAES

reserve fund - 400,819 - 154,428
Discretionary common EEAES

reserve fund - 27,989 - 27,908

- 428,808 - 182,336

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Group companies’ BEFBEERERANAANAA
Articles of Association, each of the Group companies is 512 - ARRAERIESE 4R

required to transfer 10% of its profit for the year, as
determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to a
statutory common reserve fund until the fund balance exceeds
50% of the Group company’s registered capital. The statutory
common reserve fund can be used to make good previous
years’ losses, if any, and to issue new shares to shareholders
in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to increase
the par value of the shares currently held by them, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Each of the Group companies is permitted to transfer 5% of
its profit for the year as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a discretionary common reserve fund. The
transfer to this reserve is subject to approval at shareholders’
meetings.

No profit appropriation by the Company to the discretionary
common reserve fund has been made for the year ended 31
December 2007 (2006: nil).

The Group adopted the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of PRC on
February 15, 2006 (the “new PRC GAAP”) from 1 January,
2007. According to the relevant requirements under the new
PRC GAAP, certain adjustments were made to the retained
earnings and reserves in previous years upon first-time
adoption. In addition, the new PRC GAAP no longer permits
the Group’s share of surplus reserves of subsidiaries to be
presented on a consolidated basis, an additional adjustment
on the transfer is made in the current year.
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38.

39.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

RESERVES (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the net assets injected and the nominal amount of
the Company’s share capital issued in respect of a group
restructuring in June 1996.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In December 2006, the Board of Directors passed a resolution
to dispose of certain older aircraft and related flight equipment
in the forthcoming 12-months. Accordingly, these aircraft
together with related flight equipment and spare parts were
classified as non-current assets held for sale as at 31 December
2006. Despite of the Company’s continuing effort to locate
and negotiate with potential buyers, no agreement to dispose
these assets has been reached. It is management’s intention
to dispose these assets in the forthcoming 12-months and
management is continuing to take active step to locate
potential buyers of these assets. They have therforee been
classified as non-current assets held for sale as of 31 December
2007. An impairment loss of RMB131 million has been
recognised in the income statement in relation to these assets.

In addition to the above non-current assets held or sale
brought forward from 2006, in August 2007, the Group entered
into a sale and leaseback transaction to dispose of certain
other older aircraft in the forthcoming 12-months and the
transaction was completed in March 2008. The related aircraft
have been classified as non-current assets held for sale as of
31 December 2007.

The aggregate carrying amount of non-current assets held for
sale as at 31 December 2007 amounted to RMB2,262 million.
Liabilities directly associated with these assets held for sale
amounted to RMB127 million as at 31 December 2007,
representing bank loans with interest rates ranging from 5.02%
to 5.55% and final maturities through to 2008. The bank
loans are secured by the related aircraft at a net carrying
amount of RMB296 million.
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40. B EBEELE MR HIEE
(a) RETHEENRSHE

40. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Cash generated from operations

188

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARKETTT
Profit/ (loss) before income tax HEEHF ~ (HiE) 268,266 (3,615,697)
Adjustments for: FEIEE -
Depreciation of property, M - HeZ Rk
plant and equipment REFE 4,787,069 4,566,309
Gains on disposals of property, Hnz - s
plant and equipment X & R A (674) (36,207)
Share of results of associates B e AR EE (58,312) (103,566)
Share of results of HBERFAEHEEESR
jointly controlled entities (30,086) (29,595)
Amortisation of T8~ 1H & RO 8
lease prepayments 24,847 30,869
Net foreign exchange gains B 3, )% & A (2,023,032) (888,402)
Amortisation of iR A U 2 B 5H
deferred revenue (12,594) (13,068)
Fair value gains on PHREENARBERE
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (96,575) (17,784)
Consumption of flight RIEREZTH 2B/
equipment spare parts 468,888 326,248
Allowance for obsolescence of R R EZHRE
flight equipment spare parts EHEHFE 96,535 31,734
Provision for impairment of JE Ui BR R J% HL h JE LUK
trade and other receivables B 2E 10,481 98,156
Provision for RNt T E
post-retirement benefits 170,670 146,968
Provision for staff housing EEFFE ML ER
allowance - -
Provision for aircraft R RIEE R EE
overhaul expenses 446,289 150,390
Deficit on revaluation/ FiEREE K
impairment loss 130,921 1,035,343
Interest income B WA (96,849) (120,161)
Interest expenses MEER 1,978,550 1,821,870
Gain on contribution % & HF
to a jointly ERAEE/ G
controlled entity (31,620) -
Gain on disposal of &M B AR W
a subsidiary (54,441) -
Operating profit before EEBAREHH
working capital changes F 8 A 5,978,333 3,383,407
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt | R T2

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # %

40. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

SEErES A=t AULEE

40. @ EEA MR S (@)

(Cont’d)
(a) Cash generated from operations (Cont'd) (a) RETHELENRESRE (B
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTF T
Changes in working capital EEESLEY
Flight equipment spare parts M 2R B T (501,573) (583,027)
Trade receivables & U BR 3R (368,878) 14,273
Amounts due from JE W R Bk 1 B SR IE
related companies 349,897 (147,007)
Prepayments, deposits BRR - TRk
and other receivables ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬂﬁl%ﬂ (336,890) (502,986)
Sales in advance of carriage T8 & # AL 319,550 68,510
Trade payables and notes payables JE1ﬁE§TA&JE1"T?%FE (33,684) (182,383)
Amounts due to related companies &1 A @ A 7 A 29,571 125,327
Other payables and /\ﬁﬂﬁlﬁmﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ
accrued expenses (194,694) 1,510,433
Other long-term liabilities Htt R AE (74,081) 23,627
Long-term portion of accrued REREERER
aircraft overhaul expenses —REE 5 - (67,762)
Staff housing allowances B T (X5 mas (76,381) (35,361)
Post-retirement Rz 12 A
benefit obligations (89,227) (61,986)
Operating lease deposits KEHHEET® (3,909) (86,555)
(980,299) 75,103
Cash generated from operations EEELEMNRS 4,998,034 3,458,510
(b) Non-cash transactions (b) FREXRS
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
Investing activities KREZRHHFFER S -
not affecting cash:
Sale and leaseback of aircraft R E 12 [0 7 - 7,940,164
Financing activities MEETHNIFREER S :
not affecting cash:
Finance lease obligations LEHERE
incurred for acquisition iR B R
of aircraft 8,395,965 2,350,978
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

40. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 40. B BEEEMNBE ST (@)

(Cont’d)
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (c) HEKBAT
CEA Investment was a subsidiary of the Company in FEEMBRERARAFE
which the Company had 98.79% equity interests. 98.79%AX HELL I EY F A A ©
On 16 November 2007, the Company entered into RH52007F11 16 H ANA R EEER
agreements with CEA Holding to transfer its equity MEEETREEEDE - A
interest of 98.79% of CEA Investment for a consideration RABFHEN LERMIEERR
of RMB462 million. Proforma financial information to N FIHY98.79% A HE B E N R S
reflect the disposal as if it had occurred on 1 January CHEEEEAARKL62E
2007 is not presented as the impact would not have 8o BRULAKER T4
been material to the consolidated financial statements. —A— BT BEZENBERL
RIEFR - BHEEERE IBHREKI
BEATE o
Details of net assets disposal of are as follows: S R A A ) B BRI N FI R N
T
2007
—EELHF
RMB’000
AR¥ TR
Net assets disposed of: HEMBFEE :
Property, plant and equipment Y - WS R 39
Investment in an associate KEREZ R A 102,750
Other long term investments Hiap RHEIIRE 18,470
Deposits and other receivables 17 3 N H A R 271,187
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMBEEED 20,914
Trade and other payables & ASF B K N2 HL At & A5F 3K (1,200)
Minority interests D HR RS (4,685)
407,475
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & B B A B FT 1S s 54,441
461,916
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

40. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 40. B EELENBE ST (@)

(Cont’d)
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (Cont’d) (c) HEMBQE (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash ﬁ%WE”D\ﬁjﬁﬁﬁfﬁ@&fﬁ@
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is EBWMERALT :
as follows:
2007
—EELHF
RMB’000
AR TR
Cash consideration IR & 461,916
Cash and cash equivalents HEMBREEREEEYD
disposed of (20,914)
Net inflow of cash and HEMBRARMEBRE X
cash equivalents in respect of REFEWFEFRA :
the disposal of a subsidiary 441,002
(d) Acquisition of CEA Wuhan in 2006 (d) WEBRMEEZE
CEA Wuhan was an associate of the Company in which RMRZEARNARMEE AT -
the Company had a 40% equity interest. RNRRIHEH HA40%AXHE -
On 8 December 2005, the Company entered into RZZEZTRF+ANR - &A
agreements with each of Wuhan Municipality State- AENEEBEEEEEEEEZE
owned Assets Supervision and Administration 2 ([RNEREZ]) - KK EEH
Commission (“Wuhan SASAC”) and Shanghai Junyao ERTHREBRAG ([ LEH
Aviation Investment Company Limited (“Shanghai ) #ZEWE () ARK278
Junyao”) to acquire (i) equity interests of 38% in CEA BETEERRZREZWER
Wuhan from Wuhan SASAC for a consideration of RMB278 FREVE38%HIARIE - (1) AR
million, and (ii) equity interests of 18% in CEA Wuhan 1408 BLIEER L EWE
from Shanghai Junyao for a consideration of RMB140 RAMEVE18%HIARKE - AT AR
million, totaling RMB418 million, respectively. 4188 &L °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

40. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 40. B EEAEMNE SHE (&)

(Cont’d)
(d) Acquisition of CEA Wuhan in 2006 (Cont'd) (d) WEERMRE (&)
Details of net assets acquired and related goodwill were IR B A E R Ry B
as follows: BRBRMT
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
ARE FREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR T T
Property, plant and equipment M - #es RFRE 677,465 588,599
Lease prepayments TEfT & K 75,302 75,302
Other long-term and HitRHA KRS EE
current assets 189,456 189,456
Trade receivables JEE 45 BR K 256,808 104,808
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 19,266 19,266
Other long-term and HiRBR RIS AEE
current liabilities (868,797) (868,797)
Provision for aircraft R RIEE RER
overhaul expenses (23,994) (23,994)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE (29,326) -
Minority interests in CEA R EZM B A FH
Wunan’s subsidiaries LEREERGER (10,056) (10,056)
Net assets BEFE 286,124 74,584
Share acquired g g 56% -
Net assets acquired W EE & EFE 160,229 =
Purchase consideration W B B A% 418,000 -
Goodwill [k 257,771 -
Cash outflow on business HKBHEBAZRERE !
acquisition:
Purchase consideration Re TR ER
settled in cash 418,000 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W FTEBEERER S
acquired REEEEBY (19,266) -
Purchase consideration paid FFEEXNIKEER
in prior year (28,000) -
Cash outflow on business HIWERAAZRER
acquisition 370,734 -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

41. R
(a) BA HAE
AEERAATEUTHERS

41. COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

The Group and the Company had the following capital

commitments: G
Group Company
58 A
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELF ZTTRF —ZEBELF ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTRT AR%®ETR
Authorised and B R
contracted for: HESLVE
- Aircraft, engines and ~ — TR BB
flight equipment N A1T:%#% 50,852,865 61,763,771 50,852,865 60,222,477
- Other property, plant ——H 4% -
and equipment 2 N AR 353,771 567,582 289,971 561,220
51,206,636 62,331,353 51,142,836 60,783,697
Authorised but not B
contracted for: BRETAH :
- Aircraft, engines and ~ — R BB
flight equipment RRITHAE - 723,000 - -
- Other property, plant —EH ¥ -
and equipment MeeS KR 11,326,338 7,772,639 10,709,963 7,268,631
11,326,338 8,495,639 10,709,963 7,268,631
62,532,974 70,826,992 61,852,799 68,052,328
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41. COMMITMENTS (Cont'd) 41. A% (&)
(a) Capital commitments (Cont’d) (a) BEARZ A (&)
Contracted expenditures for the above aircraft and flight LA_EFRE R R TRR s B A ST A
equipment, including deposits prior to delivery, subject BeHFGEERA L - (BE25A]
to future inflation increases built into the contracts BEE &K PTET AV AR A EE SR
and any discounts available upon delivery of the aircraft, BRSPS P i 2
if any, were expected to be paid as follows: BHASBIRAT :
Group Company
&8 YA
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EREE —TEIREFE —BBLF —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®TR AREBTT
Within one year —F R 17,127,081 14,894,068 17,127,081 13,352,744
In the second year FE_F 15,056,943 18,844,893 15,056,943 18,844,893
In the third year E=1F 13,960,033 15,591,463 13,960,033 15,591,463
In the fourth year F Py F 2,531,964 12,433,347 2,531,964 12,433,347
In the fifth year ERE 2,176,844 - 2,176,844 -
50,852,865 61,763,771 50,852,865 60,222,447
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) BEMHEHE

The Group and the Company had commitments under

SELRARHELEHERNOT
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operating leases to pay future minimum lease rentals AR EREE -
as follows:
Group Company
%E AH
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EREF —TTRF ZBRFLE _—ITTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE ARMTRE ARMTRE ARETE
Aircraft, engines and TR - B Ehi
flight equipment RBITHRE
Within one year —FA 2,527,072 2,795,027 2,235,504 2,363,903
In the second year F-F 2,331,741 2,673,250 2,124,109 2,361,560
In the third to FE=FEFRF
fifth year inclusive (BIEEREME) 4,991,164 6,253,277 4,925,469 5,961,089
After the fifth year A FLAE 5,341,362 7,021,741 5,341,361 7,021,740
15,191,339 18,743,295 14,626,443 17,708,292
Land and buildings T RIEF
Within one year —F R 87,410 153,487 84,482 133,775
In the second year F-fF 50,683 42,362 49,363 40,366
In the third to F=FEFRF
fifth year inclusive (BREERMEF) 40,888 71,587 40,026 69,590
After the fifth year A F & 29,846 54,535 29,846 54,535
208,827 321,971 203,717 298,266
15,400,166 19,065,266 14,830,160 18,006,558
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (% B % 81 7% #i &5 € 8l 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE — T E+F+=-H=+—HI FE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is part of a larger group of companies under CEA
Holding and has extensive transactions and relationships with
members of CEA Holding. Related parties refer to entities of
which CEA Holding is a shareholder and is able to exercise
control or joint control. The transactions were made at prices
and terms mutually agreed between the parties. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the transactions with
related parties (see below) during the year were conducted in
the usual course of business.

The Group is controlled by CEA Holding, which owns
approximately 61.64% of the Company’s shares as at 31
December 2007. The aviation industry in the PRC is
administrated by the CAAC. CEA Holding and the Group is
ultimately controlled by the PRC government, which also
controls a significant portion of the productive assets and
entities in the PRC (collectively referred as the “SOEs”).

(a) Related party transactions

The Group sells air tickets through sales agents and is
therefore likely to have extensive transactions with other
state-controlled enterprises, and the employees and their
close family members of SOEs while such employees are
on corporate business. These transactions are carried
out on normal commercial terms that are consistently
applied to all of the Group’s customers. Due to the
large volume and the pervasiveness of these
transactions, management is unable to determine the
aggregate amount of the transactions for disclosure.
Therefore, retail transactions with these related parties
are not disclosed herein. The Directors of the Company
believe that meaningful related party disclosures on
these retail transactions have been adequately made.

2. FREALRS

AEBRRMEE QR NBALEE
Z—  ERMEEAQRNKEMEITR
ER W ARREZHME - BT 15
REBE R AEREBRIL B RE
HAHEBEATENDE - HEFEX
PIERX BT EENIGTETT - AR
RAEERR  NFEBIRZ (AT
3O BN AR ET

AEBBHRMEETS - HE-_TT
+E+-A=+—HIt  PEEME
E A NN F161.64% 2 JiHE - TERE
Rz ReRAMmEERENEE
B o PREIEMEE R AEE G HF
BIBUTHES] - [RRF - A BBt
HEHENTEGE (BEARAD
%]) -

(a) BRAEALRS
AEEBBHERBLERE -
HEATENES @ BRER
A B REfh MBEZE IR REK
BTEMEEBBIZP AN
HEREZNRS - HER S EIRE
T WA S MTGETT - BN IGSRE
AR BEAMGETE 5 - 2
RILERZ S HEZ I R TR
EREEIERANEBEILERS
ARERE - UL - HRRETE
RPWEREHE - NEEERE
HEREXSEBENASRER
ERTDIKRE -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 42 EBEALR S (&)
(a) Related party transactions (Cont'd) (a) EAEALRS ()
The other related party transactions are: HMBREALRS :

Income/(expense or payments)

WA/ (BEARZFAFE£EE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2007 2006
FARE REEAL BBt —TTAAF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AREBETTT

With CEA Holding or companies directly or
indirectly held by CEA Holding:
ERmMEESIARMEEEES

EEEFHNAR
Interest income on deposits EAGF* 9,717 8,036
7 ZOH B U A R i B 75 >
Interest expense on loans EAGF* (33,590) (23,393)
ERAMEXH R i B 7 >
Ticket reservation service charges for Travel Sky (241,161) (209,572)
utilisation of computer reservation system Technology Limited
ENEKITIRRSRREE GNP N N
Handling charges for purchase EAIEC* (34,643) (40,971)
of aircraft, flight equipment, RAMZE#EL O
flight equipment spare parts, BRAR*

other fixed assets and aircraft
repair and maintenance

BEMRK  RITRE ROKEZHR
HtEFEEERREEESTZINH

FEE

Repairs and maintenance STA (100,270) (126,114)
expense for aircraft and engines B F i

FEAS TR K BB ) M1 % Wheels & Brakes (56,764) (60,066)
rEEHN 1 o R

Disposal of a subsidiary CEA Holding 461,916 -

HE—HBAF RinsE
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’'d)

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

Related party transactions (Cont'd)

Nature of transaction

REME

Related party
FREAL

2. BEBEALRS (B)
(a) FREALRS (B

Income/(expense or payments)
WA (BRARXNEHE)
2007 2006
ZERLFE —_TIERN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®TT

Supply of food and beverages
EREMBEEERNER

Advertising expense
BE&EER

Purchase of other fixed assets

BARMEEEE

Commission expense on
air tickets sold on behalf of the Group,
HEHEMRS -

Automobile maintenance fee
AEBEEEE

Land and building rental
MEHEE

Shanghai Eastern Air

(243,895)  (213,306)

Catering Co., Ltd
FERAFMERM

BRAF

Yunnan Eastern

Air Cateri

(37,782)  (31,977)

ng

Investment Co., Ltd.
EERAIMER M

BRAA

Xian Eastern

Air Cateri

(28,780)  (22,821)

ng

Investment Co., Ltd.
AZERITMER M

BRAA

Qingdao Eastern

Air Cateri

(20,101)  (16,082)

ng

Investment Co., Ltd
EERFMERM

BRA A

CAASC

(14,370)  (11,583)

EBRTHREER

BER R A]

CEA Northwest

(67,305) -

Rfrade X A

SDATC*
ey $iia

Shanghai Tourism (HK) (6)

Co., Ltd

(9,220) (6,085)

(1,491)

LB (FE)

BRAA

CEA Development Co.
EERTMEE?

CEA Holding
R & HE

(18,754) -
~ A

(55,399)  (55,399)

* EAGF is also a 25% owned associate of the Group;
SDATC and EAIEC are both a 45% owned associates of

the Group.

* MBS T AR E B A 25% A 1
ZHEE N TR] - RN KR M
HOBRAREAEAESEHAE
45%IRHE 2 B E A A o

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

2. BEBEALRS (&)
(a) FREALRS (B

Income/(expense or payments)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(a) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

WA (BARXNSEHE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2007 2006
XEME FREAL —BELF —TETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®TT
With CAAC and its affiliates:
EPERAMZEARIRMAS]
REME#HE
Civil aviation infrastructure levies paid CAAC 781,613 696,428
KEMEARKDMEMERERES T EREMES
Aircraft insurance premiums CAAC 136,875 168,972
paid through CAAC which entered into PR AR

the insurance policy on behalf of the Group

BIBRME RSN RERR

With other SOEs:

198

HHMBA R :

Take-off and landing fee charges State-controlled airports 4,152,888 3,876,737

LT E B 5 #i8

Purchase of aircraft fuel State-controlled fuel

8 B i suppliers 11,120,186 10,242,349
B A fin o e 7

Interest income on deposits State-controlled banks 15,411 18,701

7 2R B U A Bl B RIT

Interest expense on loans State-controlled banks 1,406,812 1,227,278

ERMHER

BA 1T
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

2. BEBEALRS (B)
(a) FREALRS (B

Income/(expense or payments)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(a) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

WA (BRARXNEHE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2007 2006
XEME FREAL —BELF —TETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Commission expense on air tickets other PRC airlines 70,285 89,977
sold on behalf of the Group A A B th
ENEMMEARREAEEREMRS /N
Supply of food and beverages other state-control
ZEREMREERNER enterprises 511,766 469,255
Hih A ®E
(b) Balances with related companies (b) BEAEATEE
(i)  Amounts due from related companies () BERERHERAFE
Group Company
= A7
Company 2007 2006 2007 2006
TEAB “ERLF _TTRF ZBFLF ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR ARBE T
CEA Holding HERMEE - 298,287 - 298,287
SDATC REMZ 16,378 30,908 16,378 30,908
Shanghai Tourism (HK) LBRE (BE)
Co., Ltd R NG 2,914 5,091 2,914 5,091
EAIEC RAME#ELN
BRRAT 26,166 5,090 26,166 5,090
Other related companies HEmB@EBEAL 19,997 13,343 18,952 11,833
Total A&t 65,455 352,719 64,410 351,209

FTE G RIERRIFIR
E2REFHNE  MEENG
TRESEFP—HBENLERE

All the amounts due from related companies
are trade in nature, interest free and payable
within normal credit terms given to trade
customers.

FERAMZERBAERLT —ZZ2LFFH 199
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Notes to the Financial Statements B i3RI 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 B X 51 7 #5 &5 & Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

42,
(b)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Balances with related companies (Cont'd)

(ii)) Amounts due to related companies

(iii)

2. BEBEALRS (&)

(b) BEERQRIERE (R
(i) ENERHERAHNE

Group Company
58 N
Company hEZRE 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE ST RF ZBELF 2T RHF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETTT
EAIEC RAMZEELN
BRRE (470,349)  (270,514) (401,178) (179,582)
CEA Holding FE R MK E (40,214)  (40,338)  (40,214)  (40,338)
Shanghai Eastern EBEAMERM
Airlines Catering BR QA
Co. Ltd. (60,718) (7,261)  (60,718) (7,261)
Yunnan Eastern Air EERFMERM
Catering Investment BRA
Co., Ltd. (488)  (11,036) (488)  (11,036)
CAASC FBRAMEEE
BRLA (2,550) (101) (2,550) (101)
CEA Northwest 8 A/NE] (64,895) - - -
Other related companies ~ H B BERA A (32,379)  (19,227)  (30,193) (8,044)
Total X (671,593) (348,477) (535,341) (246,362)

Except for amounts due to EAGF and CEA Holding,
which are reimbursement in nature, all other
amounts due to related companies are trade in
nature, interest free and payable within normal
credit terms given by trade creditors.

Short-term deposits and short-term loans with

an associate — EAGF

FrERNBRERRZR
BT RIS SRS R ER
MEEFRSRBRIN - 2
RESHWE - MEE NG

REZEP —HHILERER

(iii) #HEE 2 7] 52 R B S A R

R B 5 — R B 7

Average interest rate Group Company
FHFE %8 A9
Company A 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERLEF _TTRF ZBRLE _TTRE ZBELE _TTRF
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTT ARMTR AR%TT AR®TR ARKTE
Short-term deposits BHER (B 0.7% 0.7% 408,151 755,665 90,793 59,637
(included in Prepayments, ~ EFF « F3
Deposits and Other REMERFA)
Receivables)
Short-term loans EHER(BR 5.3% 51% 260,351 788,991 180,351 182,000
(included in Borrowings) EERR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#2 [0 [EX 87 7% 48 &5 £ Al 45 #2)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

42. 42. EBREALR S (&)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(b) Balances with related companies (Cont’d)

(iv) State-controlled banks and other financial

(b) BEAE R FERE ()
(iv) EIFERIT R A%

institutions =
Average interest rate Group Company
FH7/% %8 A
Company N 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE CZTTRE ZBELE “TTNF ZBBLE TTNE
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR%®TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Bank deposits (included in ROER (B 0.7% 0.7% 845719 759,110 630,783 571,863
cash and cash equivalents) ~ B&RkE®
ZEM)
Long-term bank borrowings ~ RERITEH 5.7% 5.5% 13,062,353 12,825,763 11,104,676 11,230,805

(c) Guarantees by holding company

Certain unsecured bank borrowings of the Group totaling
of RMB1,008 million (2006: RMB695 million) were
guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note 30). No bank
borrowing of the company was guaranteed by CEA
Holding as at 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB100 million)

(d) Key management compensation

(c) ERARMEHNER

RNEE IR IEWIPIRITEFRETA
R¥1,008B &8 T (Z2Z /R F -
AR6958 &) AP BEIEME
BR300 - RZZTLF
+=—A=1+—8 ' KRB MFE
AP ERMERERORITER
(2006%F + AR¥1006E L)

(d) SRITHRAEME

2007 2006

—EELF —EEXREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T

Salaries, bonus, = o AN 1,805 1,365
allowances and benefits 7 Bh & 48 F

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R T 1=

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (#% [ BX 87 7% # &5 € Al 45 22)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & &2 - LT+ F+_-A=+—HI FF

43.

44.

45.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard CEA Holding, a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2005, the family members of certain victims in the aircraft
accident (the aircraft was the nowned and operated by China
Eastern Air Yunnan Company), which occurred in Baotou on
21 November 2004, sued the Company in a U.S. court for
compensation.

On 5 July 2007, pursuant to several conditions with which
the Company has complied, the Superior Court of the State of
California ordered the action stayed on the grounds of forum
non conveniens for the purpose of permitting proceedings in
the PRC. On 20 February 2008, the plaintiff filed a motion
with the Superior Court of the State of California to lift the
stay. The case is still pending. The Directors believe that a
negative outcome will not have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 29 August 2007, the Company convened a board meeting
in which the Directors of the Company approved a plan to set
up a regional carrier with China Aviation Industry Corporation
I (AVIC I). On 24 January 2008, the Company entered into an
agreement with AVIC I agreeing that the regional carrier would
have a registered capital of RMB1 billion in which the Company
holds a 40% interest. The new carrier, Xingfu Airlines, was
established on 28 March 2008.
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Condensed Consolidated Income Statement f{t R EE =R

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations) (#2741 25 A B 2 7l ] & & £ Al 45 20)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FE+F 1+ - H=1+—HILFE

2007 2006

—EELHF —EEREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARBFT

Revenue = LN 43,528,561 38,210,193

Less: Cost of operation o FERAR (37,654,536) (35,115,042)

Taxes and levies BE S KM (1,092,859) (932,748)

Selling and distribution HEE M (2,766,379) (2,554,296)

expenses
General and administrative EEEHR (2,075,732) (1,942,193)
expense

Finance income/(expenses), net MBER  FE 106,125 (761,678)

Impairment loss BEREERX (224,714) (834,194)

Add: Fair value gain/(loss) m: AREBEEEHKE S (BX) 83,965 (42,344)

Investment income 1% & Wz 155,180 67,911

Operating profit/(loss) BERNB(EEEBR) 59,611 (3,904,391)

Add: Non-operating income o AN A 676,610 719,191

Less: Non-operating expenses W EEIINTH (28,878) (76,941)

Total profit/(loss) FEBAE (BEAR) 707,343 (3,262,141)

Less: Income tax IECE R -5 (96,512) 140,208

Net profit/(loss) 2FE (RER) 610,831 (3,121,933)
Attributable to: FER:

- Equity holders of the Company —HRARKREMNFMNE (FEE) 586,464 (2,991,571)

- Minority interests —LERFESE 24,367 (130,362)

610,831 (3,121,933)

FERSHRERAEMAT —STLEEH
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet f§{L &S EEERBR

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations) (¥ /1 25 A B £ 71 B & & £ Al 45 #)

As at 31 December 2007 L EZ - T LT+ F+ -—A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELHE —TENREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARET T
Assets BE
Total current assets B E E 7,565,738 8,552,782
Long-term investment REIRERE 990,758 779,929
Fixed assets & construction BE&ENK
in progress EETRE 55,212,262 47,306,359
Intangible assets & BREER
non-current assets EmIEREEE 2,632,261 2,868,267
Deferred tax assets RIEFTIS & BE 740,695 382,523
Total assets EEAG 67,141,714 59,889,860
Liabilities & shareholder’s equity BEKFBEEER
Current liabilities nBBE 35,876,458 33,908,135
Non-current liabilities el R=R 27,008,295 22,601,066
Deferred tax liabilities BRIEFTSMAE 688,954 307,188
Total liabilities 8EE5 63,573,707 56,816,389
Minority interests DENT RS 705,142 741,040
Total shareholder’s equity 55 B BB A B A% SR 2 2,862,865 2,332,431
Total equity 4 3,568,007 3,073,471
Total liabilities & EERFMEEERA
shareholder’s equity 67,141,714 59,889,860
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Supplementary Financial Information Ff} 08t % & ¥t

31 December 2007 =L L+ F+=-H=+—H

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC
ACCOUNTING REGULATIONS

The Group’s accounting policies, which conform with IFRS,
differ in certain aspects from the PRC Accounting Regulations.
Differences between IFRS and the PRC Accounting Regulations
which have a significant effect on the consolidated profit/
(loss) attributable to equity holders and consolidated net assets
of the Group are summarised as follows:

) BIRR B R R 5 E RIS B & &

EANEREERE

NSRBI BR P B BR B 7 v o R R e
S EAES T I EFEER - B
M REENRTEETEANER
WARRRERSRA ARGRS (B1R)
BN EAEEGRSFEENERY
LT

2007 2006
—EEtHE —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
Consolidated profit/(loss) FRREBERHEA
attributable to equity EiEGEREA/ (BE)
holders of the Company
As stated in accordance with BB EDEE R B JIR
PRC Accounting Regulations 586,464 (2,991,571)
Impact of IFRS: BB HmEERNTE
Difference in depreciation B R AE A AR A A
charges for flight F IR M &R ARAT
equipment due to REMENZR
different depreciation
lives used previously (170,082) 239,466
Difference in depreciation HRARAERFR K
charges for aircraft due to B ER R
different depreciation FENZEZER
lives and revaluation (167,151) (524,118)
Provision for post-retirement RKEE T ERE
benefits (81,445) (84,982)
Reversal of revaluation surplus P H L3 {F AT (B IEE
relating to land use right 12,426 16,740
Others Hit (32,825) (662)
Deferred tax adjustments I IE R I B 72,749 22,722
Minority interests D EIR R 48,760 8,980
As stated in accordance RBBER A BmE
with IFRS Z R3] 7R 268,896 (3,313,425)

PERAREROERLAT —STLFFH



Supplementary Financial Information B} hng&t# &%

31 December 2007 =L LFE+F+=-H=+—H

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN INTERNATIONAL (A) BIFR B A5 3 5 E R B R B
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ArEAINERER (§

ACCOUNTING REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

2007 2006
—2ELE ZEERX
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Consolidated net assets REREE
As stated in accordance with BREPEEERE IR
PRC Accounting Regulations 2,862,865 2,332,431
Impact of IFRS: BB REENNTE
Difference in depreciation B R AT A AR A A
charges for flight equipment F IR M & B R AT
due to different depreciation REMENZER
lives used previously 263,764 433,846
Difference in depreciation HRARAERFR K
charges for aircraft due to B ER R
different depreciation lives FENZER
and revaluation 810,347 977,498
Provision for post- RAERENOERE
retirement benefits (1,405,127) (1,323,682)
Goodwill and BERAHENEH
negative goodwill 688,311 688,311
Reversal of revaluation M BT R IEE
surplus relating to
land use right (309,212) (321,638)
Others Hfth (14,462) 18,363
Deferred tax adjustments 15 IR SE 75 I8 3 B 11,101 (61,648)
Minority interests DE MR RERS 120,176 71,416
As stated in accordance 1R 4% B B B 7% 3 45 2RI BI R
with IFRS 3,027,763 2,814,897
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Supplementary Financial Information Fff 08 #%& ¥t

31 December 2007 =L F+F+=-H=+—H

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND
PRC ACCOUNTING REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

(a)

Prior to 15 February 2006, under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, rotables are classified as current assets
and the costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 5 years. Under IFRS, rotables are
accounted for as property, plant and equipment and is
depreciated on a straight-line basis to write off the
cost or revalued amount to their residual value over
their estimated useful lives and annual provision for
scrap was made. Since 1 January 2007, under the PRC
Accounting Regulation, rotables are classified as
property, plant and equipment and is depreciated over
10 years. Under IFRS, the useful life of rotables is also
changed to 10 years with no further annual provision
for scraps in 2007. This change of accounting estimate
is applied prospectively. Despite the useful life of
rotables is unified under IFRS and the PRC Accounting
Regulation this year, the carrying amounts, of rotables
are different under IFRS and the PRC Accounting
Regulation which still results in differences.

Under the PRC Accounting Regulations, on or before 30
June 2001, depreciation of aircraft was calculated to
write off their costs on a straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives of 10 to 15 years to their residual
values of 3%. With effect from 1 July 2001, depreciation
of aircraft under the PRC Accounting Regulations is
calculated to write off their costs on a straight-line
basis over their expected useful lives of 20 years to
their residual values of 5% of costs, the change was
applied prospectively which resulted in the difference
in the carrying amounts under IFRS and the PRC
Accounting Regulation. Moreover, under IFRS,
depreciation of aircraft is calculated based on their
costs or revalued amounts, while under the PRC
Accounting Regulation, depreciation of aircraft is
calculated based on their costs under the new PRC
GAAP.

(A) BRI R R RIS E 5t

KR EAER (@)

(2)

(b)

REFEEHILA - N=TEA

F-A+HBZA - SERASH
ERRBEEIIR - WASFEH

KRR T DA o ARIEBIB B TR
XA SEREHEAETEE
EJRWEHRITE - ITE 2 E%
ThBARK AR/ & il (B R 2= il 5
B WAEREIRIETAERF
PR SEI B FIRBUGRAEER - B
—ET+F—A—HiE EFEH
SERT - SEREFEAR
EEEVIBRIIRIOEHIE -
RIS REEAT - SER
EHNITEFRITNAFTERS
105 - WTABIRN—MBREE
%o AR LT EFRNESRE
SEHEFTEE - BB IRA
KIERERIE - AN S EEE
HEFRECESFER KRR
EHEER THIREEERR -
MEENEFREAFTESR—
BENFEEEEZR -

BEFESFERMGE - R
20014F6 H30H Al - i & 32 E)
AT E LA E AR 3% A5
BERIZ10E15F 2 AT Rl A F
PRUABEARERHRITE : B20014F
7TA1BE - R R BEEIEATE
AR AR 55 % BB 14 - 1R TBET
AMEAER 15 20F5TIRITE -
I B R A AR B R ARR IR - BA
BIEBT LB E B F AR TR
NEEHAPE ST ERIAGE
TRYBRE B R B 7 T s
B BREFERR o AN - EE
BREFTETRE AT - R K 3 E)
BRI E S BRIEEK AN EHE
TR - MR BRE TR T A
AR AN#ETTRHR » #IL IR S| B
HREBEOTERFEER
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Supplementary Financial Information Ff}hn&# & %t

31 December 2007 =L LFE+F+=-H=+—H

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC
ACCOUNTING REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

(c)  Under the PRC Accounting Regulation, employees’ post-
retirement benefits are recognised upon payment. Under
IFRS, such post-retirement benefits under defined
benefit schemes are required to be recognised over the
employees’ service period.

(d)  The basis of recognising the value of the consideration
payable for acquisitions and the underlying assets and
liabilities is different under IFRS and the PRC Accounting
Regulation. Accordingly the amount of goodwill and
negative goodwill is different. Moreover, under the PRC
Accounting Regulation, goodwill and negative goodwill
are not presented as separate items but are allocated
among the carrying value of assets and liabilities
acquired. Accordingly part of the adjustments under
goodwill and negative goodwill in the Net Asset analysis
are offset by difference of the same amounts in other
categories of assets or liabilities presented in the
analysis.

(e)  Under the PRC Accounting Regulation, land use rights
injected by the parent company as capital contribution
are stated at valuation less accumulated amortisation.
Under IFRS, land use rights are recorded as prepaid
operating leases at historical cost which was nil at the
time of listing.

(f) In addition of the above, the application of IFRS differ
in certain other respects from the PRC Accounting
Regulation.

(g)  This represents the corresponding deferred tax effects
related to the items above.

(h)  This represents the corresponding impact a minority
interest related to the items above.
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AUDITORS

International Auditors:  PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited
11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center
202 Hu Bin Road
Shanghai 200021
PRC

Domestic Auditors:

LEGAL ADVISERS

Hong Kong: Baker & McKenzie
USA: Baker & Mckenzie
China: Beijing Commerce & Finance Law Office

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Shanghai Branch
China Construction Bank, Shanghai Branch
The Bank of China, Shanghai Branch

SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

The Bank of New York
101 Barclay Street
New York, NY 10286, U.S.A.

China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited, Shanghai Branch
727 Pu Jian Road, Shanghai

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

5th Floor, McDonald's Building, 48 Yee Wo Street,
Hong Kong

CUSTODIAN FOR UNLISTED SHARES

China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited, Shanghai Branch

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007
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CHANGE OF BUSINESS LICENSE REGISTRATION

There is no change in the Company's business registration
during the period covered by this report

Registered capital of the Company is RMB4.86695 billion
as of the date of this report

Business License Registration Number of the
Corporation Legal Person: Qi Gu Hu Zong Zi

No. 032138 (Municipal Administration)

Tax Registration Number: 310042741602981

EXRYREAMBERR

BEPARBELXNREMEEIS
wn

BREHARAFMERABARK
48.6695127T

EREEANEXBREMS - EREA
F 50321385 (/)

BB © 310042741602981

addresses shown below:

RERAIABREBEZZUATEE THAR —ZTLFEREE TR
http://www.ce-air.com http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaeast

Shareholders can obtain a copy of the Company's annual report for the year 2007 through the Internet
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